
FAIRFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 

FAIRFIELD, OHIO  45014 
 

TUESDAY, MAY 28, 2013        7:00 PM 
 
 
MAYOR………………………………….RONALD A. D’EPIFANIO   COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…TIM ABBOTT 
COUNCILMEMBER 1ST WARD……….ADAM B. JONES    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…TIMOTHY M. MEYERS 
COUNCILMEMBER 2ND WARD………JEFFREY L. HOLTEGEL   COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…MICHAEL OLER 
COUNCILMEMBER 3RD WARD………DEBBIE PENNINGTON   CITY MANAGER………………….ARTHUR E. PIZZANO 
COUNCILMEMBER 4TH WARD………TERRY SENGER    CLERK OF COUNCIL…………….ALISHA WILSON 

LAW DIRECTOR………………….JOHN H. CLEMMONS 
 
Guidelines for Citizen Comments: Thank you for your interest and participation in city government.  Fairfield City Council’s Guidelines for Citizen 
Comments describe the rules for addressing City Council. The guidelines are posted in the Council Chambers. 
 
ADA Notice:  The City of Fairfield is pleased to provide accommodations to disabled individuals or groups and encourage full participation in city 
government.  Should special accommodations be required, please contact the Clerk of Council at 867-5383 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Agenda Modifications 
 
5. Executive Session Requests 
 
6. Public Hearing(s) 
 
7. Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 
 
8. Mayor/Council Reports 

 
9. Approval of Minutes 
 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of  May 13, 2013 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS 

 
(A) DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 Jeff Holtegel, Chairman; Tim Abbott, Vice Chairman, Tim Meyers, Member 
 
(1)   Ordinance to amend various chapters of the Building Code of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified 
Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio. 

 
• Motion – Amend Ordinance 
• Ordinance – Third Reading 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(B) PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 

Adam Jones, Chairman; Tim Meyers, Vice Chairman, Jeff Holtegel, Member 
  

(1)  Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with GRW Engineers, Inc. for professional 
engineering services related to the design of the Pleasant Avenue Water Main Project. 
 

• Ordinance – Third Reading 
• Motion – Adoption 



Page 2  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
May 28, 2013 

 
 

(C) PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Tim Meyers, Chairman; Michael Oler, Vice Chairman, Tim Abbott, Member 

 
(1)  Resolution Authorizing Participation in Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) Cooperative 

Purchasing Program. 
 

• Resolution – Second Reading 
 

(2)  Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. for the 
2013 Asphalt Paving and Resurfacing Project. 
 

• Ordinance – Second Reading 
 

11.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
(A) PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

Mike Oler, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Terry Senger, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to transfer a 1997 Chevrolet Suburban to the Butler County Sheriff 
Communications Division and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(B) PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

Tim Meyers, Chairman; Michael Oler, Vice Chairman, Tim Abbott, Member 
 
(1) Ordinance to declare four (4) city vehicles and one (1) scissor lift as surplus and authorize the City Manager to 

sell the vehicles and lift on GovDeals.com. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(2) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Henderson Truck Equipment – Ohio for 

the outfitting of two (2) 2014 Tandem Axle Dump Trucks. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(C) FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 

 Tim Abbott, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Mike Oler, Member 
 
(1) Resolution amending the pick-up plan for eligible Fire Department employees under the Ohio Police and Fire 

Pension and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Resolution – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 



Page 3  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
May 28, 2013 

 
 

(2) Resolution amending the pick-up plan for eligible Police Department employees under the Ohio Police and Fire 
Pension and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Resolution – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(3) Ordinance to reconcile accounts. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(4) Appropriation Ordinance (Contractual Items) – $99,185 for the outfitting of two (2) tandem axle dump trucks. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption   

  
(5) Appropriation Ordinance (Non-Contractual Items) - $12,000 for overlay/sealing/striping of parking lots and 

tennis courts; $8,500 for sidewalk trip hazard repair; $25,000 for traffic signal system maintenance; $33,209 for 
repairs to Firehouse #3; $10,000 for maintenance repairs of Municipal Building Annex; $40,200 for facilities 
asphalt repairs, sealing and striping at Firehouse #1, Firehouse #3 and Public Works; $13,957 for Golf 
Maintenance Shop repairs; $23,575 for outfitting of a 2013 Chevrolet Silverado 3500; $12,700 for outfitting of 
a 2013 Chevrolet Silverado 3500; $26,274 for equipment outfitting and graphics of three (3) new Police 
cruisers; $6,687 for uniforms, equipment and other expenses of Explorer’s Post; $39,000 for back-up server for 
SCADA system. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(6) Appropriation Ordinance (Non-Contractual Items) - $45,686.56 for Exit 39 South Gilmore/Winton Road 

Improvements relocation by Duke Energy. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
12. Meeting Schedule 

 
Summer Schedule 
Monday, June 10 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, July 8 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, August 12 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 

 
13. Executive Session of Council (if needed) 

 
14. Adjournment 



MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL  

MAY 13, 2013  
 
Call to Order  
Mayor Ronald A. D'Epifanio called the Regular Meeting of Council to order at 7:00 PM at the Fairfield 
Municipal Building, 5350 Pleasant Avenue.  
 
Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance  
Councilmember Pennington led in prayer and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Wilson called the roll of Council. Councilmember Holtegel, Councilmember Pennington, 
Councilmember Senger, Councilmember Abbott, Councilmember Oler, Councilmember Meyers, and 
Councilmember Jones. 
 
Agenda Modifications  
 
Executive Session Requests  
Councilmember Oler, seconded by Councilmember Abbott, made a motion for Executive Session for 
discussion of purchase of real estate, imminent legal action and collective bargaining. Motion carried 7-
0. 
 
Public Hearing(s)  
 
Special Presentations and Citizen Comments  
"Parents Who Host Lose the Most" Proclamation  
Mayor D'Epifanio presented a proclamation to Jen Campbell, Coalition for a Safe & Drug-Free Fairfield, 
declaring May as "Parents Who Host Lose the Most: Don't be a Party to Teenage Drinking" month in the 
City of Fairfield. Ms. Campbell and several Fairfield High School students spoke about the programs 
offered in Fairfield to educate families on the dangers of teenage drinking. 
 
Mayor/Council Reports  
Councilmember Jones reported that the National League of Cities Water and Sewer Line Insurance 
program vendor, Utilities Service Partners, will be sending out a mailing to residents in the next few 
weeks regarding their program. 
 
Councilmember Senger reported that the Arbor Day Foundation awarded the Tree City USA Award to 
the City of Fairfield again this year, making the 18th consecutive award for the city. 
 
Councilmember Abbott reported that April income tax revenue is up approximately 3%. Also, City 
Manager Pizzano, Finance Director Hopton and a couple of councilmembers will meet with Senator 
Coley and State Rep. Retherford regarding House Bill 5 on May 25. 
 
Councilmember Meyers reported that the Gilmore/South Winton paving is wrapping up and the 
remaining work will be done at night, beginning May 20. Also, Public Works Week is May 19-25 and is a 
way to recognize the employees for their great work. 



 
Mayor D'Epifanio read a letter commending Darlene Feldmann of Parks & Recreation for her 
outstanding customer service. He also commended the Fire Department for their assistance and 
dedication to their jobs, specifically for their help in moving his mother to his home during her serious 
illness and in taking her to the hospital over the past weekend. Mayor D'Epifanio also noted that a long-
time volunteer and Fairfield resident, Charlie Shelton, passed away and will be greatly missed. 
 
Approval of Minutes  
Regular Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2013  

• The minutes of April 22, 2013 were approved as written. 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE  
Jeff Holtegel, Chairman; Tim Abbott, Vice Chairman, Tim Meyers, Member 

 
Ordinance to amend various chapters of the Building Code of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified 
Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio.  
 
Councilmember Holtegel presented the second reading of this ordinance. 
 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 
Adam Jones, Chairman; Tim Meyers, Vice Chairman, Jeff Holtegel, Member 

 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with GRW Engineers, Inc. for 
professional engineering services related to the design of the Pleasant Avenue Water Main Project.  
 
Councilmember Jones presented the second reading of this ordinance. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE  
Adam Jones, Chairman; Tim Meyers, Vice Chairman, Jeff Holtegel, Member 

 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Siemens Industry, Inc. for 
replacement of the Dystor methane gas storage system for Digester #4 and declaring an emergency.  
 
Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Abbott moved to read the following ordinance by 
title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended a contract with Siemens Industry, Inc. for replacement 
of the Dystor methane gas storage system for Digester #4. Legislative Action: Councilmember Jones 
presented the first reading of this ordinance. Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember 
Senger moved to suspend the rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. 
Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Pennington moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. 
ORDINANCE NO. 40-13. APPROVED 7-0. 
 



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE  
Tim Meyers, Chairman; Michael Oler, Vice Chairman, Tim Abbott, Member 

 
Councilmember Meyers, seconded by Councilmember Oler moved to read the following resolution and 
four (4) ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Resolution Authorizing Participation in Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) Cooperative 
Purchasing Program.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended a resolution authorizing participation in ODOT's 
Cooperative Purchasing Program. This is a standard resolution that must be passed every couple of years 
to participate in the state purchasing. Legislative Action: Councilmember Meyers presented the first 
reading of this ordinance. 
 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. for 
the 2013 Asphalt Paving and Resurfacing Project.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended a contract with Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. for the 
2013 Ashpalt Paving and Resurfacing Project. Legislative Action: Councilmember Meyers presented the 
first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Advanced Rehabilitation 
Technology, LLC for the 2013 Storm Sewer Repair and declaring an emergency.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended a contract with Advanced Rehabilitation Technology, 
LLC for the 2013 Storm Sewer Repair. Legislative Action: Councilmember Meyers presented the first 
reading of this ordinance. Councilmember Meyers, seconded by Councilmember Abbott moved to 
suspend the rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember 
Meyers, seconded by Councilmember Abbott moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 41-
13. APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Stauffer Site Services, LLC to 
replace existing drywells on Mississippi Drive.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended a contract with Stauffer Site Services, LLC to replace 
existing drywells on Mississippi Drive. Legislative Action: Councilmember Meyers presented the first 
reading of this ordinance. Councilmember Meyers, seconded by Councilmember Pennington moved to 
suspend the rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember 
Meyers, seconded by Councilmember Senger moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 42-
13. APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Rush Truck Centers for the 
purchase of two (2) tandem axle dump trucks.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended a contract with Rush Truck Centers for the purchase 
of two (2) tandem axle dump trucks. Legislative Action: Councilmember Meyers presented the first 
reading of this ordinance. Councilmember Meyers, seconded by Councilmember Abbott moved to 



suspend the rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember 
Meyers, seconded by Councilmember Senger moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 43-
13. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 
Tim Abbott, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Mike Oler, Member 

 
Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Oler moved to read the following two (2) 
ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Appropriation Ordinance (Contractual Items) - $441,500 for replacement of the Dystor methane gas 
storage system for Digester #4 at the Wastewater Treatment Plant; $450,000 for the 2013 Asphalt 
Paving and Resurfacing Project; $225,000 for the 2013 Storm Sewer Repair; $75,000 for replacement of 
drywells on Mississippi Drive; $170,468 for the purchase of two tandem axle dump trucks.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the appropriations related to the previously approved 
contracts. Legislative Action: Councilmember Abbott presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Pennington moved to suspend the rules requiring 
three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Abbott, seconded by 
Councilmember Meyers moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 44-13. APPROVED 7-0.  
 
Appropriation Ordinance (Non-Contractual Items) - $33,000 for HP server and tape drive; $41,000 for 
replacement computer workstations; $19,000 for Public Works security system; $45,000 for updated 
mobile data terminals in police cruisers; $7,415 for purchase of welder/generator for the garage service 
truck; $7,350 for purchase of tandem axle trailer for Street Division; $8,750 for purchase of 2006 Skyjack 
used scissor lift for Street Division; $19,472 for Water Plant Facility HVAC upgrades and roof repairs; 
$26,425 for Justice Center security access upgrades and miscellaneous building repairs; $31,465 for 
outfitting of a 1-ton truck with crane for Street Division; $2,000 for automated pool cleaning system for 
Fairfield Aquatic Center; $8,875 for play feature at Fairfield Aquatic Center; $8,800 for materials for 
manhole rehabilitation; $49,500 for radio read capable metering equipment for Water Division; $48,565 
for corridor landscaping for Winton/South Gilmore Project; $11,660 for improvements to Village Green 
Park amphitheater; $4,400 for Wastewater Treatment Plant SCADA Replacement.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended appropriations for non-contractual items. Legislative 
Action: Councilmember Abbott presented the first reading of this ordinance. Councilmember Abbott, 
seconded by Councilmember Meyers moved to suspend the rules requiring three (3) readings of this 
ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Pennington moved 
to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 45-13. APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Meeting Schedule  
Clerk Wilson read the following meeting schedule: 
 

• Tuesday, May 28 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. Summer Schedule  
• Monday, June 10 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, July 8 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  

 
 



Executive Session of Council (if needed)  
Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:40 PM. 
 
Adjournment  
The Regular Meeting of Council adjourned at 8:55 PM. 
 
 
ATTEST:  

_____________________________ ___________________________ 
Clerk of Council              Date Approved 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Mayor's Approval 



) 

) 

Item No. n(A) (t) 
---='" 

City of Fairfield, Ohio 
City Council Meeting Communication 

Date 04-22-13 

Item: 
An ordinance modifying various chapters of the building code as part of the Fairfield 
Codified Ordinances. 

Financial Impact: 
Building inspection fees are being modified which will have a positive impact upon the 
general fund. 

Synopsis: 
Due to State of Ohio and national building code changes it is necessary for Fairfield's 
local building code to reference these code up-dates, new contractor licensing 
requirements and other associated issues. Additional local changes include digital 
submission standards and simplification/modification of the fee inspection section which 
has not been changed since 1990. 

At the March 11, 2013 Council/Manager briefing, discussion centered on the fee structw·e 
and modifications that were appropriate given the inspection fees for competing regional 
communities, current subsidy of the general fund for inspections and 
mechanical/electrical fee calculations. As a result of comments from Council that the 
minimum fee proposal may be too high for the residential sector, various modifications 
were made to the minimum residential inspection fees making them modest increases. 
Examples include decks which have a current minimum permit fee of $25.00 are being 
proposed to increase to $40.00 minimum, only a $15.00 increase. The current costs 
associated with residential furnace/AC replacement inspection will not increase and will 
remain at $40.00 and $60.00 respectively. The cost of new and replacement residential 
driveways will also not increase. 

Background: 
The new state of Ohio building codes no longer allow municipalities to exempt portions 
of the state code or to have stricter requirements than the minimum state code 
requirements. This was instituted state wide to protect life and property and to make the 
code unifom1 across the state. This provision will require many deletions to the Fairfield 
code which are several decades old and supplemented past state codes which were not as 
comprehensive regarding various building/construction issues as past Council's/staff's 
felt appropriate. 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended that City Council have first reading on this ordinance at the meeting 
set for April 22 and have three readings. So that the building community has time to 



/ 

) 

modify bid schedules and proposals it is requested that the changes to this ordinance 
become effective September I, 2013. 

Legislative Actions: Rules Suspension and Adoption Requested? 
~Emergency Provision Needed? 

No. 
No. 



o> 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ _ 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND VARIOUS CHAPTERS OF THE BUILDING CODE OF 
ORDINANCE NO. 166-84, THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Passed 

Posted 

First Reading 

Various chapters of the Building Code of Ordinance No. 166-84, The Codified 
Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio are hereby revised as shown in the attached 
Exhibit "A" which is incorporated herein by reference. 

This ordinance shall take effect on September 1, 2013. 

Mayor's Approval 

Rules Suspended 

Second Reading 

Third Reading 

ATIEST: 

Clerk of Council 

This is to certify that this Ordinance has been duly published by posting and summary 
publicat ion as provided by Charter. 

Clerk of Council 

Active Clients\Ordinances\2013\Building Code Changes- Ord 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF FAIRFIELD 
 

PART THIRTEEN - BUILDING CODE 
 
                               
 
 

  PREFACE 
 
  TITLE ONE - Administration 
   Chap.  1301.  Title and Scope. 
   Chap.  1303.  Definitions. 
   Chap.  1305.  Enforcement and Penalty. 
   Chap.  1309.  Permits. 
   Chap.  1311.  Fees. 
   Chap.  1313.  Inspections; Certificate of Occupancy. 
   Chap.  1315.  Craft Licenses AND CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 
   Chap.  1317.  Board of Building Appeals. 
 
  TITLE THREE - Building and Maintenance Standards 
   Chap.  1325.  Design Criteria. 
   Chap.  1327.  Amendments to Residential Code of Ohio for One; Two- 
     and Three-Family Dwellings. 
   Chap.  1329.  Residential Security; Early Fire Warning Systems. 
   Chap.  1331.  Accessory Buildings and Structures. 
   Chap.  1333.  Signs. 
   Chap.  1335.  Electrical Work. 
   Chap.  1337.  Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning. 
   Chap.  1339.  Safeguards During Construction or Demolition. 
   Chap.  1341.  Use of Public Property. 
   Chap.  1343.  Property Maintenance Code. 



 

 



 

 2012 Replacement 

3 
 
 
 
 
 

CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF FAIRFIELD 
 

PART THIRTEEN - BUILDING CODE 
 
 
                                     
 
 

PREFACE 
 
 

 
 
 

PREFACE 
 
  The Building Division of the City is a division under the Development Services 
Department. The Division has been certified since April 20, 1962, and is currently certified by 
the State Board of Building Standards to exercise enforcement authority and to accept and 
approve plans and specifications, and make inspections in accordance with the provisions of the 
Ohio Building Code (OBC), adopted by the Ohio Board of Building Standards, MOST 
CURRENT EDITION, for all occupancies pursuant to Rule [4101:2-1-03] 4101:1-1 to 4101:1-
35 of the Ohio Administrative Code, except "Plumbing", Chapter [4101:2-51] 4101:3-1 to 
4101:3-13 of the Administrative Code. The Plumbing Code is administered by the Butler County 
Board of Health. 
 
 The Building Superintendent is the chief enforcement official for all occupancies.  The 
Division is controlled and administered by the Building Superintendent, who shall have the 
power to make rules and regulations to enforce the Building Code. 
 
 The Ohio Building Code applies to all buildings except as follows: 
 (a) Single-family, two-family and three-family dwelling houses which are not 

COVERED BY THE RESIDENTIAL CODE OF OHIO (RCO), CURRENT 
EDITION. constructed of industrialized units, except where the context specifies 
mandatory applicability; 

 (b) Buildings owned by and used for a function of the United States government; 
 (c) Existing buildings where their location, parts, equipment and other items do not 

constitute a serious hazard; 
 (d) Buildings constructed in accordance with plans which have been approved prior 

to the effective date of the Ohio Building Code; and 
 (e) Buildings or structures which are incident to the use for agricultural purposes of 

the land on which such buildings or structures are located, provided such 
buildings or structures are not used in the business of retail trade. 

  (See Ohio R.C. 3781.06 and 3781.061.) 



 

 

                                                       BUILDING CODE                                              4 
 
 
 Single-family, two-family and three-family house are covered by the Ohio Building 
Officials Association (Oboa) Residential Code of Ohio for One-, Two- and Three-family 
Dwellings (OBOA Residential Code or Oboa Code) 2004 Edition, First Printing, Copywrite 
2004, Except for the modifications adopted in this chapter.  The code further standardizes 
requirements by using a compilation of data from the following national model codes: 
 
 
 BUILDING 
  ICC International Building Code 
  ICC International Residential Code  
  ICC International Energy Conservation Code 
 PLUMBING 
  Ohio Plumbing Code 
 
 MECHANICAL 
  ICC International Mechanical Code 
  ICC International Fuel Gas Code 
 
 ELECTRICAL 
  National Electric Code 
 
 All construction activity is governed by the administrative section of the Building Code; 
and other ordinances where applicable, viz.: Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Rules and 
Regulations, Thoroughfare Plan, etc.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

5 
 
 
 

TITLE ONE - Administration 
   Chap.  1301.  Title and Scope. 
   Chap.  1303.  Definitions. 
   Chap.  1305.  Enforcement and Penalty. 
   Chap.  1309.  Permits. 
   Chap.  1311.  Fees. 
   Chap.  1313.  Inspections; Certificate of Occupancy. 
   Chap.  1315.  Craft Licenses AND CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 
   Chap.  1317.  Board of Building Appeals. 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1301 
Title and Scope 

 
 
1301.01 Title. 
1301.02 Purpose. 
1301.03 Minimum standards adopted. 
1301.04 Code remedial. 
1301.05 Scope. 

1301.06 Existing structures. 
1301.07 Maintenance. 
1301.08 Validity and severability 
 clause. 
 

 
CROSS REFERENCES 

  Power to regulate building erection - see Ohio R.C. 715.26, 715.29, 737.28 
  Power to regulate fences, billboards and signs - see Ohio R.C. 715.27 
  Oil and gas wells - see Ohio R.C. Ch. 1509 
 
 
 
 1301.01  TITLE. 
 Part Thirteen of the Codified Ordinances shall be known as the Building Code of the City 
of Fairfield, may be cited as such, and will be referred to in Part Thirteen of the Codified 
Ordinances as “this Code”.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1301.02  PURPOSE. 
 The purpose of this Code is to provide certain minimum standards, provisions and 
requirements for safe and stable design, methods of construction, and uses of materials in 
buildings and/or structures hereafter erected, constructed, enlarged, altered, repaired, moved, 
converted to other uses, or demolished and to regulate the equipment, maintenance, use and 
occupancy of all buildings and/or structures, and to make provisions for licensing, AND 
REGISTRATION of various crafts and examining boards therefor.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-
05.) 
 



 

 

1301.03                                            BUILDING CODE                                              6 
 
 
 1301.03 MINIMUM STANDARDS ADOPTED. 
 (a) Minimum standards for One, two and three-family residences and accessory 
residential structures shall be governed by the OBOA Residential Code of Ohio, for CURRENT 
EDITION One, Two and Three-Family Dwellings (OBOA Residential Code) 2004 Edition, first 
printing, which is BASED ON THE INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE WITH 
DELETIONS, SUBSTITUTIONS AND AMENDMENTS AS APPROVED BY THE 
STATE OF OHIO. hereby adopted by reference in its entirety except as amended in this 
chapter. 
 
 (b) All other construction is governed by the Ohio Building Code, 2005 Edition, or 
most current edition, adopted by Ohio Board of Building Standards which is based on the 
International Building Code, chapters 2 through 35 as published by the International Code 
Council, Inc. with deletions, substitutions and amendments as approved by the State of Ohio, 
The International Building Code administrative requirements (Chapter 1) are not adoptive 
material and are replaced with administrative requirements promulgated by the State of Ohio.  
See OAC Chapter 4101:1-1.  The Ohio Building Code (OAC Chapters 4101:1-1 through [2-35] 
4101:1-35). is effective January 1, 2002 unless otherwise indicated. 
 
 (c) The 2005 edition of the Ohio Mechanical Code, or most current edition WHICH 
IS BASED ON THE INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE WITH DELETIONS, 
SUBSTITUTIONS AND AMENDMENTS AS APPROVED BY THE STATE OF OHIO 
adopted by Ohio Board of Building Standards, is adopted, regulating and controlling the design, 
construction, quality of materials, erection, installation, alteration, repair, location, relocation, 
addition to, use or maintenance of mechanical systems, and providing for the issuance of permits 
and the collection of fees.  Additional requirements and regulations as per Chapter 1337, 
Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning. 
 
 (d) Such standards shall relate to the conservation of energy, safety, and sanitation of 
buildings for their intended use and occupancy; however, note that plumbing is under the 
jurisdiction of the Butler County Health Department. 
 
 (e) Pursuant to §4.11 of the City Charter, copies of all codes adopted by reference 
shall be kept in the office of the Clerk of Council and shall be available to all interested persons.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1301.04  CODE REMEDIAL. 
 This Code is hereby declared to be remedial, and shall be construed to secure the 
beneficial interests and purposes thereof, which are public safety, health, and general welfare, 
through structural strength, stability, sanitation, adequate light and ventilation, and safety to life 
and property from fire and other hazards incidental to the construction, alteration, repair, 
removal, demolition, use and occupancy of buildings, structures or premises. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1301.05  SCOPE. 
 (a) The administrative provisions of this Code shall apply to the construction, 
alteration, repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location, maintenance, removal and demolition 
of every building or structure or any appurtenances connected or attached to such buildings or 
structures. 
 
 (b) No provisions of this Code shall be held to deprive any Federal or State agency, 
or any Municipal authority having jurisdiction, of any power or authority which it had on the 
effective date of this act or any remedy then existing for the enforcement of its orders. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

7                                                       Title and Scope                                         1301.08 
 
 
 1301.06  EXISTING STRUCTURES. 
 (a) Alterations or Repairs.  Alterations or repairs may be made to any structure 
without requiring the existing structure to comply with all the requirements of this Code, 
provided the alteration or repair conforms to that required of a new structure; however, if the 
structure is increased in floor area or number of stories, the entire structure shall be made to 
conform with the requirements of the applicable Code in respect to means of egress, fire 
protection, life and ventilation. 
 
 (b) Unsafe Alterations.  No building, or building service equipment therein, shall be 
so altered or repaired as to be less safe or sanitary. 
 
 (c) Change of Occupancy.  If the occupancy of an existing building is entirely 
changed, the building shall be made to conform to the requirements of the applicable Code for 
the new occupancy.  If the occupancy of only a portion of an existing building is changed and 
that portion is separated from the remainder, then only that portion need to be made to conform. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1301.07 MAINTENANCE. 
 All buildings, structures and service equipment, and all parts thereof, shall be maintained 
in a safe and sanitary condition.  All devices or safeguards which are required by this Code in a 
building when erected, altered, or repaired, shall be maintained in good working order.  The 
owner or his designated agent shall be responsible for the maintenance of buildings, structures 
and service equipment. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1301.08 VALIDITY AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. 
 This Code and the various parts and provisions hereof are hereby declared to be 
severable.  In the event any part or provision of this Code is held to be illegal or void, this shall 
not have the effect of making void or illegal any of the other parts or provisions hereof, and it 
shall be presumed that Council would have passed this Code without such illegal or invalid parts 
or provisions. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

 



 

 

9 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1303 
Definitions 

 
 
1303.01 Definitions.  
 
 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
  General definitions and interpretation - see ADM. 101.02 
  Subdivision definitions - see P. & Z. 1105.01 
  Zoning definitions - see P. & Z. Ch. 1133 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 1303.01  DEFINITIONS. 
 (a) Certain words and phrases as used in the Building Code are defined  as hereafter 
set forth in this section.  IN THE CODES ADOPTED IN SECTION 1301.3 (RESIDENTIAL 
CODE OF OHIO AND THE OHIO BUILDING CODE), OR OTHER PARTS OF THE 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF FAIRFIELD. 
 
 (b) Additional words not included in this section are defined in the codes adopted in 
Section 1301.03 (OBOA Residential Code and the Ohio Building Code), or other parts of the 
Codified Ordinances of Fairfield.  
 
  (1) “APPROVALS REQUIRED” MEANS ANY OWNER OR 

AUTHORIZED AGENT WHO INTENDS TO CONSTRUCT, 
ENLARGE, ALTER, REPAIR, MOVE, OR CHANGE THE 
OCCUPANCY OF A BUILDING OR STRUCTURE, OR PORTION 
THEREOF, OR TO ERECT, INSTALL, ENLARGE, ALTER, 
REPAIR, REMOVE, CONVERT OR REPLACE ANY 
ELECTRICAL, GAS, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING SYSTEM, 
OTHER BUILDING SERVICE EQUIPMENT, OR PIPING 
SYSTEM THE INSTALLATION OF WHICH IS REGULATED BY 
THIS CODE, OR TO CAUSE ANY SUCH WORK TO BE DONE, 
SHALL FIRST MAKE APPLICATION TO THE BUILDING 
SUPERINTENDENT AND OBTAIN THE REQUIRED APPROVAL. 
IN LIEU OF “PERMITS” USED IN CHAPTER 13, 
APPROVAL/APPROVALS SHALL BE SUBSTITUTED. "Area, 
building" means the maximum projected horizontal area of a building at or 
above grade including all enclosed extensions. 

  (2) “Area, floor gross” means the floor area within the perimeter of the 
outside walls of the building under consideration, without deduction for 
hallways, stairs, closets, thickness of walls, columns or other features. 

  (3) “Area, floor net” to determine the number of persons for whom exits are to 
be provided, the net floor area shall be the actual occupied area and shall 
not include unoccupied accessory areas or thickness of walls. 

  (4) "Areaway" means a space adjacent to the building open to the weather. 



 

 

  (5) "Attic, story" means a habitable attic which has a stairway as a means of 
access and egress and in which the ceiling area at a height of seven and 
one-third feet above the attic floor is not more than one-third the area of 
the floor next below. 



 

 

1303.01                                            BUILDING CODE                                            10 
 
 
  (6) "Balcony" means an exterior auxiliary floor space projecting from the 

exterior wall of an enclosed structure and supported by that structure, and 
unenclosed by other than a railing or parapet. 

  (7) "Bay window" means a window projecting beyond the wall line of the 
building and extending down to the foundations. See "oriel window". 

  (8) “Breezeway” means a covered passage between two buildings, open at the 
sides. 

  (9) "Building" means any structure built for the support, shelter or enclosure 
of persons, animals, chattels or property of any kind. The term building 
shall be construed as if followed by the words "or part thereof". When 
separated by dividing walls without opening, each portion of such building 
so separated shall be deemed a separate building. 

  (10) "Building Superintendent" (also Building Official) means the officer or 
other designated authority charged with the administration and 
enforcement of this Code, or his duly authorized representative. 

  (11) "Cellar" means that portion of a building the ceiling of which is entirely 
below grade or less than four feet six inches above grade. See "basement". 

  (12) "Certificate of occupancy" means a document issued by the Building 
Superintendent certifying that a building or structure and/or its use or the 
use of premises conform with this Code. 

  (13) "Chimney, masonry" means a chimney whose flue or flues are enclosed by 
masonry or reinforced concrete. 

  (14) “Chimney, metal" means a chimney whose flue is enclosed by metal. 
  (15) "City" means the municipal corporation of Fairfield, Ohio. 
  (16) "Curb level" means the elevation of the street grade as fixed by the 

Municipal authorities. Referring to a building, curb level means the 
elevation at that point of the street grade that is opposite the center of the 
wall nearest to the street and facing the street line. See "grade". 

  (17) "Conductors" or "roof leaders" means conveyors which carry the storm or 
rain water from the roof of buildings to the house or yard drain. The term 
"downspout" is usually applied to the vertical portion. 

  (18) “Crawlspace” means an unfinished, accessible space below a floor with a 
minimum clearance of eighteen inches to the bottom of the joists.  Spaces 
with headroom of 80 inches or more shall be considered basements. 

  (19) “Damproofing” means a treatment of a surface which retards the passage 
of water. 

  (20) "Dormer window" means a window belonging to a room in a roof, which 
consequently projects from it with a valley gutter on each side. 

  (21) "Family" means an individual, two or more persons related by blood, 
marriage or law, or a group of not more than any five persons living 
together in a dwelling unit.    

  (22) "Fire door" means a door and its assembly so constructed and assembled 
in place as to give the specified protection against the passage of fire. 

  (23) "Fire resistance rating" means the time in hours that the material or 
construction will withstand the standard fire exposure as determined by a 
fire test made in conformity with the current "Standard Methods of Fire 
Tests of Building Construction and Materials" of the American Society for 
Testing Materials (ASTM). 



 

 

11                                                         Definitions                                            1303.01 
 
 
  (24) "Fire separation wall" means a fire resistance rated assembly of materials 

having protected openings, and designed to restrict the spread of fire. 
  (25) "Fire wall" means a fire resistance rated wall, having protected openings, 

which restrict the spread of fire and extends continuously from the 
foundation to or through the roof. 

  (26) "Floor area" See Area 
  (27) "Grade" means the finished ground level adjoining the building at all 

exterior walls. 
  (28) “Grade Plane” means a reference plane representing the average of the 

finished ground level adjoining the building at all exterior walls. 
  (29) "Garage, private" means a garage used for storage purposes only and 

having a capacity of not more than four automobiles or trucks of three-
quarter ton or less capacity. 

  (30) "Height, building" means the vertical distance from grade plane to the 
average height of the highest roof surface. 

  (31) "Landing" means a platform in a flight of stairs between two stories; the 
termination of a stair. 

  (32) "Lintel" means the beam or girder placed over an opening in a wall which 
supports the wall construction above. 

  (33) "Non-combustible material" means any material defined as non-
combustible or which passes the test procedure for defining non-
combustibility of elementary materials as set forth in ASTM E136. 

  (34) "Occupancy" means the purpose for which a building is used or intended 
to be used. Change of occupancy is not intended to include change of 
tenants or proprietors where no change of use is involved. 

  (35) "Oriel window" means a window projected beyond and suspended from 
the wall of a building or structure or cantilevered from a wall. 

  (36) "Passageway" means an enclosed hallway or corridor connecting a 
required exit to a street or other open space connecting with a street. 

  (37) “Residential” means a construction or function related to family living 
and/or family living quarters (see Family). 

  (38) “Right of Way” means the land secured and reserved for public uses, such 
as highways, streets, sidewalks, utilities, etc. 

 (39) "Space heater" or "room heater" means any device designed and 
constructed for generation of heat from electricity or burning gases, liquid 
or solid fuels and used for heating all or any portion of a building. 

  (40) "Stairway" means one or more flights of stairs and the necessary landings 
and platforms connecting them to form a continuous and uninterrupted 
passageway from one story to another in a building or structure. 

  (41) "Story, half" means a space under a sloping roof which has the line or 
intersection of roof decking and wall face not more than three feet above 
the top floor level, and in which space, not more than two-thirds of the 
floor area, is finished off for use. A half-story containing independent 
apartment or living quarters shall be counted as a full story. 



 

 

1303.01                                            BUILDING CODE                                             12 
 
 
  (42) "Structural alterations" means any change in the supporting members of a 

building, such as bearing walls or partitions, columns, beams or girders, or 
any substantial change in the roof or in the exterior walls. 

  (43) "Structure" means anything constructed or erected, the use of which 
requires permanent location on the ground or which is attached to 
something having a permanent location on the ground. 

  (44) "Valuation" or "value" as applied to a building, means the estimated cost 
to replace the building in kind. 

  (45) "Veneer" means a facing of brick, concrete, metal, stone, tile or similar 
material attached to a wall for the purpose of providing ornamentation, 
protection, or insulation, but not counted as adding strength to the wall. 

  (46) "Ventilation" means the process of supplying or removing air by natural or 
mechanical means, to or from any space, usually in conjunction with 
steam and hot water or vapor installations. Such air may or may not have 
been conditioned. 

  (47) "Wall, cavity" means a wall built of masonry units or of plain concrete or 
a combination of these materials, so arranged as to provide an air space 
within the wall, and in which the inner and outer parts of the wall are tied 
together with metal ties. 

  (48) "Wall, faced" means a wall in which the masonry facing and backing are 
so bonded as to exert common action under load. 

  (49) "Wall, foundation" means a wall below the first floor extending below the 
adjacent ground level and serving as support for a wall, pier, column, or 
other structural part of a building. 

  (50) "Wall, non-bearing" (also Partition) means a wall which supports no load 
other than its own weight. 

  (51) "Wall, parapet" means that part of any wall entirely above the roof line. 
  (52) "Wall, retaining" means any wall used to resist the lateral displacement of 

any material. 
  (53) "Written notice" shall be considered to have been served if delivered in 

person to the individual or to the parties intended, or if delivered to or sent 
by registered mail to the address of the party to whom the notice is 
directed. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 

 



 

 

13 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1305 
Enforcement and Penalty 

 
 
1305.01 Building Division established; 
 qualifications. 
1305.02 Inspections. 
1305.03 Restriction on employees. 
1305.04 Records. 
1305.05 General duties of Building 
 Superintendent. 
1305.06 Right of entry. 
1305.07 Stop work orders. 
1305.08 Revocation of permits. 
1305.09 Unsafe buildings. 

1305.10 Examination of damaged 
 buildings. 
1305.11 Requirements not covered 
 by Code. 
1305.12 Alternate materials and 
 methods of construction. 
1305.13 Liability. 
1305.14 Monthly reports. 
1305.15 Proof of compliance; 
 testing. 
1305.99 Penalty. 
 

 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
  Power to regulate building erection - see Ohio R.C. 715.26, 715.29, 737.28 
  Power to license contractors - see Ohio R.C. 715.27 
  Board of Building Appeals - see BLDG. Ch. 1317 
 
 
  
 
 
 1305.01  BUILDING DIVISION ESTABLISHED; QUALIFICATIONS. 
 (a) There is hereby created and established a division of the Development Services 
Department known as the Building and Zoning Inspection Division, "Building and Zoning 
Division", for the enforcement of all laws and ordinances relating to all types of building, electric 
and heating permits, the erection, inspection, maintenance, repair and occupancy of all buildings, 
structures, and service equipment within the corporate limits of the City. The Division is to be 
controlled and administered by a Building Superintendent. 
 
 (b) The Building Superintendent shall have had at least ten years experience as an 
architect, engineer, building inspector, building contractor or superintendent of building 
construction, five years of which he shall have been in responsible charge of work. He shall be 
appointed in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Civil Service Commission. 
 
 (c) A Plans Examiner who is an architect or professional engineer registered in the 
State having at least five years of experience in building construction and design shall be 
designated to serve in the Building Division, WHO SHALL BE UNDER THE DIRECTION 
OF THE BUILDING SUPERINTENDENT. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

1305.02                                            BUILDING CODE                                             14 
 
 
 1305.02  INSPECTIONS. 
 (a) There shall be inspectors of building, electrical wiring,  heating, ventilation and 
air conditioning (HVAC), and Zoning, appointed in accordance with the rules and regulations of 
the Civil Service Commission, who shall be under the direction of the Building Superintendent. 
There shall be a Supervisor of Construction Inspection who shall act as assistant to the Building 
Superintendent and shall supervise the work of the inspectors of the Building Division and who 
shall perform any other duties delegated to him by the Building Superintendent. The Supervisor 
of Construction Inspection shall be appointed in accordance with the rules and regulations of the 
Civil Service Commission. 
 
 (b) The Supervisor of Construction Inspection is responsible for plans examination 
for the Division, and will review plans submitted with applications for permits for compliance 
with this Code, the Zoning Ordinance, and other City ordinances. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.03  RESTRICTIONS ON EMPLOYEES. 
 No officer or employee connected with the Division, except one whose only connection 
is a member of a board established by this act, shall be financially interested in the furnishing of 
labor, material, or appliances for construction, alteration, or maintenance of a building, or in the 
making of plans or of specifications therefor, unless he is the owner of such building. No such 
officer or employee shall engage in any work which is inconsistent with his duties or with the 
interests of the Division. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.04  RECORDS. 
 The Building Superintendent shall keep a proper record showing the location, value and 
character of every building, structure, or other work for which a certificate or permit is issued, 
and a copy of every report of inspection of a building, structure or work and it shall contain the 
name of the inspector making the inspection and the date thereof. All such records shall be open 
for public inspection for good and sufficient reasons at reasonable hours, but shall not be 
removed from the office of the Building Superintendent. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.05  GENERAL DUTIES OF BUILDING SUPERINTENDENT. 
 The Building Superintendent shall devote his whole time to the duties of his office. He 
shall receive applications required by this Code, issue permits and furnish the prescribed 
certificates. He shall examine premises for which permits have been issued and shall make 
necessary inspections to see that the provisions of law are complied with and that construction is 
prosecuted safely. He shall enforce all laws relating to the construction, alteration, repair, 
removal, demolition, equipment, use and occupancy, location, and maintenance of buildings, 
structures and service equipment, except as may be otherwise provided for. He shall, when 
requested by the Director of Development Services, or when the interests of the City so require, 
make investigations in connection with matters referred to in this Code and render written reports 
on the same. For the purposes of enforcing compliance with law, to remove illegal or unsafe 
conditions, to secure the necessary safeguards during construction, or to require adequate exit 
facilities in existing buildings and structures, he shall issue such notices or orders as may be 
necessary. He shall have the power to make rules and regulations to enforce provisions of this 
Code.  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

15                                                    Enforcement and Penalty                            1305.09 
 
 
 1305.06  RIGHT OF ENTRY. 
 The Building Superintendent shall enforce the provisions of this Code, and he or his duly 
authorized representative may enter any building, structure or premises in the City to perform 
any duty imposed upon him by this Code, and for such purposes, shall have the powers of a 
police officer of the City. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.07  STOP WORK ORDERS. 
 Upon notice from the Building Superintendent that the work on any building or structure 
is being done contrary to the provisions of this Code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such 
work shall be immediately stopped. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the 
owner of the property or to his agent or to the person doing the work, and shall state the 
conditions under which work may be resumed. Stop work notices shall be posted on the site. It 
shall be unlawful for any person other than the Building Superintendent or his designee to alter, 
tamper with, or remove the stop work notice. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.08  REVOCATION OF PERMITS. 
 The Building Superintendent may revoke a permit or approval issued under the provision 
of this Code in case there has been any false statement or misrepresentation as to a material fact 
in the application or plans on which the permit or approval was based.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.09  UNSAFE BUILDINGS. 
 All buildings, structures, or service equipment, which are unsafe, unsanitary or not 
provided with adequate egress, or which constitute a fire hazard, or are otherwise dangerous to 
human life, which in relation to existing use constitute a hazard to safety or health by reason of 
inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, obsolescence, or abandonment are, severally, in 
contemplation of this section, unsafe buildings. All such unsafe buildings are hereby declared 
illegal and shall be abated by repair and rehabilitation or by demolition in accordance with the 
following procedure: 
 (a) Whenever the Building Superintendent shall find any building, structure or 

service equipment or portion thereof to be unsafe as defined in this section, he 
shall, in accordance with established procedure for legal notices, give to the 
owner, agent or person in control of such building or structure written notice 
stating the defects thereof. This notice shall require the owner within a stated time 
either to complete specified repairs or improvements, or to demolish and remove 
the building, structure or service equipment or portion thereof. 

 (b) If necessary, such notice shall also require the building, structure, or service 
equipment, or portion thereof, to be vacated and/or shut down forthwith and not 
reoccupied and/or restarted until the specified repairs and improvements are 
completed, inspected, and approved by the Building Superintendent. The Building 
Superintendent shall cause to be posted at each entrance to such building a notice: 
“CONDEMNED AS A DANGEROUS AND UNSAFE STRUCTURE” "THIS 
BUILDING IS UNSAFE AND ITS USE OR OCCUPANCY HAS BEEN 
PROHIBITED BY THE BUILDING SUPERINTENDENT." Such notice shall 
remain posted until the required repairs are made or demolition is completed. No 
person, firm or corporation or their agents or other servants shall remove such 
notice without written permission of the Building Superintendent nor shall any 
person enter the building except for the purpose of making the required repairs or 
of demolishing same. 



 

 

1305.10                                            BUILDING CODE                                              16 
 
 
 (c) The owner, agent or person in control shall have the right, except in cases of 

emergency, to appeal from the decision of the Building Superintendent as 
provided hereinafter, and to appear before the Board of Building Appeals at a 
specified time and place to show cause why he should not comply with the notice. 

 (d) In case the owner, agent or person in control cannot be found within the stated 
time limit, or if such owner, agent or person in control shall fail, neglect or refuse 
to comply with notice to repair, rehabilitate or to demolish and remove such 
building, structure or service equipment, or portion thereof, the Building 
Superintendent after having ascertained the cost, shall cause such building or 
structure or service equipment, or portion thereof, to be demolished, secured or 
required to remain vacant, or be shut down. 

 (e) The decision of the Building Superintendent shall be final in cases of emergency 
which, in his opinion, involve imminent danger of human life or health. He shall 
promptly cause such building, structure, or service equipment, or portion thereof, 
to be made safe or removed. For this purpose, he may at once enter such structure 
or land on which it stands, or abutting land or structure, with such assistance and 
at such cost as he may deem necessary. He may vacate adjacent structures and 
protect the public by appropriate fence or such other means as may be necessary, 
and for this purpose may close a public or private way. 

 (f) Cost incurred under subsections (d) and (e) hereof shall be paid out of the City 
Treasury on certificate of the Building Superintendent. Such costs shall be 
charged to the owner of the premises involved and shall be collected in the 
manner provided by law. (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 

 
 1305.10  EXAMINATION OF DAMAGED BUILDINGS. 
 The Building Superintendent shall examine or cause to be examined every building 
reported as dangerous or damaged, and shall make a written record of such examination, stating 
the nature and estimated amount of the damage, and the purpose for which the building was 
used.  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.11 REQUIREMENTS NOT COVERED BY CODE. 
 Any requirement necessary for the strength or stability of an existing or proposed 
building or structure or for the safety of the occupants thereof not specifically covered by this 
Code, may be determined and ordered by the Building Superintendent. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.12  ALTERNATE MATERIALS AND METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION. 
 (a) The provisions of this Code are not intended to prevent the use of any material or 
method of construction not specifically prescribed by this Code, provided such alternate is 
included in Chapter One, Section 118114. and Chapter Thirty-five of the OBC.    
 
 (b) The Board of Building Appeals shall approve any other alternate not covered 
above, provided they find that the proposed design is satisfactory and that the material, method, 
or work offered is for the purpose intended, at least the equivalent of that prescribed in the Code 
in quality, strength, effectiveness, fire-resistance, durability and safety. The Board of Building 
Appeals shall require that sufficient evidence or proof be submitted to substantiate any claims 
that may be made regarding its use. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

17                                                    Enforcement and Penalty                             1305.99 
 
 
 1305.13  LIABILITY. 
 (a) Any officer or employee or member of the Board of Building Appeals charged 
with the enforcement of this Code when acting in good faith, and without malice, in the 
discharge of his duties, and within the scope of his authority under this Code, shall not thereby 
render himself liable personally, and he is hereby relieved from all personal liability for any 
damage that may occur to persons or property as a result of any act required or permitted in the 
discharge of his duties under this Code. 
 
 (b) Any suit brought against any officer or employee because of such act performed 
by him in enforcement of any provision of this Code shall be defended by the Department of 
Law until the final termination of the proceedings. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.14  MONTHLY REPORTS. 
 The Building Superintendent shall make a monthly report on or before the tenth day of 
each month, of the number of permits or certificates issued during the preceding calendar month 
and the estimated value of construction of such buildings, structures or work for which the 
permits or certificates were issued, and any further information that may be required.  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.15  PROOF OF COMPLIANCE; TESTING. 
 The Building Superintendent may require tests or test reports as proof of compliance with 
the provisions of this Code. Tests, if required, are to be made at the expense of the owner or his 
agent, by an approved testing laboratory or other approved agency. Copies of such test reports or 
the results of all such tests shall be kept on file in the office of the Building Superintendent.  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1305.99  PENALTY. 
 No person shall locate, erect, construct, reconstruct, enlarge, change, maintain or use any 
building, equipment, or land in violation of any of the provisions of this Code, or any 
amendment or supplement thereto adopted by Council. Any person, firm or corporation violating 
any of the provisions of this Code or any amendment or supplement thereto, shall be deemed 
guilty of a misdemeanor of the third degree and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not more 
than five hundred dollars ($500.00) or imprisoned not more than sixty days, or both. Each and 
every day during which such violation continues shall constitute a separate offense. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 



 

 

19 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1309 
Permits 

 
 
1309.01 When required. 
1309.02 Form; deposit. 
1309.03 Plans. 
1309.04 Plot plans. 
1309.05 Time limit on applications. 
1309.06 Examination of plans. 
1309.07 Affidavits. 
1309.08 Action on application. 

1309.09 Conditions of permit. 
1309.10 Plans to be kept at site. 
1309.11 Permits issued on affidavit. 
1309.12 Foundation permits. 
1309.13 Shell permit. 
1309.14 1309.04 Violation of this Code. 
1309.15 1309.05 Maintenance of permit 
premises. 
 

 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
   Fees - see BLDG. Ch. 1311 
   Craft licenses - see BLDG. Ch. 1315 
   Board of Building Appeals - see BLDG. Ch. 1317 
 
 
 
 
 
 1309.01  WHEN REQUIRED. 
 (a) Whoever desires to construct, excavate for, enlarge, alter, repair, move, demolish 
or change the occupancy of a building or structure, or to install, alter, or repair wiring, fire 
extinguishing apparatus, engines, dynamos and other mechanical or electrical equipment; or to 
install or repair a furnace, heater, incinerator, or other heat producing apparatus, fuel tanks, 
fences over four feet in height, signs, swimming pools over eighteen 24 (TWENTY-FOUR) 
inches in depth, awnings; erection and connection of radio and television antenna, or other 
appurtenances the installation of which is regulated by this Code or the Zoning Ordinance; or to 
cause any such work to be done, shall first make application to the Building Superintendent and 
obtain the required permit therefor, except that certain mechanical permits may only be applied 
for by duly authorized master or industrial license REGISTRATION holders or by owner-
occupants of single-family residences hereinafter provided for in this Code. 
  (1) Each separate building or structure shall require a separate permit. 
  (2) The application shall be signed by the owner or his authorized agent; and 

if signed by other than the owner, it shall verify that the proposed work is 
authorized by the owner and that the applicant is authorized to make such 
application and obtain such permit. 

 



 

 

1309.02                                            BUILDING CODE                                             20 
 
 
 (b) Ordinary minor repairs where the cost of the work shall not exceed three hundred 
dollars ($300.00) may be made without filing an application or obtaining a permit, except that 
ordinary minor repairs shall not include the cutting away of any wall, partition or portion thereof, 
the removal or cutting of any structural beam or bearing support, or the removal or change of any 
required means of egress, or rearrangement of parts of a structure affecting the exit requirements; 
nor shall minor repairs include addition to, alteration of, replacement or relocation of any 
standpipe, water supply, sewer, drainage, drain leader, gas, soil, waste, vent or similar piping, 
electric wiring or mechanical or other work affecting public health or general safety.  In addition, 
a permit is required for re-roofing or siding a structure. 
 
 (c) Manufacturing plants, as herein defined, having a bona fide maintenance 
department and employing a graduate engineer, or employing a plant engineer having at least ten 
years experience, whose name shall be on file with the Building Superintendent, may secure an 
annual permit for all work covered by this Code and performed by the maintenance department 
at their manufacturing site, except for new building construction and additions or alterations 
affecting more than thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the physical structure of an 
existing building.  Such permit may be secured during the month of January, shall be in lieu of 
all other charges hereunder, and the fee shall be three hundred fifty dollars ($350.00) per year for 
those plants employing more than 2,000 employees and one hundred seventy-five dollars 
($175.00) per year for those plants employing less than 2,000 employees.  Such plant shall, at all 
reasonable times, be subject to inspection by the Building Superintendent, the Fire Chief and the 
Board of Health representative to assure compliance with the provisions of this Code.   
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.02  FORM; DEPOSIT. 
 (a) Each application for a permit, with the required deposit shall be filed with the 
Building Superintendent on a form furnished by him, and shall contain a general description of 
the proposed work and its location.  The application shall be signed by the owner or his 
authorized agent.  A twenty-five dollar ($25.00) deposit for residential permits and   A deposit in 
accordance with the following schedule for commercial and industrial permits will be required 
with all applications.  This deposit will apply toward the permit fee, except that it will be 
forfeited if the permit is not picked up within sixty days after the date of application.  The 
deposit amount for commercial and industrial permits shall be as follows: 
 
 ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST   DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
 
 $0-10,000 $50.00 
 $10,000 - 50,000 100.00 
 $50,000 - 100,000 200.00 
 $100,000 - 500,000 300.00 
 $500,000 - 1,000,000 500.00 
 over $1,000,000 1,000.00 
 
 (b) Each application for a permit shall indicate the proposed occupancy of all parts of 
the building and of that portion of the site or lot, if any, not covered by the building and shall 
contain such other information as may be required by the Building Superintendent. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

21                                                              Permits                                            1309.03 
 
 
 1309.03  PLANS. 
 (a) If a permit is required, and when required by the Building Superintendent, two or 
more copies of drawings to scale with sufficient specification data to determine with clarity and 
detail the nature and character of the work, shall accompany each application. Such plans and 
specifications shall contain information, in the form of notes or otherwise, as to the quality of 
materials, where quality is essential to conformity with the applicable Code. Such information 
shall be specific, and this Code shall not be cited as a whole or in part, nor shall the term legal or 
its equivalent be used as a substitute for specific information. One copy of one, two and three-
family structure plans shall be retained by the Building Division for two years after completion 
of the structure and will be disposed of unless called for by the owner. Commercial and 
industrial plans are retained permanently. (See Section 1309.10.) 
 
 (b) The Building Superintendent may require any reasonable details and 
computations and stress diagrams and other data necessary to describe the construction and the 
basis of calculations. 
  (1) Plans Required PLANS shall be drawn to scale and shall be sufficiently 

clear, comprehensive, detailed and legible when submitted to the building 
official so that, together with any accompanying specifications and data, a 
person who is competent in such matters can determine whether or not the 
proposed building, addition or alteration and all proposed building 
equipment will conform in safety and sanitation to all applicable 
provisions of this THE APPLICABLE Code and City ordinances. 
PLANS SHALL BE SUBMITTED IN TRIPLICATE AS WELL AS 
IN ELECTRONIC/DIGITAL FORMAT WHICH MEETS THE 
STANDARDS AS SET BY THE BUILDING SUPERINTENDENT. 
THE COST TO SCAN DRAWINGS INTO AN 
ELECTRONIC/DIGITAL FORMAT SHALL BE ASSESSED TO 
THE PERMIT APPLICANT.  COST TO BE DETERMINED BY 
THE BUILDING SUPERINTENDENT. 

  (2) If substantive changes to the building are contemplated after first plan 
submission, or during construction, those changes must be submitted to 
the Building Superintendent for review and approval prior to those 
changes being executed. The Building Superintendent may waive this 
requirement in the case of an emergency repair, or similar instance. 

  (3) Plans, when submitted to the Building Superintendent for review shall 
include: 

   A. A plot plan showing street location; the location of the proposed 
building and all existing buildings on the site; including setback 
and sideyard dimensions; distances between all buildings; and 
location and sizes of all utilities lines and/or easements. (See 
Section 1309.04 regarding plot diagram.) 

   B. Floor plans, including plans of full or partial basements or cellars 
and full or partial attics. Floor plans must show all relevant 
information such as door swings, stairs and ramps, windows, 
shafts, etc.; and must be sufficiently dimensioned to describe all 
relevant space sizes. 

   C. All elevations necessary to completely describe the exterior of the 
building including floor to floor dimensions. 

   D. Cross sections, wall sections and detail sections, to scale, as may 
be required to describe the general building construction including 
wall, ceiling, floor and roof materials and construction; and details 
which may be necessary to describe typical connections, etc. 



 

 

1309.04                                            BUILDING CODE                                             22 
 
 
   E. Complete structural description of the building on the above 

drawings or on separate drawings including size and location of all 
principal structural elements. In the case of subterranean structure, 
a table of live loads used in the design of the building and 
computations, stress diagrams and other data sufficient to show 
correctness of plans is required. 

   F. Complete description of the mechanical and electrical systems of 
the building on the above drawings or on separate drawings, 
including plumbing schematics and principal plumbing, fire 
suppression systems, heating, ventilation and air conditioning duct 
and piping layouts and lighting and power equipment layouts, 
when required by the Building Superintendent. 

 
 (c) No department, bureau, board, commission, officer or agent of the City shall 
accept, file or approve any plans and specifications for any building work or improvement in the 
City or issue or grant any permit pursuant thereto, unless the plans and specifications have been 
prepared or approved by a person legally qualified by registration to prepare plans and 
specifications for buildings, works and improvements under the laws of the State. Any 
acceptance, filing, and/or approval of plans and specifications for buildings, works or 
improvements or the issuing or granting of any permits contrary to the provisions of this 
regulation shall be void. All plans, surveys, and specifications shall bear the professional seal of 
the person responsible for their preparation or approval, such as structural engineer, architect or 
surveyor. With the exception of plot plans which must be prepared by a surveyor, nothing in the 
above paragraph shall be held or construed as applying to the construction, repair or remodeling 
of any of the following: 
  (1) Single-family and two and three-family dwellings and the auxiliary 

buildings thereto, except for industrialized units which are governed by 
the OBC. 

  (2) Repairs and alterations of buildings which do not adversely affect health, 
safety or structural stability. 

  (3) Repairs and alterations within an industrial plant. 
  (4) Alterations or repairs to mechanical branches of existing buildings. 
Provided, however, that the drawings for all such exempt buildings shall clearly designate the 
true author thereof and the true ownership of the property, and shall state under which of the 
above provisions exemption is claimed. 
 
 (d) Any acceptance, filing and/or approval of plans, surveys and specifications for 
buildings, works or improvements or the issuing or the granting of any permit contrary to the 
provisions of this section shall be void. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.04  PLOT PLANS. 
 (a) All applications for building permits for one, two and three-family dwellings shall 
be accompanied by a plot plan in triplicate and all applications for building permits under the 
OBC shall be accompanied by eight copies of the plot plan, with the following site plan 
requirements: 
  (1) Vicinity map; 
  (2) Site plan (scale between 1"=30' and 1"=100'); 
  (3) Zoning of property; 
  (4) Name of submitted project; 



 

 

23                                                              Permits                                            1309.06 
 
 
  (5) Owner, engineer, developer, surveyor, architect when applicable; 
  (6) Surveyor's certifications; 
  (7) Legal boundaries and survey markers; 
  (8) Contour map with 5 foot intervals with drainage arrows shown; 
  (9) Existing streets, public rights of way, and easements; 
  (10) Existing buildings; 
  (11) Waterways/ponds; 
  (12) Trees with 6 inch caliper or greater; 
  (13) Floodways (Federal Insurance Rate Map) data; 
  (14) Proposed street/curb cuts; 
  (15) Off-street parking; 
  (16) All walkways and bikeways; 
  (17) Open space/recreational area; 
  (18) Screening and buffering dimensions/materials; 
  (19) Final grade plan; 
  (20) Utilities plan; 
  (21) Drainage/sedimentation/erosion/retention/detention plans, where 

applicable; 
  (22) Landscaping plan; 
  (23) Building locations and first floor elevation; 
  (24) Finished grade at the building corners; 
  (25) Floor plan square footages for Planned Unit Development final 

development plan; 
  (26) Lot area; 
and such other information as may be necessary to provide for the enforcement of this Code and 
the Zoning Ordinance. A careful record of such applications and plot plans shall be kept in the 
office of the Building Superintendent. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.05  TIME LIMIT ON APPLICATION. 
 An application for any permit shall be deemed to have been abandoned sixty days after 
the date of filing, unless the permit shall have been issued before then; provided that, for cause, 
one or more extensions of time for periods not exceeding ninety days each may be allowed by 
the Building Superintendent. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.06  EXAMINATION OF PLANS. 
 The Building Superintendent shall examine or cause to be examined each application for 
a permit and the plans and computations filed therewith and shall ascertain by such examination 
whether the construction indicated and described is in accordance with the requirements of this 
Code and all other pertinent laws or ordinances. When the Building Superintendent finds that 
plans submitted to him for approval conform to the applicable provisions of this Code, he shall 
endorse or stamp such plans as approved. The Building Superintendent may issue a partial plan 
approval for construction of a foundation or any other part of a building or structure before 
complete plans and specifications for the entire building or structure have been submitted, 
provided that such approvals are issued for various stages in sequence of construction and that all 
information and data required by this Code for that portion of the building or structure has been 
submitted. The holder of a partial plan approval may proceed only to the point for which 
approval has been given at his own risk and without assurance that approval for the entire 
building or structure will be granted. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

1309.07                                            BUILDING CODE                                             24 
 
 
 1309.07  AFFIDAVITS. 
 If the plans submitted conform to the laws as to egress, type of construction, and general 
arrangement and are accompanied by drawings showing the structural design and by a statement 
that the plans and design conform to the requirements of law as to strength, stresses, strains, 
loads and stability and are filed and sworn to by a registered architect or engineer, the Building 
Superintendent may, without further examination, accept such affidavit; provided that the 
registered architect or engineer who made such affidavit agrees to submit to the Building 
Superintendent, on the completion of the structure, a certification that to the best of his 
knowledge, the structure has been erected in accordance with the requirements of this Code.  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.08  ACTION ON APPLICATION. 
 If the Building Superintendent is satisfied that the work prescribed in an application for a 
permit and the plans filed therewith conforms to the requirements of this Code and other 
pertinent laws and ordinances, he shall issue a permit therefor to the applicant. If the application 
for a permit and the plans filed therewith describe work which does not conform to the 
requirements of this Code or other pertinent laws or ordinances, the Building Superintendent 
shall not issue such permit. Such refusal shall, when requested, be in writing and shall contain 
the reasons therefor. Action by the Building Superintendent must be completed on one, two and 
three-family permits within ten working days and on all other permits within thirty calendar 
days.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.09  CONDITIONS OF PERMIT. 
 A permit issued shall be construed to be a license to proceed with the work and shall not 
be construed as authority to violate, cancel, alter or set aside any of the provisions of this Code; 
nor shall such issuance of a permit prevent the Building Superintendent from thereafter requiring 
a correction of errors in plans or in construction, or of violation of this Code. Any permit issued 
shall become invalid unless the work authorized by it shall have been commenced within sixty 
days after its issuance or if the work authorized by such permit is suspended or abandoned for a 
period of 180 days after the time the work is commenced; provided that, for cause, one or more 
extensions of time, for periods not exceeding ninety days each may be allowed in writing by the 
Building Superintendent. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.10  PLANS TO BE KEPT AT SITE. 
 When the Building Superintendent issues a permit, he shall endorse in writing, or stamp, 
all sets of plans, "Approved". One set of plans so approved shall be retained by the Building 
Superintendent and the other sets shall be returned to the applicant. The approved plans shall be 
at the site of the work and shall be open to inspection by the Building Superintendent or his 
authorized representative. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

25                                                              Permits                                           1309.15 
 
 
 1309.11  PERMITS ISSUED ON AFFIDAVIT. 
 Whenever a permit is to be issued in reliance upon an affidavit as provided in Section 
1309.07, the Building Superintendent shall require that the architect or the engineer who signed 
the affidavit or made the plans or computations shall supervise the construction of such work and 
be responsible for conformity with the approved plan, and forthwith upon its completion make 
and file with the Building Superintendent a written affidavit that the work has been done in 
conformity with the approved plans and the structural provisions of the Code to the best of their 
knowledge and belief. Whenever the work to be covered by a permit involves construction 
which, in the opinion of the Building Superintendent, is hazardous or complex, the Building 
Superintendent shall require the owner to employ a competent person or agency, or in the 
situation involving a permit issued in reliance of an affidavit as provided in Section 1309.07, the 
architect or engineer who signed the affidavit, to supervise such work and be responsible for its 
conformity with the approved plans and forthwith upon its completion make and file with the 
Building Superintendent a written affidavit that the work has been done in conformity with the 
approved plans and structural provisions of the Code to the best of their knowledge and belief. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.12  FOUNDATION PERMITS. 
 When application for permit to erect or enlarge a building has been filed, and pending 
issuance of such permit, the Building Superintendent may, at his discretion, issue a special 
permit for the foundations of such buildings. The holder of such a special permit shall proceed at 
his own risk and without assurance that a permit for the superstructure will be granted.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.13  SHELL PERMIT. 
 When application for a permit to erect or enlarge an industrial or commercial building has 
been filed, and pending issuance of such permit, the Building Superintendent may, at his 
discretion, issue a special permit for the foundation and shell provided all building plans have 
been submitted and approved except mechanical (HVAC, electrical and plumbing).  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.14  1309.04  VIOLATION OF THIS CODE. 
 Any person, firm or corporation who is in violation of this Code and has been notified to 
correct the violation may be refused a permit for any future work to be done in the City until the 
violation has been corrected. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1309.15  1309.05  MAINTENANCE OF PERMIT PREMISES. 
 (a) Every person, firm or corporation to whom a building permit has been issued 
under this Code shall until the issuance of a final occupancy permit be responsible for and shall 
cause the permit premises to be maintained at all times in accordance with the following 
requirements: 
  (1) All paper, trash, plastic and any other material which is subject to being 

blown about or off the permit premises shall at all times be placed or 
secured in such a manner that it does not blow about or off the permit 
premises. 



 

 

1309.15                                            BUILDING CODE                                              26 
 
 
  (2) All uprooted trees and bushes, branches, limbs, trash, construction debris 

and litter as defined in Section 557.02(b) shall be removed from the permit 
premises at least once in every two week period and shall not be burned or 
buried on the permit premises. Such trash, construction debris and litter 
shall be removed to an appropriate landfill or other approved facility. The 
building permit holder shall be responsible at all times for controlling such 
material on-site and ensuring that there are no adverse impacts to water 
quality. 

  (3) Sedimentation control devices and measures shall be installed and 
maintained at all times in accordance with the approved plot plan, if any, 
and in such a manner that all mud and sediment is contained on the permit 
premises and not permitted to escape onto adjoining property or public 
right of way. These sedimentation control measures shall include, but are 
not limited to, a driveway base or temporary construction entrance for 
each lot under development.  On residential development lots, the 
driveway base should be established no later than during the foundation 
construction phase using ODOT Type 304 aggregate base material (or 
approved equivalent).  On commercial/industrial development lots, a 
temporary construction entrance should be established during the initial 
site grading operation using 2-inch stone (or approved equivalent).   

  (4) The building permit holder shall be responsible under the provisions of 
Section 905.03(b) for the immediate removal and cleaning and/or the cost 
of such removal and cleaning of all mud and other sediment which comes 
from the permit premises by any means onto any street, alley or public 
ground. 

 
 (b) As provided in Section 1305.07, the Building Superintendent has the authority to 
issue a stop work order for failure to maintain any site in accordance with the requirements listed 
above.   
(Ord.   7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 



 

 

27 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1311 
Fees 

 
 
1311.01 Payment required before 1311.03 Schedule of fees. 
 permit issued; penalty. 1311.04 Estimate of cost of work. 
1311.02 Record of permits and 
 fees. 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
  Planning fee schedule for plats; conditional use; planned 
   unit developments and lot splits - see ADM. 141.01 
  Water and sewer hookup fees - see S.U. & P.S. Ch. 921, 
   App. B; 925.05(e) 
 
 
 
 
 
 1311.01  PAYMENT REQUIRED BEFORE PERMIT ISSUED; PENALTY. 
 (a) No permit shall be issued until the fees prescribed in this chapter shall have been 
paid.  Nor shall an amendment to a permit be approved until the additional fee, if any, due to an 
increase in the estimated cost of the building structure, shall have been paid. 
 
 (b) The fees to be paid shall be determined by the Division of Building and Zoning 
according to the schedule in Section 1311.03, and shall be noted on the application, when 
approved, for the issuing of the permit.  Such fee shall be paid to the City and receipt for the 
same shall be given. 
 
 (c) FOR ALL PLAN REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL 
STRUCTURES, THERE SHALL BE AN ADDITIONAL FEE EQUAL TO TEN 
PERCENT (10%) OF THE FEE AS DETERMINED IN 1311.03 AND SHALL BE 
CHARGED AND PAID BY THE APPLICANT AT THE TIME THE PERMIT IS 
ISSUED. ANY THIRD PARTY PLAN REVIEW COSTS SHALL BE CHARGED AND 
PAID FOR BY THE APPLICANT AT THE TIME THE PERMIT IS ISSUED. 
 
 (c)  (d)  If any work is commenced on a building or structure before obtaining the 
necessary permit from the City, unless reasonable doubt exists as to the requirement of a permit, 
the fees below shall be The greater of double the permit fee or $100.00 for the first offense. The 
greater of double the permit fee or $200.00 for the second and additional offense(s). However, 
the payment of such double fee shall not relieve any person from fully complying with all the 
requirements of this Code, nor shall payment exempt the person from any other penalty 
prescribed herein.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1311.02  RECORD OF PERMITS AND FEES. 
 The Building Superintendent shall keep accurate records of all permits issued, the names 
of all persons receiving permits, permit fees, and other moneys and dates thereof. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

1311.03                                        BUILDING CODE                                                28 
 
 
 1311.03  SCHEDULE OF FEES. 
 For all the buildings, structures or alterations and items of the building industry not 
covered by a unit permit fee, which require a permit as set forth in Chapter 1309, the applicant 
shall, at the time of issuance of the permit, pay the fee set forth in the following schedule: 

Buildings, structures or alterations and unlisted items of the building industry: 
 (a) When the valuation of the work does not exceed three hundred dollars 

($300.00), no permit shall be required unless an inspection is required, in which 
case there shall be a twenty-five dollar ($25.00) fee. THE MINIMUM 
INSPECTION FEE SHALL BE A FORTY DOLLAR ($40.00) FEE FOR 
RESIDENTIAL AND AN EIGHTY DOLLAR ($80.00) FEE FOR 
COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION. 

 (b) The following listed items do not require a building permit, but such list shall 
not be viewed as all inclusive: 

  Driveways, walks, fences four feet in height or less, (See Section 
1180.04(b)(1)), landscaping other than retaining walls, painting and papering for 
maintenance purposes, storm or screen doors, storm or screen windows, and any 
other items approved by the Board of Building Appeals.  

 (c) No permit fee is required, but application must be made and plans filed for 
inspection and recording purposes, for buildings erected by the State or any 
taxing subdivision thereof; and for parochial, elementary and high school 
buildings, when such buildings are erected and are to be used exclusively for 
such school purposes and for residential flood protection projects. 

 (d) Building permit fees shall be as follows: 
 

One, Two and Three-Family Residences 
and Accessory Buildings or Structures 

 
 Estimated Cost  Permit Fee 
 $300.00 to $100,000 $3000 TO $99,999  1/3 of one and one half percent  

(1.5%) plus $15.00 (COST OF JOB 
X .006) + $22.00 

 
 
 $100,000 and up ABOVE  1/5 of one and one-half percent 

(1.5%) of amount over $100,000 plus 
$500.00 (COST OF JOB X .004) + 
$500.00 

 
Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family Buildings 

and Accessory Buildings or Structures 
 
 
 Estimated Cost  Permit Fee 
 $300.00 to $100,000 $4000 TO $99,999  3/5 of one and one-half percent 

(1.5%) plus $15.00 (COST OF JOB 
X .009) + $44.00 

 
 $100,000 and up ABOVE  1/5 of one and one-half percent 

(1.5%) of amount over $100,000 plus 
$900.00 (COST OF JOB X .004) + 
$900.00 

 (e) If mechanical work is to be performed, the cost of such work should not be 
included in the estimated cost. 

 (f) An application for a permit for mechanical work shall be made by the licensed 
masters of their respective branches and paid for by them.  A homeowner-



 

 

occupant who is doing his own work shall apply and pay for a permit at the 
same rate as the licensed masters. 

 
 



 

 

29                                                        Fees                                                       1311.03 
 
 
 (g) Repair of a building shall require a permit with fees in accordance with 

subsections (d) and (e) hereof, unless exempted under subsections (a), (b) or (c) 
hereof.  Fire and roof replacement, partial or complete, requires a permit as in 
subsections (d) and (e) hereof. 

 (E) When additional inspections are required due to a request for inspection before 
job is ready, or extra inspections are needed due to defective work or inferior 
material, a charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) FIFTY DOLLARS ($50.00) 
shall be made for each additional visit to the project, other than regular 
inspections. THE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THIRD PARTY 
INSPECTIONS REQUIRED TO DETERMINE COMPLIANCE WITH 
APPLICABLE CODES WILL BE CHARGED TO THE PERMIT 
HOLDER. 

 (i) Tanks.  Each tank intended for use as a storage tank for any type inflammable or 
combustible liquid or gas, or for oil, or any chemical listed by NFPA in the 
hazardous chemical category, or for any material designated by the Fire Chief of 
the City to be dangerous, shall require a permit as per the following schedule: 

 
 Capacity in Gallons Per Tank Fee 
 300 or less $30.00 
 Over 300 to 1,000 40.00 
 For each additional 1,000 10.00 
 
  Procurement of the required permit does not relieve the installer or owner of any 

fuel storage tank for providing all requirements for the installation as designated 
by the Building and/or Fire Code. 

 
 (F) Awnings and Signs.        Fee 
  Awnings :  For each awning 
  overhanging an area used 
  by the public $25.00 
  Signs AND AWNINGS:  
  Minimum Fee $25.00 $40.00 
  The permit fee to be  
  based upon the estimated 
  cost (commercial). AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION (D) ABOVE 
 (G) Tents. $25.00 $40.00 
 (l) Moving of Buildings. 
  For a permit to move a  
  building through or across 
  any public street, alley 
  or highway. $100.00 
  All other moving of 
  buildings. $50.00 
 (H) Demolition or Wrecking of 
  Buildings. 
  One story building  $25.00 $30.00 per 1000 square feet 
 (n) Heating, Ventilation and 
  Air Conditioning See Chapter 1337. 
 (o) Electrical. See Chapter 1335. 
 (p) Plumbing.  Butler County 
  Health Department. 
 



 

 

1311.04                                          BUILDING CODE                                               30 
 
   Fee 
 
 (q) Radio and Television Antennas. 
  Based upon the estimated 
  cost of the job, residential 
  or commercial. $25.00 minimum 
 (r) Gas Piping. 
  Residential $35.00 
  Commercial $35.00 plus $3.50 per opening 
 (s) Occupancy of Streets.  With 
  material, or barricading or 
  partitioning off streets, 
  sidewalks or alleys during 
  building construction: 
  Three consecutive days None 
  For each thirty days or 
  fraction thereof $25.00 
 (I) Renewal of Any Permits. $25.00 
 (J) Change of Occupancy 
  Inspection. $50.00 
 (v) Change in Plans.  A minimum 
  fee of $25.00 will be charged 
  for a substantial change in 
  plans previously submitted 
  and reviewed for any building. 
 (w) Curb Cut Permit.   
  Residential  $25.00 
  Commercial/Industrial $50.00 
 (x) Fire Protection Systems, Sprinklers, 
  Underground Fire Mains and Standpipe. 
  The fee shall be based on the estimated 
  cost of the work: 
  ESTIMATED COST        PERMIT FEE 
  $300.00 to $100,000      3/5 of 1.5% PLUS $15.00 
  $100,000 and up             1/5 of 1.5% of amount over $100,000 plus 
                                      $900.00 
 (y) Any Other Requested. 
  Inspection. $25.00 
 (z) In addition to the fees provided in subsections (a) through (x) above, for all 

permits or fees involving plan submittal for commercial or industrial structures, 
an additional fee for plan review cost equal to ten percent (10%) of the fee stated 
above shall be charged and paid by the applicant at the time the permit is issued.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 

 (K) AN APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT FOR MECHANICAL OR                  
ELECTRICAL WORK SHALL BE MADE BY THE REGISTERED 
CONTRACTOR OF THEIR RESPECTIVE BRANCHES AND PAID FOR 
BY THEM USING THE SCHEDULE BELOW. A HOMEOWNER-
OCCUPANT WHO IS DOING HIS OWN WORK SHALL APPLY AND 
PAY FOR A PERMIT AT THE SAME RATE AS THE REGISTERED 
CONTRACTOR. 

 
  MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL FEE CALCULATION SCHEDULE 
 

1. ALL MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL AND FIRE 
SUPPRESSION/ALARM IMPROVEMENTS AND OR RENOVATIONS 
SHALL FOLLOW THE SCHEDULE OF FEES AS DESCRIBED IN 



 

 

SECTION 1311.03 (d). 
 

 2. THE FOLLOWING FEES FOR MISCELLANEOUS MECHANICAL  
AND ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIONS ARE HEREBY ENACTED: 
 

a. HVAC STANDARD FEES 
 

 RESIDENTIAL FURNACE OR A/C  $40.00 
 RESIDENTIAL FURNNACE AND A/C  $60.00 
 

b. ELECTRIC STANDARD FEES 
 

 NEW HOUSE  $125.00 
 RESIDENTIAL REMODEL OR ADDITION $  75.00   
 PER UNIT MULTI-FAMILY  $  70.00 
 TEMPORARY SERVICE/POLE RELEASE $  40.00 
 ABOVE GROUND SWIMMING POOL WIRING $  25.00 
 INGROUND SWIMMING POOL WIRING $  40.00 
 INGROUND SWIMMING POOL BONDING $  40.00 
 MOBILE HOME  $  40.00 
 
 1311.04  ESTIMATE OF COST OF WORK. 

 (a) Before a permit shall be granted, the Building Superintendent shall estimate the 
value of the proposed work.  The method of estimating shall be by square footage.  These figures 
are to be reviewed and revised each January and July. 
 
 (b) On "cost plus" or "time and material" jobs, either new projects, remodeling, 
repair or replacement, a permit shall be issued and a fee charged on an estimated value. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

31 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1313 
Inspections; Certificate of Occupancy 

 
 
1313.01 Prerequisite for permit. 
1313.02 When inspections required. 
1313.03 When certificate of occupancy 
 required. 

1313.04 Contents of certificate. 
1313.05 Conditional certificate of 
 occupancy. 
1313.06 Existing buildings. 
 

 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
   Enforcement - see BLDG., Ch. 1305 
   Appeals - see BLDG., Ch. 1317 
 
 
  
 
 
 1313.01  PREREQUISITE FOR PERMIT. 
 (a) Before issuing a permit, the Building Superintendent may examine or cause to be 
examined all buildings for which an application has been received for a permit to enlarge, alter, 
or repair and shall examine all buildings for which an application has been received to move, 
demolish or change the occupancy thereof. He shall inspect all buildings and structures from 
time to time during and upon completion of the work for which a permit was issued. He shall 
make a record of every such examination and inspection and all of the violations of, and 
nonconformance to, this Code. 
 
 (b) When deemed necessary by him, he shall make an inspection of materials or 
assemblies at the point of manufacture or fabrication. He shall make a record of every such 
examination and inspection and of all violations of, and nonconformance to, this Code. 
 
 (c) The Building Superintendent shall make, or cause to be made, the inspections 
called for by these requirements. He may accept reports of inspection of recognized inspection 
services, provided that after investigation he is satisfied as to their qualifications and reliability. 
But no certificate called for by any provision of these requirements shall be based on such 
reports unless the same are in writing and certified by a responsible officer of such service.  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

1313.02                                          BUILDING CODE                                              32 
 
 
 1313.02  WHEN INSPECTIONS REQUIRED. 
 (a) The Building Superintendent shall inspect or cause to be inspected at various 
intervals all construction or work for which a permit is required, and a final inspection shall be 
made of every building or structure upon completion, prior to the issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy as required in Section 1313.03. 
 
 (b) With every permit issued, a separate display card shall be issued stating the type 
of permit. Such display card shall be kept posted in a conspicuous place visible from the outside 
of the building on which the work is being done or at the site of the construction. A separate card 
properly identified shall be required for each separate job. This permit card shall be maintained 
in such position by the permit holder until the final inspection or until the certificate of 
occupancy has been issued by the Building Superintendent. Willful failure to keep the permit 
card posted shall be a violation of this Code. 
 
 (c) The Building Superintendent, upon notification from the permit holder or his 
agent, shall make the following inspections of buildings and such other inspections as may be 
necessary, and shall either approve that portion of the construction for which inspection was 
requested, or shall withhold approval when that portion of construction inspected fails to comply 
with the requirements of this Code. 
  (1) Footing/foundation inspection. To be made after trenches are excavated 

and forms erected, and before concrete is poured. 
  (2) Foundation drainage inspection. To be made after drainage system is 

installed and before backfill is placed or gravel and concrete placed for 
slab. 

  (3)  Slab inspection. To be made before pouring concrete. Perimeter insulation 
inspection is required. Heating or electrical slab inspection is required 
when electrical equipment or heating/cooling ducts are to be encased 
within the concrete floor. 

  (4) Framing inspection. To be made after the roof, all framing, fire blocking 
and bracing is in place and all vents are complete. 

  (5) Plumbing inspection. To be made at a time during construction when all 
the important features of the plumbing equipment are installed, and are 
adequately exposed to view. This inspection is accomplished by the Butler 
County Plumbing Inspector. 

  (6) Heating/cooling/ventilating inspection; rough. Shall be made when the 
heating/cooling/ventilating equipment is installed and all supply and return 
duct systems are in place, and before insulation or any other cover 
material is applied which may conceal any part of the system. 

  (7) Electrical inspection; rough. Shall be made after wiring is installed in the 
structure, and before insulation or any other cover material is applied 
which may conceal any part of the wiring system. 

  (8) Electrical temporary heat release inspection. Shall be made when the 
electrical service entrance is completed and the heating equipment is 
installed and ready for electrical connection. 

  (9) Electrical underground service inspection. Shall be made at a time when 
the trench is open and the underground service entrance is exposed to 
view. 



 

 

33                                          Inspections; Certificate of Occupancy                      1313.03 
 
 
  (10) Insulation inspection. Shall be made after all insulation has been installed 

and prior to the application of dry wall, paneling or any material which 
might cover or conceal the insulation to be inspected 

  (11) Gypsum Board Inspection. Shall be made after all gypsum board is 
installed and fastened by nails or screws and before joint compound is 
applied. 

  (12) Fireplace or chimney inspection. To be made at a time during construction 
when all the important features of the fireplace and chimney which 
required inspection are adequately exposed to view. 

  (13) Electrical inspection; final. Shall be made after all electrical devices, 
equipment, fixtures and wiring have been installed, connected and are 
ready for use. 

  (14) Heating/cooling inspection; final. Shall be made after all equipment is 
installed and the system can be operated. 

  (15) Building final. Shall be made after the building is completed. 
  (16) Certificate of occupancy inspection. After application, a certificate of 

occupancy inspection shall be made when all mechanicals and the building 
have had final inspections (electrical, HVAC, and plumbing) and all site 
inspections have been performed by the appropriate City departments, and 
the building is ready for occupancy. 

 The Inspector shall place either a notice of approval or a notice of non-approval in a 
conspicuous location within the structure inspected. No person shall alter, tamper with, or 
remove the red tag notice placed by the inspector. It shall be removed only by an inspector. 
 The permit holder shall be responsible for the maintenance of any inspection or other 
lawful notice provided and placed on his construction site by the Building Superintendent or his 
agent. 
 
 (d) No work shall be done on any part of a building or structure beyond the point 
indicated in each successive inspection without first obtaining the permission of the Inspector. 
However, permission to proceed shall be deemed to have been given if the Inspector shall fail to 
make the inspection within twenty-four hours after notification, disregarding Saturdays, Sundays 
and legal holidays. 
 
 (e) No reinforcing steel or structural frame work of any part of any building or 
structure shall be covered or concealed in any manner whatsoever without first obtaining the 
permission of the Inspector. However, permission to proceed shall be deemed to have been given 
if the Inspector shall fail to make the inspection within twenty-four hours after notification, 
disregarding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1313.03  WHEN CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY REQUIRED. 
 No new building shall be occupied and no change in occupancy of a building or part of a 
building shall be made until after the Building Superintendent shall have issued a certificate of 
occupancy therefor. Upon application, the Building Superintendent shall, within seven 
consecutive working days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, issue a certificate of 
occupancy for a new building or reject such application citing his specific reasons therefor, 
which reasons shall only be the inability of a building to properly support the use for which it is 
intended or defects in construction, or erroneous material usage in violation of this Code. An 
application involving a change of occupancy shall be acted upon within four consecutive 
working days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays. (Ord.   7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

1313.04                                          BUILDING CODE                                              34 
 
 
 1313.04  CONTENTS OF CERTIFICATE. 
 Upon completion of a building hereafter erected in accordance with approved plans, and 
after the final inspection herein referred to, and upon application therefor, the Building 
Superintendent shall issue a certificate of occupancy stating the nature of the occupancy with the 
approved plans and with the provisions of this Code. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1313.05  CONDITIONAL CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY. 
 A conditional certificate of occupancy may be issued for a portion or portions of a 
building. Such conditional certificate of occupancy shall be issued within seven consecutive 
working days after application unless the Building Superintendent shall reject such application in 
the manner and for the same reasons set forth in Section 1313.03. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1313.06  EXISTING BUILDINGS. 
 A certificate of occupancy for any existing building may be obtained by applying to the 
Building Superintendent and supplying the information and data necessary to determine 
compliance with this Code for the occupancy intended. Where necessary, in the opinion of the 
Building Superintendent, two sets of detailed plans or a general inspection, or both, may be 
required. When, upon examination and inspection, it is found that the building conforms to the 
provisions of this Code for such occupancy, a certificate of occupancy shall be issued.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

35 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1315 
Craft Licenses AND CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 

 
 
1315.01 Applications. 
1315.02 Review by examining board; 
 variances. 
1315.03 Failure to qualify. 

1315.04 Application form. 
1315.05 Fire protection system license 
 required. 
 

 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
  Power to license house movers, electricians, plumbers, sewer tappers, 
   vault cleaners - see Ohio R.C. 715.27 
  Fees - see BLDG. Ch. 1311 
 
 
 
 
 1315.01  APPLICATIONS. 
 Craft licenses REGISTRATIONS for HVAC and electric shall only be issued to 
individual persons and not in the name of any firm or corporation. The license 
REGISTRATION may state that the holder is the authorized license REGISTRATION holder 
representative of a firm or corporation.  Craft licenses for sign erection may be issued in the 
name of a firm, corporation or individual person.  Persons desiring craft licenses OR 
REGISTRATIONS shall apply to the Clerk of the Building and Zoning Division for the 
appropriate application form, which, when completed, shall be returned to the Clerk with the 
examination fee as required by the appropriate craft license AND CONTRACTOR 
REGISTRATION section of this Code. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1315.02  REVIEW BY EXAMINING BOARD; VARIANCES. 
 (a) FOR CRAFT LICENSES FOR SIGN ERECTORS, Tthe Clerk shall deliver 
the completed application form to the Building Superintendent, who shall check the completed 
application form to determine that all necessary data is supplied and that the proper fee has been 
paid.  The Building Superintendent shall secure from the references listed on the application 
form a letter and/or other acceptable verification of the applicant’s qualifications. 
 
 (b) The completed application form as prepared by the applicant shall, on verification 
of all qualifications, be given to the Civil Service Clerk. 
 
 (c) The Civil Service Clerk shall notify the applicant when to appear for the 
requested examination after receipt of the completed and verified application from the Building  
Superintendent.  (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

1315.03                                          BUILDING CODE                                               36 
 
 
 1315.03  FAILURE TO QUALIFY. 
 If, upon examination of the completed application, the Building Superintendent finds the 
applicant not qualified to take the requested examination, the applicant shall be notified by the 
Building Superintendent and any fee deposited shall be returned to the applicant. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1315.04  APPLICATION FORM. 
 Standard application forms shall be prepared by the Building Superintendent for use by 
the secretary of the appropriate  craft board. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1315.05  FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM LICENSE REQUIRED. 
 All portions of any fire protection system shall be installed by contractors holding a valid 
license issued by the office of the Ohio State Fire Marshal. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 



 

 

37 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1317 
Board of Building Appeals 

 
 
1317.01 Appointment. 
1317.02 Term of office. 
1317.03 Membership. 
1317.04 Powers and duties. 
1317.05 Administering oaths. 

1317.06 Records. 
1317.07 Quorum. 
1317.08 Applications and appeals. 
1317.09 Decisions of the Board. 
 

 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
   Members, powers, duties - see CHTR., §8.03 
   Board of Zoning Appeals - see P. & Z., Ch. 1137 
 
 
 
 
 
 1317.01  APPOINTMENT. 
 There is hereby created a Board of Building Appeals consisting of six members to be 
appointed by the City Manager, subject to confirmation by the Council by a majority vote of its 
members. (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1317.02  TERM OF OFFICE. 
 Members of the Board shall serve for overlapping terms of office of four years each. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1317.03  MEMBERSHIP. 
 Members of the Board of Building Appeals shall be electors of the City; and, to the 
extent feasible, one member each shall be appointed from the following occupations or 
professions: a building contractor, a registered mechanical engineer, a master electrician, a 
master heating, ventilating and air conditioning licensee, a master plumber, and an attorney-at-
law licensed to practice in the State. The builder, mechanical engineer, electrician, HVAC 
licensee, and plumber shall, to the extent feasible, have at least five years experience in the 
building construction industry. Failure of the members of the Board to meet the occupational and 
experience qualifications as set forth in this section shall not cause a forfeiture of their office nor 
invalidate any action taken by the Board. (Ord.   7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

1317.04                                          BUILDING CODE                                               38 
 
 
 1317.04  POWERS AND DUTIES. 
 The Board of Building Appeals shall have these powers, duties and functions as provided 
under the Charter and ordinances and resolutions of the City. 
(Ord.   7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1317.05  ADMINISTERING OATHS. 
 The Chairman of the Board may administer oaths and compel the attendance of 
witnesses. All meetings of the Board except executive sessions shall be open to the public. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1317.06  RECORDS. 
 The Board shall make a detailed record of all its proceedings, of its official actions, and 
the vote on each action. Findings of fact shall be included in the minutes of each case, and the 
reasons for approving or denying such appeal shall be specified. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1317.07 QUORUM. 
 Four members of the Board shall constitute a quorum. The affirmative vote of the 
majority of the members of the Board shall be necessary to modify an order of the Building 
Superintendent, a craft licensing board, or to vary the application of, or to interpret the provisions 
of this Code. No Board member shall act in a case in which he has a personal interest.  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1317.08  APPLICATIONS AND APPEALS. 
 (a) An application or appeal may be taken by anyone adversely affected by a decision 
of the Building Superintendent in the case where application of this Code would work a manifest 
injustice, or by the applicant for a license who feels that he has been unjustly rejected by any of 
the craft licensing boards within this Code. An application or appeal shall be in the form 
prescribed by the Board, and shall be considered filed when a signed copy is left at the office of 
the Building Superintendent. A fee of fifty dollars ($50.00) shall accompany each appeal. The 
appeal must be filed within thirty days following the adverse action complained of and shall stay 
all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed from. In the case of unsafe and dangerous 
buildings as defined in Section 1305.09, the Building Superintendent in his notice may limit the 
time for appeal. 
 
 (b) The Board shall fix a reasonable time and place for the hearing of the application 
or appeal, shall give due notice thereof to the parties in interest, and shall render a decision 
within a reasonable time. 
 
 (c) Any person may appear and testify at the hearing, either in person or by duly 
authorized agent or attorney. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1317.09  DECISIONS OF THE BOARD. 
 (a) Every decision of the Board of Building Appeals shall be in writing and shall 
indicate the vote upon the decision. Every decision shall be promptly filed in the office of the 
Building Superintendent and shall be open to public inspection. 



 

 

39                                               Board of Building Appeals                                1317.09 
 
 
 (b) A decision of the Board of Building Appeals to vary the application of any 
provision of this Code or to modify an order shall specify in what manner such variation or 
modification is made, the conditions under which it is made, and the reasons therefor. 
 
 (c) Every individual, department, or Board affected by a decision of the Board of 
Building Appeals shall immediately take action in accordance with such decision. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 



 

 

41 
 
 
 
 
 

TITLE THREE - Building and Maintenance Standards 
   Chap.  1325.  Design Criteria. 
   Chap.  1327.  Amendments to Residential Code of Ohio for One-, 
     Two- and Three-Family Dwellings. 
   Chap.  1329.  Residential Security; Early Fire Warning Systems. 
   Chap.  1331.  Accessory Buildings and Structures. 
   Chap.  1333.  Signs. 
   Chap.  1335.  Electrical Work. 
   Chap.  1337.  Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning. 
   Chap.  1339.  Safeguards During Construction or Demolition. 
   Chap.  1341.  Use of Public Property. 
   Chap.  1343.  Property Maintenance Code. 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1325 
Design Criteria 

 
 
1325.01 Compliance required. 
1325.02 Frost protection; depth of  
 footers. 
1325.03 Snow loads. 
1325.04 Wind loads. 
1325.05 Thermal design conditions. 
1325.06 Seismic design category. 

1325.07 Weathering category. 
1325.08 Termite category. 
1325.09 Decay category. 
1325.10 Ice shield required. 
1325.11 Flood hazards. 
1325.12  Minimum square footage. 
1325.01 

 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
  Accessory buildings or structures - see BLDG. Ch. 1331 
  Safeguards during construction - see BLDG. Ch. 1339 
 
 
 
 
 
 1325.01  COMPLIANCE REQUIRED. 
 All buildings and structures shall meet the minimum design criteria defined below. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 



 

 

1325.02                                          BUILDING CODE                                               42 
 
 
 1325.02  FROST PROTECTION; DEPTH OF FOOTERS. 
 Frost Depth: 30 inches. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.03  SNOW LOADS. 
 The basic snow loads to be assumed in the design of buildings or other structures shall be 
twenty pounds per square foot.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.04  WIND LOADS. 
 All exposed structures or parts of structures shall be designed to resist ninety mile an 
hour wind gusts of three second duration.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.05  THERMAL DESIGN CONDITIONS. 
 Winter Design Temperature: 0° F. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.06 SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY. 
 Design Category: B. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.07  WEATHERING CATEGORY. 
 Weathering Category: Severe. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.08  TERMITE CATEGORY. 
 Termite Category: Moderate to Severe. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.09  DECAY CATEGORY. 
 Decay Category: Slight to Moderate. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.10  ICE SHIELD REQUIRED. 
 Ice Shield Required: Yes. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.11  FLOOD HAZARDS. 
 Flood Insurance Map (Firm) Dated: 11/04/1981 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1325.12 1325.01 MINIMUM SQUARE FOOTAGE. 
 All detached single-family homes shall have a minimum of 1,000 square feet of living 
area.  (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

43 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1327 
Amendments to Residential Code of Ohio for One-,  

Two- and Three-Family Dwellings 
 
 
1327.01 Amendments adopted. 
1327.02 Building planning. 
1327.03 Foundations. 
1327.04 Manufactured homes. 

1327.05 Roof coverings. 
1327.06 General plumbing  
 requirements. 
1327.07 Conflict. 
 

 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
  Adoption of codes by reference - see CHTR. Sec. 4.11 
  2004 OBOA Code adopted - see BLDG. 1301.03(a) 
 
 
 
 
 
 1327.01  AMENDMENTS ADOPTED. 
 The following additions, deletions and modifications to the OBOA Residential Code, 
2004 Edition, are hereby adopted as listed below with the referenced chapter, section and table 
where applicable.  
 (a) General: Throughout OBOA Residential Code: 
  Replace “International Building Code” with “Ohio Building Code (OBC)” 
  Replace “International Plumbing Code” with “Ohio Plumbing Code (OPC)” 

 Replace “One- and Two-Family Dwellings” with “One-, Two- and Three-
family Dwellings”. 

  Replace “Two-family Dwellings” with “Two- and Three-family Dwellings”. 
  Replace “Chapter 1” with “Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Part 13”. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1327.02  BUILDING PLANNING. 
 (a) Chapter 3, Section 301.  Design Criteria.  Refer to Chapter 1325 of this Code. 
 
 (b) Chapter 3, Section 309.  Attached Private Garages.  Add:  "All gypsum on the 
wall and ceiling between the garage and living space or attic shall be the type ‘X’ fire-rated 
type.”   
 
 (c) Chapter 3, Section 313.  Smoke Detectors.  Also refer to Chapter 1329 of this 
Code. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

1327.03                                          BUILDING CODE                                               44 
 
 
 1327.03  FOUNDATIONS. 
 (a) Chapter 4, Section 403.  Footings.  Footings for enclosed attached portions of the 
house shall have continuous concrete footings, unless an alternate design by a registered design 
professional is accepted by the Building Official. 
 
 (b) Chapter 4, Section 405.  Foundation Drainage.  Add:  Foundations drains shall not 
be routed to the sanitary sewer or to the street.  Perforated flexible plastic drain pipe is 
acceptable.  Basement sump pumps shall not be routed to the sanitary sewer or to the street. 
 
 (c) Chapter 3, Sections 319 and 320.  Protection Against Decay and Termites.  Add:  
"Ratproofing; general.  All buildings and structures and the walls enclosing habitable or 
occupiable rooms and spaces in which persons live, sleep or work; or in which feed, food or 
foodstuffs are stored, prepared, processed, served or sold, shall be constructed rat and vermin-
proof in accordance with the following provisions: 
  (1) Wall openings.  Openings required for ventilation or other purposes shall 

be guarded with corrosion-resistive rodent-proof shields of not less than 
No. 22 galvanized sheet gauge (0.034 in.) perforated steel sheets, or No. 
20 B & S gauge aluminum or No. 16 galvanized sheet gauge (0.064 in.) 
expanded metal or wire mesh screens, with not more than one-half inch 
mesh openings. 

  (2) Pipes and conduits.  All openings for pipe, conduit, cable and similar 
purposes at or near grade shall have snugly-fitted collars to eliminate all 
open spaces." 

   (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1327.04 MANUFACTURED HOMES. 
 (a) Appendix E to the OBOA Residential Code is amended as follows: 
  (1) Section AE-101 - Scope - is amended to apply to all manufactured homes 

used as dwelling units in the City of Fairfield, Ohio. 
  (2) Section AE-304 - Fees - is amended to provide that fees shall be in 

accordance with applicable fee schedules of the City of Fairfield, Ohio for 
the type of work or permit involved.  All other provisions of Section AE-
304 are hereby repealed. 

   (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1327.05  ROOF COVERINGS. 
 Chapter 9. Add: Fiberglass and asphalt shingle roofs are to have a maximum of two roof 
coverings.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1327.06  GENERAL PLUMBING REQUIREMENTS. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: Plumbing is governed by the Butler County Health District.) 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1327.07 CONFLICT. 
 In addition to the above additions, deletions and modifications to the OBOA Residential 
Code, 2004 Edition, in the event of a conflict between any other provisions of the OBOA 
Residential Code, 2004 Edition, and any ordinance of the City, the City ordinance shall be 
controlling. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

45 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1329 
Residential Security; Early Fire Warning Systems 

 
 
1329.01 Purpose. 
1329.02 Scope. 
1329.03 Definitions. 
1329.04 Alternate materials and  
 methods of construction. 
1329.05 Keying requirements. 

1329.06 Frames; jambs; strikes; 
 hinges. 
1329.07 Exterior doors. 
1329.08 Windows and sliding glass 
 doors. 
1329.09 Street identification numbers. 
1329.10 Early fire warning systems. 
 

 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
 Automatic sprinkler equipment in rest homes - see Ohio R.C. 3721.071 
 Smoke detectors in high rise apartments and condominiums - see Ohio R.C. 3781.104 
 
 
  
 
 
 1329.01  PURPOSE. 
 The purpose of this chapter is to provide minimum standards to safeguard property and 
public welfare by regulating and controlling the security and require early fire warning systems 
in all residential buildings and structures within the City. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1329.02  SCOPE. 
 (a) The provisions of this chapter shall apply to new construction and to buildings or 
structures to which additions, alterations or repairs are made except as specifically provided in 
this chapter. When additions, alterations or repairs within any twelve month period exceed fifty 
percent (50%) of the replacement value of the existing building or structure, such building or 
structure shall be made to conform to the requirements of this chapter for new buildings or 
structures. 
 
 (b) Provisions of this chapter shall apply to modifications of doors and windows. 
 
 (c) Any existing structure which converts from its original occupancy group, as 
defined, shall comply with the provisions of this chapter. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

1329.03                                            BUILDING CODE                                             46 
 
 
 1329.03  DEFINITIONS. 
 For the purpose of this chapter, certain terms are defined as follows: 
  (1) "Auxiliary locking device" means a secondary locking system added to the 

primary locking system to provide additional security. 
  (2) "Bolt" means a metal bar which, when actuated, is projected or thrown 

either horizontally or vertically into a retaining member, such as a strike 
plate, to prevent a door or window from moving or opening. 

  (3) "Bolt projection" or "bolt throw" means the distance from the edge of the 
door, at the bolt centerline, to the farthest point on the bolt in the projected 
position. 

  (4) "Buck" means a rough opening supporting a door frame. 
  (5) "Burglary resistance glazing" means those materials as defined in U.L. 

Bulletin 972. 
  (6) "Component" as distinguished from a part, means a subassembly which 

combines with other components to make up a total door or window 
assembly. 

  (7) "Cylinder" means the subassembly of a lock containing the cylinder core, 
tumbler mechanism and the keyway. A double cylinder lock is one which 
has a key actuated cylinder on both the exterior and interior of the door. 

  (8) "Cylinder core" or "plug" means the central part of the cylinder containing 
the keyway which is rotated by the key to operate the lock mechanism. 

  (9) "Cylinder guard" means a tapered or flush metal ring or plate surrounding 
the otherwise exposed portion of a cylinder lock to resist cutting, drilling, 
prying, pulling or wrenching with common tools. 

  (10) "Deadbolt" means a lock bolt which does not have a spring action as 
opposed to a latch bolt, which does. The bolt must be actuated by a key or 
a key and a knob or thumb turn and when projected becomes locked 
against return by end pressure. 

  (11) "Door assembly" means a unit composed of a group of parts or 
components which make up a closure for an opening to control 
passageway through a wall. For the purpose of this chapter, a door 
assembly consists of the following parts: miscellaneous hardware and 
closures; the frame, including the header, threshold and jambs plus the 
anchorage devices to the surrounding wall and a portion of the 
surrounding wall extending thirty-six inches from each side of the jambs 
and sixteen inches above the header. 

  (12) "Door stop" means that projection along the top and sides of a door jamb 
which checks the door's swinging action. 

  (13) "Double cylinder deadbolt" means a deadbolt lock which can be activated 
only by a key on either the interior or exterior. 

  (14) "Flushbolt" means a manual, key or turn operated metal bolt normally 
used on inactive door(s) and is attached to the top and bottom of the door 
and engages in the head and threshold of the frame. 

  (15) "Jamb" means the vertical members of a door frame to which the door is 
secured. 

  (16) "Jamb wall" means that component of a door assembly to which a door is 
attached and secured; the wall and jamb used together are considered a 
unit. 

  (17) "Key in knob" means a lockset having the key cylinder and other lock 
mechanisms contained in the knob. 



 

 

47                               Residential Security; Early Fire Warning Systems               1329.04 
 
 
  (18) "Latch" or "latch bolt" means a beveled, spring actuated bolt which may or 

may not have a dead locking device. 
  (19) "Lock" or "lockset" means a keyed device complete with cylinder latch or 

deadbolt mechanism, and trim such as knobs, levers, thumb turns, 
escutcheons, etc., for securing a door in a closed position against forced 
entry. For purposes of this chapter, a lock does not include the strike plate. 

  (20) "Locking device" means a part of a window assembly which is intended to 
prevent movement of the moveable sash, which may be the sash lock or 
sash operator. 

  (21) "Part" as distinguished from component, means a unit or subassembly 
which combines with other units to make up a component. 

  (22) "Primary locking device" means the single locking system on a door or 
window unit whose primary function is to prevent unauthorized intrusion. 

  (23) "Rail" means the horizontal member of a window or door. A meeting rail 
is one which mates with a rail of another sash or a framing member of the 
door or window frame when the sash is in the closed position. 

  (24) "Sash" means an assembly of stiles, rails and sometimes mullions 
assembled into a single frame which supports the glazing material. A fixed 
sash is one which is not intended to be opened. A moveable sash is 
intended to be opened. 

  (25) "Sill" means the lowest horizontal member of a window frame. 
  (26) "Single cylinder deadbolt" means a deadbolt lock which is activated from 

the outside by a key and from the inside by a knob, thumb turn, lever or 
similar mechanism. 

  (27) "Solid core door" means a door composed of solid wood or composed of 
compressed material equal in strength to solid wood construction. 

  (28) "Stile" means a vertical framing member of a window or door. 
  (29) "Strike" means a metal plate attached to or mortised into a door or door 

jamb to receive and to hold a projected latch bolt and/or deadbolt in order 
to secure the door to the jamb. 

  (30) "Swinging door" means a door hinged at the stile or at the head and 
threshold. 

  (31) "U.L. listed" means tested and listed by Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. 
  (32) "Window assembly" means a unit which includes a window and the 

anchorage between the window and the wall. 
  (33) "Window frame" means a part of a window which surrounds and supports 

the sashes and is attached to the surrounding wall. The members include 
side jambs, head jambs, sill and mullions. 

   (Ord. 7-05.   Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1329.04  ALTERNATE MATERIALS AND METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION. 
 (a) The provisions of this chapter are not intended to prevent the use of any material 
or method of construction not specifically prescribed by this chapter, provided any such alternate 
has been approved; nor is it the intention of this chapter to exclude any sound method of 
structural design or analysis not specifically provided for in this chapter. Structural design 
limitations given in this chapter are to be used as a guide only, and exceptions thereto may be 
made if substantiated by calculations or other suitable evidence prepared by a qualified person. 



 

 

1329.05                                            BUILDING CODE                                            48 
 
 
 (b) The Building Superintendent may approve any alternate provided he finds the 
proposed design is satisfactory and the material, method of work offered is, for the purpose 
intended, at least equivalent to that prescribed in this chapter in quality, strength, effectiveness, 
burglary resistance, durability and safety. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1329.05  KEYING REQUIREMENTS. 
 The contractor shall use a keying system in all exterior doors that incorporates one of the 
following: 
 (a) A construction cylinder that will be removed upon occupancy and replaced with a 

new cylinder and all keys furnished to the owner; or 
 (b) A cylinder system that admits construction keys during construction but upon 

occupancy the owner's key will reset the pin system, denying use of construction 
key; or 

 (c) The original cylinder used during construction shall be repinned and new keys 
furnished to the owner. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 

 
 1329.06  FRAMES; JAMBS; STRIKES; HINGES. 
 Installation and construction of frames, jambs, strikes and hinges shall be as follows: 
 (a) In wood construction, the shim space between door frame and door buck shall be 

filled with a solid wood filler securely attached and extending at least twelve 
inches above and below the strike boxes. Strike plates and boxes shall be secured 
with screws extending through plate, frame, filler and at least one-quarter inch 
into the buck. 

 (b) Steel frames shall be factory reinforced for strikes with at least No. 14 gauge steel 
reinforcing securely attached and protected by plaster (mortar) guards. 

 (c) Doors swinging out shall be equipped to prevent removal of hinge pins when the 
door is closed. (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 

 
 1329.07  EXTERIOR DOORS. 
 (a) All wood doors shall be of solid core construction with a minimum thickness of 
one and three-fourths inches. 
 
 (b) Steel covered doors shall be minimum 18 U.S. gauge steel and have sufficient 
reinforcement to maintain the designed thickness of the door when any locking device is 
installed; such reinforcement being able to restrict collapsing of the door around any locking 
device. 
 
 (c) Except where clear vision panels are installed, the entry used primarily by guests 
or visitors shall be equipped with a wide angle, one hundred and eighty degree door viewer. 
 
 (d) Except for a building containing four or more living units, a single or double door 
shall be equipped with a single or double cylinder deadbolt lock. The bolt shall have a minimum 
projection of one inch and be constructed so as to repel cutting tool attack. The deadbolt shall 
have an embedment of at least three-fourths inch into the strike receiving the projected bolt. The 
cylinder shall have a cylinder guard, a minimum of five pin tumblers, and shall be connected to 
the inner portion of the lock by connecting screws of at least one-fourth inch diameter. All 
installations shall be done so that performance of the locking device will meet the intended anti-
burglary requirements. A dual locking mechanism constructed so that both deadbolt and latch 
can be retracted by a single action of the inside door knob, or lever, may be substituted provided 
it meets all other specifications for locking devices. 



 

 

49                               Residential Security; Early Fire Warning Systems                 1329.10 
 
 
 (e) Buildings containing four or more living units, OBC Chapter 10 applies. 
 
 (f) The inactive leaf of a wood frame door shall be equipped with metal flush bolts 
with a bolt projection a minimum of one inch at the top and bottom of the leaf. 
 
 (g) The inactive leaf of a metal frame double doors shall be equipped with metal flush 
bolts with a bolt projection a minimum of five-eighths inch, at the top and bottom of the leaf. 
 
 (h) Glazing in exterior doors or within forty inches of any locking mechanism shall 
be of fully tempered glass or rated burglary resistant glazing (example: Lexan), except when 
double cylinder deadbolt locks are installed.   (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1329.08  WINDOWS AND SLIDING GLASS DOORS. 
 (a) Sliding Glass Doors. Sliding glass doors shall be equipped as follows: 
  (1) The operable sliding glass door shall be installed on the inside track. 
  (2) Sliding patio doors shall be constructed and/or adjusted to prevent lift-out 

and removal of any panel from the exterior side while in a closed position. 
  (3) All units shall be installed with interior or concealed fasteners. 
  (4) A secondary locking device shall be required on all sliding glass doors. 

(Example: Patented bar, keyed bolt, pinned bolt, etc.) 
 
 (b) Windows. 
  (1) Windows shall be so constructed that when the window is in the closed 

position, it cannot be lifted from the frame. 
  (2) All windows must have manual latches and a secondary securing device. 
   (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1329.09  STREET IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS. 
 All residential buildings constructed shall display a street number in a prominent location 
on the street side of the residence in such position that the number is easily visible to 
approaching emergency vehicles. The numerals shall be Arabic, no less than four inches in 
height, three quarters inches wide stroke, and shall be a contrasting color to the background to 
which they are attached. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1329.10  EARLY FIRE WARNING SYSTEMS. 
 (a) Scope.  “Early fire warning system” means an approved automatic warning 
system of one or more devices that detects any of the products of combustion including visible or 
invisible particles of combustion and that produces an audible alarm signal in a building for the 
purpose of notifying the occupants thereof of the presence of a fire.  The primary power for such 
systems shall be the building wiring when such wiring is served from a commercial source, and 
when primary power is interrupted, shall receive power from a battery.  Wiring shall be 
permanent and without a disconnecting switch other than those required for overcurrent 
protection.  Systems with detectors sensitive to heat only are not included in this definition for 
purposes of this section. 
 For the purpose of installation and maintenance only, a system shall be deemed approved 
if listed by the Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., and conforms to the applicable sections of NFPA 
Standard No. 72 “National Fire Alarm Code” As referenced in Chapter Thirty-five of the OBC. 



 

 

1329.10                                            BUILDING CODE                                              50 
 
 
 (b) Early Fire Warning System Required as per Section 313 OBOA Code and 
Chapter 9 OBC.  
 
 (c) Compliance as to Maintenance. 
  (1) In an owner-occupied single-unit structure it shall be the responsibility of 

the owner to maintain or have maintained the required early fire warning 
system. 

  (2) In a single-unit structure not owner-occupied, it shall be the responsibility 
of the occupant to maintain or have maintained the early fire warning 
system. 

  (3) In a multi-unit structure, whether owner-occupied or not, it shall be the 
responsibility of each unit occupant to maintain or have maintained the 
early fire warning system. It shall be the responsibility of the owner to 
maintain or have maintained any detectors required in cellars or 
basements. 

  (4) "Maintain" means keeping the unit in a fully operational condition. 
 
 (d) Certificate Required. 
  (1) No person shall sell, offer for sale, or use any fire protection or fire 

fighting equipment that does not meet the minimum standards established 
by the Fire Marshal in the State Fire Code. 

  (2) Except for public and private mobile fire trucks, no person shall service, 
test, repair or install for profit any fire protection or fire fighting 
equipment without a certificate issued by the Fire Marshal.  

   (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

51 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1331 
Accessory Buildings and Structures 

 
 
1331.01 General provisions. 
1331.02 Fences. 
1331.03 Detached sheds; utility 
 buildings. 

1331.04 Decks, porches, patio covers, 
 carports. 
1331.05 Radio and television towers. 
1331.06 Swimming pools. 
 

 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
   Swimming pools - see OAC Ch. 3701-31 
   Signs - see BLDG., Ch. 1333 
 
 
 
 
 
 1331.01  GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 The location, size and height of accessory buildings, structures and fences is controlled 
by the Zoning Ordinance. No building or structure shall be permitted on any easement; however, 
fences may be placed along or on easements at the property owner's risk.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1331.02  FENCES. 
 (a) No fence, board wall, screen, hedge, or structure in the nature of a fence shall be 
erected or be maintained in such position or place so as to be dangerous or detrimental to the 
health or safety of persons living in any house or adjoining premises, or in any way obstruct the 
view so as to endanger public traffic on the streets, and any fence, board wall, screen, hedge, or 
structure in the nature of a fence so erected or maintained shall be removed within three days 
upon written notice from the Building Superintendent served upon the owner, agent or occupant 
of the premises where such obstruction has been erected or is maintained. 
 
 (b) Barbed wire shall not be used except at the top of fences at least six feet high 
enclosing business or manufacturing premises, and when so used shall be at least seven feet 
above the ground and the supporting arms shall extend inward toward the property enclosed 
when constructed on the property line. 



 

 

1331.03                                            BUILDING CODE                                             52 
 
 
 (c) No fence charged with electricity, except burglar alarms or for retaining livestock, 
will be permitted at any time. 
 
 (d) Building permits are required for fences over four feet in height(See Section 
1180.04(B)(1).  A NO COST ZONING CERTIFICATE IS REQUIRED FOR FENCES 
FOUR FEET OR LESS IN HEIGHT. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1331.03  DETACHED SHEDS; UTILITY BUILDINGS. 
 (a) Zoning certificates are required for all sheds or utility buildings with an area of 
150 100 square feet or less on wooden skids at no cost.  If a foundation or slab is involved, a 
building permit in addition to the zoning certificate is necessary for foundation or slab only. 
 
 (b) Permits are required for all buildings or structures over 150 100 square feet. 
 
 (c) All DETACHED structures, regardless of size, must be positively attached to the 
ground to resist the wind and flood loads. as per the design categories in Chapter 1325.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1331.04  DECKS, PORCHES, PATIO COVERS, CARPORTS. 
 Accessory structures added to the principal building shall require a permit. The 
foundation for such structures shall be set at the same frost depth as the principal building 
foundation. Roof sheathing shall be one-half inch thick minimum and fifteen pound felt is 
required under shingles. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1331.05  RADIO AND TELEVISION TOWERS. 
 (a) Towers. Amateur radio and television towers shall not be higher than sixty-six 
feet and shall be self-supporting. Guy wires or other accessories shall not cross or encroach upon 
any street or other public space, or over any electric power lines. A building permit is required 
and construction shall meet the requirements of this Code. Grounding is required. 
 
 (b) Antennas. Antenna structures for private radio or television reception not more 
than twelve feet in height may be erected and maintained on the roof of any building without a 
building permit. Such a structure, however, shall not be erected so as to injure the roof covering 
and when removed from the roof the roof covering shall be repaired to maintain weather and 
water tightness. The installation shall not be erected nearer to the lot line than the total height of 
the antenna structure. Nor shall such structure be installed near electric power lines or encroach 
upon any street or other public space. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1331.06  SWIMMING POOLS. 
 (a) General Requirements. A building permit is required for the installation of both 
inground and above-ground swimming pools, whether public or private. Two OR MORE sets of 
construction drawings must be submitted for approval, along with two OR MORE plot plans 
showing the location of the pool and any other structures on the property. 
 An electric permit is required for filter and pump installations on both inground and 
above-ground pools, with a ground fault circuit interrupter. An electrical permit and inspection is 
also required for the placement and bonding of steel reinforcing for an inground pool. For 
inground pools, it is necessary that the City be advised as to where the excavated dirt will be 
dumped or placed prior to the issuance of the building permit. The location must be stated on the 
application or shown on the plot plan. 



 

 

53                                           Accessory Buildings and Structures                        1331.06 
 
 
 (b) Plans. Plans shall accurately show dimensions and construction of pool and 
appurtenances and properly establish distances to lot lines, buildings, walks, and fences; details 
of water supply system, drainage, and water disposal systems, and all appurtenances pertaining 
to the swimming pool. Detailed plans of structures, vertical elevations and sections through the 
pool showing depth shall be included. 
 
 (c) Swimming Pool Safety Devices. Every person owning land on which there is 
situated a swimming pool, which contains eighteen TWENTY FOUR (24) inches or more of 
water in depth at any point, shall erect and maintain thereon an adequate enclosure either 
surrounding the property or pool area, sufficient to make such body of water inaccessible to 
small children. Such enclosure, including gates therein, must be not less than four feet above the 
underlying ground; all gates must be self-latching with latches placed four feet above the 
underlying ground or otherwise made inaccessible from the outside to small children. 
 A natural barrier, hedge, pool cover, or other protective device approved by the Building 
Superintendent may be used so long as the degree of protection afforded by the substituted 
devices or structures is not less than the protection afforded by the enclosure, gate and latch 
described herein.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
  



 

 



 

 

55 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1333 
Signs 

 
 
1333.01 Scope. 
1333.02 Standards. 
1333.03 Sign erector’s license. 
1333.04 Inspection of outdoor signs. 
1333.05 Civil Service Clerk. 
1333.06 Duties of Civil Service Clerk. 

1333.07 License requirements. 
1333.08 Liability insurance required. 
1333.09 Permits. 
1333.10 Outdoor sign permit and  
 inspection fees. 
 

 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
  Power to regulate advertising - see Ohio R.C. 715.65 
  Advertising on highways - see Ohio R.C. Ch. 5516 
  Zoning regulations - see P. & Z. Ch. 1187 
 
 
  
 
 
 1333.01  SCOPE. 
 This Code deals with outdoor signs only. Refer to Chapter 1187 of Part Eleven - Planning 
and Zoning Code for definitions of allowable signage, and regulations regarding size, height and 
placement of outdoor signs. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1333.02  STANDARDS. 
 CHAPTER 31, Section 3107 “Signs” of the OBC shall govern the construction, 
alteration, repair and maintenance of all signs in respect to structural and fire safety. In addition, 
the following requirements shall be met: 
 (a) Swinging Signs. Every sign shall be rigidly hung so that it will not swing or 

vibrate in a strong wind. No hinge or loose joints will be permitted in any sign or 
in any of the various sections of the sign. 

 (b) Billboards (Poster Panels). The lower edge of every such billboard shall be not 
less than three feet above the ground, and the space between the lower edge of the 
billboard and the ground shall be left open, or may be covered with lattice work of 
wood. 

 (c) Temporary Signs. Temporary signs shall be strongly constructed and shall be 
securely attached to their supports. 



 

 

1333.03                                            BUILDING CODE                                              56 
 
 
 (d) Maintenance. It shall be the duty and responsibility of the owner or lessee of 

every sign to maintain the immediate premises occupied by the sign in a clean, 
safe, sanitary and healthful condition. Ground signs shall be kept clear of weeds 
and rubbish three feet in front of and to such distance in the rear as will include all 
bracing, guys and stayposts of such sign. 

 (e) Responsibility. The owner of each outdoor sign and the owner of the premises on 
which such sign is erected, affixed, attached or maintained shall each be 
individually and separately responsible for its maintenance and for the removal of 
every sign which has been ordered removed under provisions of this Code. 

  (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1333.03  SIGN ERECTOR'S LICENSE. 
 (a) License. No person, firm or corporation shall act, engage in, or advertise or 
otherwise represent themselves as engaging in the business of erecting, constructing, 
maintaining, painting or repairing any outdoor advertising displays, signs and billboards, as 
defined in this chapter, unless an authorized representative of such person, firm or corporation 
shall first obtain a sign erector's license as provided in this chapter. 
 
 (b) Responsibility. In case of a person, firm or corporation employing a sign erector's 
licenseholder such person and the firm or corporation and the sign erector's licenseholder shall 
be responsible for all violations under this Code. 
 
 (c) Eligibility. All applicants desiring a license to engage in the business of erecting, 
constructing, maintaining or repairing any outdoor display, sign or billboard as defined in this 
chapter, must have reached the age of twenty-one years, be a citizen of the United States, and 
have had three years practical experience with a recognized, reputable concern engaged in the 
business of outdoor display, sign or billboard advertising. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1333.04  INSPECTION OF OUTDOOR SIGNS. 
 (a) The duties of the Building Inspector, as relating to sign and outdoor display 
inspection shall be to point out in what respect such plans or specifications are deficient or in 
violation of this Code; to inspect all work in the area covered by this Code for which permits are 
required under this Code and to see that all such work is performed in accordance with the 
provisions hereof; to stop any work being done in violation of the terms hereof and to post "stop 
work" signs therefor; to order such work removed or corrected to conform herewith; to issue 
certificate of approval on satisfactory completion of projects; provided, however, that no "stop 
work" order so posted shall affect work not governed by this Code except where the progress of 
any such work would interfere with inspection of work governed by this Code. 
 
 (b) The Building Inspector shall enforce the provisions of this Code relative to 
outdoor signs and he or his duly authorized representative may enter any building, structure or 
premises in the City to perform any duty imposed on him by this Code. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

57                                                               Signs                                              1337.07 
 
 
 1333.05  CIVIL SERVICE CLERK. 
 The Civil Service Clerk shall examine applicants for sign erector's license. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1333.06  DUTIES OR CIVIL SERVICE CLERK. 
 (a) Rules and Procedure. The Building Superintendent shall make such rules and 
prescribe such procedure as may be necessary to achieve conformity with this Code. 
 
 (b) Examinations. The Civil Service Clerk shall have complete control over the 
examinations of applicants for sign erector's license under this Code. 
 
 (c) Examination Periods. Examinations of applicants shall be conducted at least once 
each calendar month, if needed, at such time and place as the Civil Service Clerk may designate. 
Examination questions shall pertain to the particular license being applied for; shall cover the 
requirements of the Ohio Basic Building Code and the provisions of the Sign Ordinance Codes. 
 
 (d) Passing Grade. The passing grade shall be seventy percent (70%). Any applicant 
who shall fail to receive a passing grade shall be eligible to again apply for examination in the 
following calendar quarter. The Civil Service Clerk shall keep an accurate record of all 
applications for examination, of the examinations given and the results thereof, in such 
depository as may be designated. 
 
 (e) Certificate of License. The Civil Service Clerk shall certify to the Building 
Superintendent the names of all successful applicants for a sign erector's license and shall issue a 
recommendation for the issuance of a sign erector's license. 
 
 (f) Suspension of License. The Building Superintendent shall have the authority to 
suspend or revoke any sign erector's license granted under this Code for violations thereof, after 
the license holder is notified in writing of a complaint, and after the license holder has had the 
opportunity to appear before the Building Superintendent to present his/her facts concerning the 
complaint. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1333.07  LICENSE REQUIREMENTS. 
 (a) License Holder Required. No person, firm or corporation shall act, engage in, or 
advertise or otherwise represent themselves as engaging in the business of erecting, constructing, 
maintaining, painting or repairing any outdoor advertising displays, signs and billboards as 
defined in this chapter, within the corporate limits of the City, unless an authorized 
representative of such person, firm or corporation shall first have obtained a sign erector's license 
hereunder, and who shall be the authorized representative of the person, firm or corporation in all 
matters pertaining to this Code. The authorized representative, who is the holder of a sign 
erector's license, may not apply for permits for more than one person, firm or corporation. 
 
 (b) Grace Period Without Licenseholder. Should the authorized representative holder 
of a sign erector's license terminate or sever his employment or association with such person, 
firm or corporation, such person, firm or corporation shall sixty days thereafter cease all outdoor 
advertising display, sign or billboard work until a sign erector's license is acquired. 



 

 

1333.08                                            BUILDING CODE                                             58 
 
 
 (c) Application Fee; Examination. 
  (1) An applicant for a sign erector's license shall make application for 

examination on the standard form of the Building Inspection Division (See 
Chapter 1315). This form shall contain sufficient information to determine 
whether or not the applicant meets the requirements set forth in this Code. 

  (2) The initial fee for a sign erector's license shall be one hundred dollars 
($100.00) for the first year, such sum to be deposited with the City upon 
making the application for a sign erector's license. Any applicant failing in 
his examination shall not have the fee returned to him but shall be entitled 
to two re-examinations. After the third examination, the fee is forfeited to 
the City. This license is not transferable. 

  (3) The applicant shall certify that a place of business is, or will be, 
maintained by such applicant or by the person, firm or corporation 
employing such applicant. 

 
 (d) Issuance of Sign Erector's License. Any applicant having fully complied with the 
provisions of this chapter and having successfully passed the required examination shall be 
issued a sign erector's license by the Building Division. 
 
 (e) License Renewal. Any holder of a sign erector's license shall, upon payment to 
the authorized authority of the fee of thirty-five dollars ($35.00) be issued a renewal thereof for 
the second and any subsequent years; provided, however, that upon failure of any such license 
holder to apply for and to pay for a renewal of the license on or before January 31 following the 
expiration of the previous year's license, such licensee shall forfeit such existing license and it 
shall be unlawful for any person to perform any work governed by this chapter and Code until 
such time as a renewal license is issued. In the event of the failure of the sign erector's license 
holder to renew such license on or before January 31, in the year following the expiration of the 
license, there shall be charged a fee of thirty-five dollars ($35.00) for each year such license has 
not been renewed, together with a penalty of thirty-five dollars ($35.00). 
 
 (f) Unlawful to Loan License. No sign erector's licensee shall loan his license or 
obtain a permit for work by others in his name for the use of any other person. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1333.08  LIABILITY INSURANCE REQUIRED. 
 (a) Each applicant for a sign erector's license shall provide a certificate indicating that 
valid liability insurance in solvent insurance companies licensed to do business by the State of 
Ohio, has been obtained and maintained. Such insurance shall contain standard liability coverage 
provisions with respect to the business of such person, and insuring such person against any 
claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of any negligent act of such person or 
his/her agents or employees occurring in the course of such business, with minimum limits of 
liability as follows: 
   $250,000/$500,000 bodily injury liability 
   $250,000 property damage liability. 



 

 

59                                                               Signs                                              1337.09 
 
 
 (b) Such insurance policy shall contain a clause that ten days notice of cancellation, 
or material change in the policy, shall be furnished to the City of Fairfield Building Division, and 
shall also provide that the City of Fairfield, Ohio, is a named insured along with the contractor 
applicant, if possible. 
 
 (c) The requirements set forth shall be mandatory for all new applicants. All holders 
of licenses issued prior to the enactment of this subsection shall be required to comply within 
thirty days of official notification of the requirement by the City of Fairfield Building Division. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1333.09  PERMITS. 
 (a) Permits Required. No person, firm or corporation shall erect, construct, maintain, 
paint or repair any sign for which a permit is required without first obtaining a permit therefor 
from the Building Division. 
 
 (b) Licensed Sign Erector. Sign permits shall only be issued to licensed sign erectors, 
except as listed in Section 1187.03(u) of the Zoning Code. 
 
 (c) Emergency Work. In case of emergency due to an unsafe sign, the holder of a 
sign erector's license may proceed with the work and file the application for a permit within 
twenty-four hours, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted. 
 
 (d) Plans Required. All applications for the erection of signs, billboards or electric 
signs shall be accompanied by such drawings or description as are necessary to fully advise the 
Building Superintendent of the location, construction, material, and manner of securing the 
proposed sign or billboard. If these descriptions conform to the regulations in this Code and to 
the Zoning Ordinance, the Building Superintendent shall issue a permit upon payment of the 
required fee. 
 
 (e) Electrical Permit.   An electrical permit shall be secured for all electrical wiring 
and electrical installations associated with an outdoor sign. 
 
 (f) Exemptions. 
  (1) Permits are not required for real estate signs, construction signs and 

window signs. 
  (2) Such exemptions shall, however, apply to the requirement for a permit 

only and shall not be construed as relieving an owner or sign erector of 
such installation from responsibility for zoning provisions, erection and 
maintenance in a safe condition, or from conformity with applicable 
provisions of this chapter governing location, material, construction and 
erection. 

  (3) Note that certain signs exempted by the Ohio Building Code, specifically 
walls signs, ground signs and projecting signs, are not totally exempted 
herein. 



 

 

1333.10                                            BUILDING CODE                                             60 
 
 
  (4) It shall be the responsibility of an owner or sign erector to ascertain that 

such exempted sign erected conforms to the provisions of this Code and 
the Zoning Ordinance. In the event that an exempted sign is erected and is 
in violation of any provisions of this Code or the Zoning Ordinance, it 
shall immediately be changed to comply with such provisions or removed 
upon order of the Building Superintendent. 

   (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1333.10  OUTDOOR SIGN PERMIT AND INSPECTION FEES. 
 Fees. As required by Section 1311.01, Payment required before permit issued, Penalty 
and 1311.03, Schedule of Fees. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

61 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1335 
Electrical Work 

 
 
1335.01 Scope and standards. 
1335.02 Electrical licenses. 
REGISTRATION 
1335.03 Electrical inspector. 
1335.04 Civil Service Clerk. 
RESERVED 
1335.05 Duties of Civil Service Clerk. 
RESERVED 
1335.06 Specific requirements for 
 Licensing. REGISTRATIONS 

1335.07 Permits. 
1335.08 Schedule of electrical permit 
 and inspection fees. 
1335.09 Beginning work without 
 permit. 
1335.10 Approved methods. 
1335.11 Inspections. 
1335.12 Appeals. 
 

 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
   Adoption by reference - see CHTR. §4.11 
   Craft license - see BLDG. Ch. 1315 
 
 
 
 
 
 1335.01  SCOPE AND STANDARDS. 
 (a) For the purpose of this Code, electrical installations shall include all electrical 
wiring, appliances, apparatus, and devices used in furnishing light, heat, power or for any other 
purpose in the City. 
 
 (b) Except as otherwise provided in this Code and except where more restrictive 
provisions govern, all electrical work shall be in conformity with the National Electrical Code 
published by the National Fire Protection Association and adopted by reference in the Ohio 
Building Code, adopted by Section 1301.03(b) of the Building Code ORDINANCE. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1335.02  ELECTRICAL LICENSES REGISTRATIONS. 
 (a) License. REGISTRATION 
  (1) No person or persons shall, without complying with the provisions herein, 

install wires, conduit apparatus, fixtures, or other appliances in or on any 
public or private building for lighting or heating by electricity or for the 
use of electrical power or repair or change any electrical wires or wire in 
any public or private building; and the Building Superintendent shall 
condemn and cause immediately to be removed any and all wires which he 
finds to have been installed in violation of this Code. 

  (2) This Code shall not be so construed as to forbid the attachment, by other 
than duly licensed REGISTERED persons, of ordinary appliances, lamps 
and apparatus for which circuits and wires were installed and designed. 



 

 

1335.02                                           BUILDING CODE                                              62 
 
 
 (b) Responsibility.  In case of a person, firm or corporation employing a master 
electrical licenseholder REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN, both such person, firm or corporation 
and the master electrician  licenseholder REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN shall be responsible 
for all violations under this Code. 
 
 (c) Eligibility. 
  (1) An applicant for a master electrician license shall have had at least eight 

years practical experience in electrical work, or four years as a 
journeyman, or shall have satisfactorily completed a course of study in 
electrical engineering given by a recognized school, plus one year of 
practical experience in electrical engineering, or shall be a graduate 
electrical engineer. AN ELECTRCIAL REGISTRATION MUST 
HAVE A CURRENT LICENSE WITH THE OHIO 
CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD AS A 
MASTER ELECTRICIAN ISSUED UNDER OHIO REVISED 
CODE CHAPTER 4740. 

  (2) A. An applicant for an industrial electrician license shall have at least 
ten years practical experience in electrical work, as defined in this 
Code, or shall have satisfactorily completed a course of study in 
electrical engineering given by a recognized school, plus one year 
of practical experience in electrical engineering. 

   B. The requirements of this subsection shall be waived in the case 
where the industry employs a plant engineer as defined in Section 
1309.01©. 

  (3) An applicant for a HVAC electrician license shall be a licensed HVAC 
journeyman or master licenseholder.  The licensed HVAC journeyman 
may be in the steady employ of only one master HVAC licenseholder. 

 
 (d) Liability Insurance Required.  Each applicant for an electrical license 
REGISTRATION shall provide a certificate indicating that valid liability insurance in 
solvent insurance companies licensed to do business by the State of Ohio, has been 
obtained and maintained.  Such insurance shall contain standard liability coverage 
provisions with respect to the business of such person and insuring such person against 
any claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of any negligent act of such 
person or his agents or employees occurring in the course of such business, with 
minimum limits of liability as follows: 

   $250,000/$500,000 bodily injury liability 
   $250,000 property damage liability 
  (1) Such insurance policy shall contain a clause that ten days notice of 

cancellation, or material change in the policy, shall be furnished to the 
City of Fairfield Building Division, and shall also provide that the City of 
Fairfield is a named insured along with the contractor applicant, if 
possible. 

  (2) The requirements set forth shall be mandatory for all new applicants.  All 
holders of licenses REGISTRATIONS issued prior to the enactment of 
this subsection shall be required to comply within thirty days of official 
notification of the requirement by the City Building Division. 

 
 (e) Exemption to Electrical License Requirement.  Persons performing repairs to the 
underground electrical service conductors on existing one, two and three family residential 
homes necessitated by outages due to any fault shall be exempt from the requirements of 
electrical licenses.  All work and materials shall conform to Article 110 of the National Electric 
Code. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

63                                                        Electrical Work                                      1335.05 
 
 
 1335.03  ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR. 
 (a) Appointment and Title. There is hereby created the office of Electrical Inspector 
for the purpose of inspecting electrical work and equipment listed in Section 1335.01 of this 
Code. This inspector shall be known as the Electrical Inspector and shall be appointed in 
accordance with the rules and regulations of the Civil Service Commission. He shall be a 
certified electrical safety inspector, certified by the State of Ohio, Board of Building Standards. 
 
 (b) Duties. 
  (1) The duties of the Electrical Inspector shall be to inspect all electrical work 

in the area covered by this Code for which permits are required under this 
Code and to see that all such electrical work is performed in accordance 
with the provisions hereof; to stop any electrical work being done in 
violation of the terms hereof and to post "stop work" signs therefor; to 
order any such electrical work removed or corrected to conform herewith; 
to issue certificate of electrical inspection on satisfactory completion of 
projects, provided, however, that no "stop work" order so posted shall 
affect work not governed by this Code except where the progress of any 
such work would interfere with inspection of electrical work governed by 
this Code. The Electrical Inspector shall enforce the provisions of this 
Code relative to electrical work and he or his duly authorized 
representative may enter any building, structure or premises in the City to 
perform any duty imposed on him by this Code. 

  (2) The Electrical Inspector may be assigned to duties in addition to his duties 
as Electrical Inspector. 

   (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1335.04  CIVIL SERVICE CLERK. 
 The Civil Service Clerk shall examine applicants for electrician licenses. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1335.05  DUTIES OF CIVIL SERVICE CLERK. 
 (a) Rules and Procedure. The Building Superintendent shall make such rules and 
prescribe such procedure as may be necessary to achieve conformity with this Code. 
 
 (b) Examinations. 
  (1) The Civil Service Clerk shall have complete control over the examinations 

of applicants for electrician licenses under this Code. 
  (2) An industrial electrician license shall be issued without examination upon 

presentation of a certificate of qualification from his full-time employer. 
 
 (c) Examination Periods. Examinations of applicants shall be conducted at least once 
each calendar month, if needed, at such time and place as the Civil Service Clerk may designate. 
Examination questions shall pertain to the particular license being applied for; shall cover the 
requirements of the National Electric Code and the provisions of this Code. 
 



 

 

1335.06                                           BUILDING CODE                                              64 
 
 
 (d) Passing Grade. The passing grade shall be seventy percent (70%). Any applicant 
who shall fail to receive a passing grade shall be eligible to again apply for examination in the 
following calendar quarter. The Civil Service Clerk shall keep an accurate record of all 
applications for examination, of the examinations given and the results thereof, for a period of 
three years in such depository as may be designated. 
 
 (e) Certificate of License. The Civil Service Clerk shall certify to the proper authority 
the names of all successful applicants for an electrician's license and shall issue a 
recommendation for the issuance of an electrical license. 
 
 (f) Suspension of License. 
  (1) The Board of Building Appeals shall have the authority to suspend or 

revoke any electrician's license granted under this Code for violations 
thereof, after the licenseholder is notified in writing of a complaint, and 
after the licenseholder has had the opportunity to appear before the Board 
of Building Appeals to present his facts concerning the complaint. 

  (2) The Civil Service Clerk shall suspend immediately an industrial license 
upon termination of employment by the certifying employer. 

   (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1335.06  SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING REGISTRATION. 
 (a) License Holder REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN Required. No person, except as 
provided in subsection (k) hereof, firm or corporation, shall install upon real property, wires, 
conduit, apparatus, fixtures, or other appliances in or on any public or private building for light 
or heating by electricity or for the use of electrical power or repair or change any electrical wire 
or wires in any public or private building, unless such person, firm or corporation has regularly 
and steadily in his/its employ a holder of aN master electrician license ELECTRICAL 
REGISTRATION, who shall be the authorized representative of the person, firm or corporation 
in all matters pertaining to this Code. The authorized representative who is the holder of a license 
REGISTRATION may not apply for permits for more than one person, firm or corporation. 
 
 (b) Grace Period Without License Holder REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN. Should 
the authorized representative holder of a master's license, HVAC electrician's license, or 
industrial electrician's license ELECTRICAL REGISTRATION terminate or sever his 
employment, partnership or association with such person, firm or corporation, such person, firm 
or corporation shall have sixty days thereafter to cease all electrical work until the proper license 
REGISTRATION is acquired. 
 
 (c) Application; Examination; REGISTRATION Fee. 
  (1) An applicant for any license REGISTRATION herein shall make 

application for examination on the standard form of the Building 
Inspection Division. (See Chapter 1315.) This form shall contain sufficient 
information to permit the Building Superintendent to determine whether or 
not the applicant meets the requirements set forth in this Code. 

  (2) An examination fee THE FIRST YEAR REGISTRATION FEE which 
shall include the license REGISTRATION fee until the next following 
December 31 shall be in an amount as follows: 

 
   Examination/License REGISTRATION Fee  
   Master Electrician    $100.00  
   Industrial electrician       25.00  
   HVAC electrician      35.00  



 

 

65                                                        Electrical Work                                     1335.06 
 
 
  (3) Any applicant failing in his examination shall not have his fee returned to 

him but shall be entitled to two re-examinations within a year following 
the first examination, such re-examination to be taken not more than once 
each calendar quarter. If the applicant fails to pass the examination within 
one year, the examination fee is forfeited to the City. These licenses shall 
not be transferable. 

  (4) Any applicant for a master electrician license must produce evidence 
showing that a place of business is or will be maintained by such applicant 
or by the person, firm or corporation employing such applicant. 

  (5) An industrial electrician's license shall be issued after certification by the 
Civil Service Clerk without examination upon presentation to the Building 
Superintendent of a certificate of qualification from his full-time 
employer. No examination is required for an apprentice electrician license. 

 
 (d) Forms of License. Three forms of license shall be issued, as follows: 
  (1) Class "A". Master Electrician License. Authorizing work by any person, 

firm or corporation or their employees in general electrical work. 
  (2) Class "C". Industrial Electrician License. Authorizing an employee of a 

manufacturing plant to perform and supervise all electrical work 
performed at the site of manufacturing of such plant. There need not be 
more than one licenseholder for each plant. 

  (3) Class "E". HVAC Electrician License. Authorizing an individual to install 
electrical work related to the installation of heating, ventilating and air 
conditioning equipment in accordance with this chapter. 

 
 (e) Issuance of Master Electrician License. Any applicant having complied with the 
provisions of this Code and having successfully passed the examination for master electrician as 
prescribed shall be certified by the Civil Service Clerk to the Building Division to be issued a 
master license. 
 
 (f) Issuance of Industrial Electrician License. An industrial electrician license shall 
be issued by the Building Division only to an individual, and shall not be transferable. It shall be 
in effect only when the holder is a full-time employee of a manufacturing plant. 
 
 (g) Issuance of HVAC Electrician License. An HVAC electrician license shall only 
be issued to an individual and shall not be transferable. Any applicant having fully complied with 
the provisions of this Code and having successfully passed the required examination for HVAC 
electrician shall upon recommendation of the Civil Service Clerk be issued a license by the 
Building Division. 
 
 (h) (d) License REGISTRATION Renewal; Fees. 
  (1) Electrician licenses of all classes ELECTRICAL REGISTRATIONS 

may be renewed as much as one month prior to their expiration date, upon 
payment to the Building Division of the appropriate fee. Fees for license 
REGISTRATION renewals shall be as follows: 

 
   License REGISTRATION   Fee  
   Master Electrician    $35.00  
   Industrial electrician      25.00  
   HVAC electrician      20.00  



 

 

1335.07                                           BUILDING CODE                                              66 
 
 
  (2) A one month extension beyond the expiration date of electrician licenses 

ELECTRICAL REGISTRATION is provided by this Code, in which 
time the licenses REGISTRATION may be renewed without penalty. 
However, failure to renew an electrician license ELECTRICAL 
REGISTRATION on or before January 31 following the expiration date 
of the license REGISTRATION terminates the license 
REGISTRATION and such license REGISTRATION is forfeited for 
nonpayment of the renewal fee. 

  (3) No person whose electrician license ELECTRICAL REGISTRATION 
has not been renewed under provisions of this Code shall perform any 
work governed by this Code until such time as a REGISTRATION 
renewal license is issued. 

  (4) Any such license REGISTRATION forfeited for nonpayment of the 
renewal fee may be reinstated upon fee payment according to the 
following schedule: 

 
Delinquent License REGISTRATION Renewal Fee Schedule 

   A. Master Licenses ELECTRICAL REGISTRATION:  $35.00 
renewal fee for each year the license has not been renewed plus a 
$35.00 penalty. 

   B. Industrial Licenses:  $25.00 renewal fee for each year the license 
has not been renewed plus a $25.00 penalty. 

   C. HVAC Electrician License:  $20.00 renewal fee for each year the 
license has not been renewed plus a $20.00 penalty. 

  (5) In the event a period longer than three years has expired from the date of 
the expiration of the license REGISTRATION prior to an application by 
the holder thereof for renewal, no license REGISTRATION shall be 
issued by the Civil Service Clerk without reexamination of the applicant 
for renewal and WITHOUT the payment of examination 
REGISTRATION fees as set forth in Section 1335.06(c).  Applicants 
possessing a current electrical contractor’s license from the State of Ohio, 
issued under Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4740, shall pay renewal fees 
only without reexamination. 

 
 (i) Owner-Occupant Exemption.  The owner-occupant of a single-family dwelling 
may, with the assistance of any member of his family or household, personally perform, in such 
house, any work governed by this Code without a license REGISTRATION, provided that such 
owner shall obtain a permit for any such work and shall call for inspection as hereinafter 
provided. 
 
 (j) Unlawful to Loan License REGISTRATION.  It shall be unlawful for an 
electrician license holder A REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN to loan his license 
REGISTRATION to obtain a permit for work by others in his name for the use of any other 
person. 
 
 (k) Reciprocity.  The Building Superintendent may grant licenses under this section 
without examination pursuant to reciprocity agreements with other jurisdictions in which the 
applicant is licensed.  Reciprocity agreements must be approved by the City Manager.  In 
addition to reciprocity agreements with other jurisdictions, applicants possessing a current 
electrical contractor’s license from the State of Ohio, issued under Ohio Revised Code Chapter 
4740, will also be given reciprocity.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1335.07  PERMITS. 
 (a) Permit to Do Work Required. 
  (1) No person, firm or corporation, unless herein specifically exempt, shall 



 

 

install any electrical work as set forth in Section 1335.02 without the 
holder of a master electrician license REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN 
first making written application and securing a permit therefor, setting 
forth the nature of the work to be performed. 

 



 

 

67                                                        Electrical Work                                     1335.06 
 
 
  (2) In existing dwellings HVAC electrician license holders may apply for and 

secure permits to install electrical work related to the installation of a 
single furnace or space heating appliance and/or a single air conditioning 
unit not exceeding three ton capacity, except this shall not include the 
installation of electrical main services or electric service entrances when 
such are affected, or electric heat appliances. 

  (3) Load circulations and or drawing approval required unless waived by the 
Building Superintendent. 

 
 (b) Emergency Work.  In case of emergency, a master REGISTERED electrician 
may proceed with the work and file the application for a permit within twenty-four hours, 
Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted. 
 
 (c) Plans Required.  The application for a permit shall be accompanied by all 
necessary plans, in duplicate, for the proposed construction, installation or alteration and with all 
proper and sufficient information relating thereto, as required by the Building Superintendent. 
 
 (d) Minor Work Requires No Permit.  No permit shall be required for work as 
follows: 
  (1) Minor repair work such as repairing flush and snap switches, replacing 

fuses, changing lamp sockets and receptacles, taping joints and repairing 
drop cords, the replacement of lamps or the connection of portable devices 
to suitable receptacles which have been permanently installed or the repair 
or replacement of motors and/or motor controls with motors and/or motor 
controls of equal or smaller capacity where no change of wiring other than 
terminal connectors is required. 

  (2) The installation of wiring, devices or equipment  for the operation of 
signals or for the transmission of intelligence where such wiring devices 
or equipment are an integral part of a communication system owned or 
operated by a telephone or telegraph company, and the installation of 
electric wiring, devices or equipment installed for the use of such 
company to provide lighting for drive-up, walk-up and telephone booths. 

  (3) The installation of electric wiring, devices or equipment installed for or by 
a public utility corporation operating under a franchise from the City to 
transmit and sell or use electrical energy, provided such wiring devices or 
equipment are for the use of such corporation in its operation as a public 
utility on its own premises. 

  (4) Any electrical work performed as a part of a manufacturing process in a 
manufacturing plant. 

  (5) The repair of underground electrical service conductors for existing one, 
two and three family residential homes shall not require a permit and no 
inspections are required.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 

 
 



 

 

1335.08                                           BUILDING CODE                                              68 
 
 
 1335.08  SCHEDULE OF ELECTRICAL PERMIT AND INSPECTION FEES. 
 (a) Fees.  Before  any permit is granted for the installation or alteration of electric 
wiring, devices or equipment, the person, firm or corporation making application for such permit 
shall pay to the City a fee predicated upon the following schedule for the inspection to be made 
AS DEFINED IN SECTION 1311.03 SCHEDULE OF FEES. 
 
 (b) Electrical Permits and Inspection Fees. 
  Residential: 
  Single-family dwelling (new)   $60.00 per residence 
  Remodeling and additions    40.00 
 
  Multi-Unit Structures: 
  First 12 units      60.00 per unit 
  Each additional unit     50.00 per unit 
 
  Commercial and Industrial Structures (new and additions): 
  New structures, remodeling and   $75.00 base fee plus $2.00 
  additions over $5,000    for every 1,000 square feet. 
 
  Remodeling ($5,000 or less)    40.00 base fee 
 
  Sign fee      25.00 
  Reinspection fee     25.00 
  Temporary heat release    25.00 
  Temporary pole release    25.00 
  Swimming pool bonding    25.00 
  Swimming pool wiring    25.00 
  Mobile home or manufactured house  25.00 per space 
  Baseboard strip heat     25.00 
 
 (c) In addition to the fees provided in subsection (b) above, for all permits or fees 
involving plan submittal for commercial or industrial structures, an additional fee for plan review 
cost equal to ten percent (10%) of the fee stated in subsection (b) above shall be charged and 
paid by the applicant before the permit is granted.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1335.09  BEGINNING WORK WITHOUT PERMIT. 
 The fee for any work started prior to obtaining a permit shall be the greater of double the 
permit fee or $100.00 for the first offense. The greater of double the permit fee or $200.00 for 
the second and additional offense(s).  However, the payment of such doubled fee shall not 
relieve any person from fully complying with all the requirements of this Code nor exempt them 
from any other penalty herein prescribed.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1335.10  APPROVED METHODS. 
 (a) Rules and Regulations.  Electric wiring, devices and equipment shall be installed 
in strict conformity with the National Electric Code., except that: 
  (1) The use of aluminum and/or copper clad aluminum wire up to and 

including AWG No. 8 is prohibited in the City. 
  (2) Residences with electric heating installations over twenty-two KW shall 

be supplied with no less than a three hundred ampere service. 
 



 

 

69                                                        Electrical Work                                      1335.11 
 
 
 (b) Rewiring Existing Dwellings.  When rewiring existing dwellings the following 
requirements shall be met: 
  (1) New electric services installed on existing buildings (replacements) shall 

be a minimum of 100 ampere, 3 wire. 
  (2) One 230 volt - 50 ampere range circuit and receptacle shall be installed in 

the kitchen where no gas connection is available. 
  (3) Furnaces or boilers shall be on a separate circuit with a disconnect switch 

in sight of the unit. 
  (4) Pull chain fixtures shall not be installed above plumbing fixtures, laundry 

trays, etc. 
  (5) A lighting fixture shall be installed adjacent to central heating units. 
  (6) Lighting fixtures shall be installed near basement steps. 
  (7) One lighting circuit shall be provided for each 500 square feet of living 

area. 
  (8) Two twenty ampere circuits shall be provided for existing and additional 

required receptacles in the kitchen. 
  (9) Kitchen, bathroom and appliance circuits shall be grounded. 
  (10) A switch controlled lighting outlet shall be provided in the kitchen, hall, 

bath, bedroom, stairs and utility room.  Porches, or entrys, front, side or 
rear, may be bracket type for wall. 

  (11) A minimum of one duplex outlet for each fifty-five square feet of floor 
area in every habitable room is required and the receptacles shall be 
spaced at least twelve feet apart. 

  (12) GFI protection shall be installed in all locations as required by the 
National Electric Code.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 

 
 1335.11  INSPECTIONS. 
 (a) Notification; Time; Number of Inspections.  Immediately upon completion of 
those portions of the installation which are thereafter to be concealed or covered, the electrical 
contractor shall notify the Electrical Inspector or the Building Inspection Division, giving the 
location of the work, that such portions of the installation are ready for inspection; and no 
person, firm or corporation shall lath over, plaster, or cover up any electrical work before such 
work has been inspected and the electrical sticker initialed.  The Electrical Inspector shall have 
the right and authority to order the removal of all such lath, plaster, or covering which may have 
been placed over such work before same has been inspected.  The Electrical Inspector must make 
inspection within two working days after notice, excepting Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  
Final inspection on new installations to be made upon completion of such work.  Inspection of 
repair, replacement or conversion work is to be made upon completion of such work.  All 
inspections must be requested in person or by telephone by the electrical contractor. 



 

 

1335.12                                           BUILDING CODE                                              70 
 
 
 (b) Stop Work Order. Wherever any work or project governed by the provisions of 
this chapter and for which a permit has been issued, as provided herein, is being performed or 
carried on in violation of any of the provisions of this Code, it shall be the duty of the Electrical 
Inspector to post a "stop work" order signed by the Building Superintendent, on the premises 
where such work is in progress; and to notify the permit holder or his agent of such stop work 
order and the reason therefor. After the posting of such notice, no person, firm or corporation 
shall do any further work on such project which would interfere with further inspections under 
this chapter, until such time as the defects or violations of this Code have been eliminated to the 
approval of the Electrical Inspector, and the "stop work" order has been removed by him. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1335.12  APPEALS. 
 An appeal may be taken to the Board of Building Appeals by anyone adversely affected 
by a decision with regard to the application of this Electrical Code, in accordance with Section 
1317.08. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

71 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1337 
Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning 

 
 
1337.01 Scope and standards. 
1337.02 HVAClicense 
REGISTRATION. 
1337.03 Inspector of HVAC. 
1337.04 Civil Service Clerk. 
RESERVED 
1337.05 Duties of Civil Service Clerk. 
RESERVED 
1337.06 Specific requirements for 
 licensing. REGISTRATION 
1337.07 Permits. 
1337.08 HVAC permit and inspection 
 fees. 
1337.09 Permits for installation. 
1337.10 Heat loss. 
1337.11 Capacity and sizes of 
 equipment. 
1337.12 Safety requirements. 
1337.13 Codes. 
 

1337.14 Reserved. 
1337.15 Reserved. 
1337.16 Reserved. 
1337.17 Reserved. 
1337.18 Reserved. 
1337.19 Electric wiring. 
1337.20 Reserved. 
1337.21 Reserved. 
1337.22 Reserved. 
1337.23 Inspections. 
1337.24 Reserved. 
1337.25 Reserved. 
1337.26 Reserved. 
1337.27 Reserved. 
1337.28 Wet heat and piping code. 
1337.29 Air conditioning. 
 

 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
    Craft licenses - see BLDG. Ch. 1315 
    Design criteria - see BLDG. Ch. 1325 
    Electrical work - see BLDG. Ch. 1335 
 
 
 
 
 
 1337.01  SCOPE AND STANDARDS. 
 (a) For the purpose of this Code, heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) 
shall include, but is not limited to, the following types of systems and appurtenances, as defined 
and limited under other sections of this Code. 
  (1) All warm air heat producing equipment of every type, whether ducted or 

nonducted, utilizing oil, gas, coal, wood, electric or any other energy 
source in their design, including, but not limited to: 

   A. Forced air systems. 
   B. Gravity warm air systems. 
   C. Radiant heating systems. 
   D. Hydronic heating systems. 
   E. Electric heat pump systems. 



 

 

1337.02                                           BUILDING CODE                                             72 
 
 
  (2) All ventilating systems, whether handled by the same air distribution 

system used for heating/cooling, or if separate. 
  (3) All required exhaust hood systems: 
   A. Restaurants. 
   B. Industrial process. 
  (4) Cooling systems of every type designed and intended to maintain a level 

of comfort within the design temperature requirements as established in 
this Code. 

   (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.02  HVAC LICENSE REGISTRATION. 
 (a) License REGISTRATION. No person, firm or corporation shall act, engage in, 
or advertise or otherwise represent themselves as A HVAC contractor unless an authorized 
representative of such person, firm or corporation shall first obtain A HVAC license 
REGISTRATION  as provided in this Code. 
 
 (b) Responsibility. In case of a person, firm or corporation employing a master 
REGISTERED HVAC licenseholder CONTRACTOR, both such person, firm or corporation 
and the REGISTERED HVAC licenseholder CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all 
violations under this Code. (Ord. 85-83. Passed 6-27-83.) 
 
 (c) Eligibility. An applicant for A master HVAC license REGISTRATION shall 
have had at least two years verifiable experience in heating, ventilating and air conditioning as 
defined in this Code, or shall have satisfactorily completed a course of study, acceptable to the 
Building Superintendent, in heating, ventilating and air conditioning, provided by an accredited 
school authorized by proper authority to teach heating, ventilating and air condition, plus one 
year of practical experience in heating, ventilating and air conditioning or shall be a graduate 
mechanical engineer. A CURRENT LICENSE WITH THE OHIO CONSTRUCTION 
INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD AS A MASTER HVAC CONTRACTOR ISSUED 
UNDER OHIO REVISED CODE CHAPTER 4740. 
 
 (d) Issuance of Master HVAC License REGISTRATION. 
  (1) Any applicant having complied with the provisions of this Code and 

having successfully passed the examination for a master HVAC license 
and upon payment of the required fee shall be issued A master HVAC 
license REGISTRATION to perform and supervise HVAC work. This 
license REGISTRATION shall not be transferable. 

  (2) Each applicant for master A HVAC license REGISTRATION shall 
provide a certificate indicating that valid liability insurance in solvent 
insurance companies licensed to do business by the State of Ohio, has 
been obtained and maintained. Such insurance shall contain standard 
liability coverage provisions with respect to the business of such person, 
and insuring such person against any claims for bodily injury or property 
damage arising out of any negligent act of such person or his agents or 
employees occurring in the course of such business, with minimum limits 
of liability as follows: 

    $250,000/$500,000 bodily injury liability 
    $250,000 property damage liability 

  Such insurance policy shall contain a clause that ten days 
notice of cancellation, or material change in the policy, shall be furnished 
to the City of Fairfield Building Division, and shall also provide that the 
City of Fairfield, Ohio, as a named insured along with the contractor 
applicant, if possible. 



 

 

73                                    Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning                     1337.05 
 
 
  (3) The requirement set forth in subsection (d)(2) hereof shall be mandatory 

for all new applicants. All holders of HVAC master licenses issued prior 
to the enactment of such subsection shall be required to comply with the 
subsection within thirty days of official notification of the requirement by 
the City of Fairfield, Ohio, Building Division. 

   (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.03  INSPECTOR OF HVAC. 
 (a) Appointment and Title. There is hereby created the office of Inspector for the 
purpose of inspection of heating, ventilating and air conditioning equipment as listed in Section 
1337.01. This Inspector shall be known as the Inspector of HVAC and shall be appointed in 
accordance with the rules and regulations of the Civil Service Commission. 
 
 (b) Duties. 
  (1) The duties of the Inspector of HVAC shall be to inspect all work in the 

areas covered by this chapter of the Code for which permits are required 
under this Code and to see that such work is performed in accordance with 
the provisions hereof; to stop any work being done in violation of the 
terms hereof, and post "stop work" signs therefor; to order any such work 
removed or corrected to conform herewith; to issue a certificate of 
approval on satisfactory completion of projects; provided, however, that 
no "stop work" order so posted shall affect work not governed by this 
Code except where the progress of any such work would interfere with 
inspection of work governed by this Code. The Inspector of HVAC shall 
enforce the provisions of this Code relative to HVAC, and he or his duly 
authorized representative may enter any building, structure or premises in 
the City to perform any duty imposed upon him by this Code. 

  (2) The Inspector of HVAC shall review all work to assure conformity with 
the approved mechanical drawings covering the heating/cooling 
equipment proposed for any building and shall approve such work or shall 
cause appropriate changes in the drawings necessary to assure compliance 
with the requirements of this Code. 

  (3) The Inspector of HVAC may be assigned to duties in addition to his duties 
as Inspector of HVAC. 

   (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.04  CIVIL SERVICE CLERK. RESERVED 
 The Civil Service Clerk shall examine applicants for master HVAC license. 
(Ord.   7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.05  DUTIES OF CIVIL SERVICE CLERK. RESERVED 
 (a) Rules and Procedure. The Building Superintendent shall make such rules and 
prescribe such procedure as may be necessary for its operation in conformity with this Code. 
 
 (b) Examination. The Civil Service Clerk shall have complete control over the 
examination of applicants for master HVAC licenses under this Code. 



 

 

1337.06                                           BUILDING CODE                                              74 
 
 
 (c) Examination Periods. Examinations of applicants shall be conducted at least each 
calendar month, if needed, at such time and place as the Civil Service Clerk may designate. 
Examination questions shall pertain to the design, installation, servicing and maintenance of all 
types of heating, ventilating and air conditioning systems, and to the application of the 
requirements of this Code. 
 
 (d) Passing Grades. The passing grade shall be seventy percent (70%). Any applicant 
who fails to receive a passing grade shall be eligible to again apply for examination in the 
following calendar quarter. The Civil Service Clerk shall keep an accurate record of all 
applications for examination, of the examinations given, and the results thereof, for a period of 
three years in such depository as may be designated. 
 
 (e) Certificate of License. The Civil Service Clerk shall certify to the Building 
Superintendent the names of all successful applicants for an HVAC license, and shall issue a 
recommendation for the issuance of an HVAC license. 
 
 (f) Suspension of License. The Board of Building Appeals shall have the authority to 
suspend or revoke any HVAC license granted under this Code for violations thereof, after the 
licenseholder is notified in writing of a complaint, and after the licenseholder has had the 
opportunity to appear before the Board of Building Appeals to present his facts concerning the 
complaint. (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.06  SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING REGISTRATION. 
 (a) License Holder REGISTRATION Required. No person, except as provided in 
subsection (g) hereof, firm or corporation shall install, erect, alter, repair, service, reset or replace 
any HVAC system, or parts thereto, as defined in this Code, unless such person, or some member 
of such firm or corporation, shall first have obtained a master's license A HVAC 
REGISTRATION hereunder or unless such person, firm or corporation has in his/its employ a 
holder of such master license REGISTRATION, who shall be the authorized representative of 
the person, firm or corporation in all matters pertaining to this Code. The authorized 
representative who is the holder of a master license REGISTRATION may not apply for 
permits for more than one person, firm or corporation. 
 
 (b) Grace Period Without License Holder REGISTERED CONTRACTOR. Should 
the authorized representative holder of a master license REGISTRATION terminate or sever his 
employment or association with such person, firm or corporation, such person, firm or 
corporation shall have sixty days thereafter to cease all warm air heating work governed by the 
requirements under this Code, until the proper license REGISTRATION is acquired. 
 
 (c) Application; Examination; REGISTRATION Fee. 
  (1) An applicant for any license herein shall make application for examination 

REGISTRATION on the standard form of the Building Inspection 
Division. (See Chapter 1315.) This form shall contain sufficient 
information to permit the Building Superintendent to determine whether or 
not the applicant meets the requirements set forth in this Code. 

  (2) An examination INITIAL REGISTRATION fee which includes the 
license fee until the next following December 31, shall be in an amount as 
follows: 

 
   License REGISTRATION Fee  
   Master HVAC   $100.00  



 

 

75                                    Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning                       1337.06 
 
 

  Any applicant failing in his examination shall not have his 
fee returned to him, but shall be entitled to two re-examinations within a 
year following the first examination, the re-examinations to be taken not 
more than once each calendar quarter. If the applicant fails to pass the 
examination within one year, the examination fee is forfeited to the City. 
This license shall not be transferable. 

  (3) Any applicant for a master HVAC license must produce evidence showing 
that a place of business is or will be maintained by such applicant or by 
the person, firm or corporation employing such applicant. 

 
 (d) Form of License REGISTRATION. 
  (1) Master HVAC license REGISTRATION. Every person, firm or 

corporation engaging in HVAC work in the City shall comply with 
Section 1337.02. 

 
 (e) Issuance of Master HVAC License REGISTRATION. Any applicant having 
complied with the provisions of this Code and having successfully passed the examination for a 
master HVAC license as prescribed by the Civil Service Clerk shall be certified by the Civil 
Service Clerk to the Building Division to be issued a master HVAC license upon MADE 
payment of the required fee WILL BE ISSUED A HVAC REGISTRATION. 
 
 (f) License REGISTRATION Renewal; Fees. 
  (1) Fee for license REGISTRATION renewals is as follows: 
 
   License REGISTRATION   Fee  
   Master HVAC     $35.00  
  (2) A one month extension beyond the expiration date of the HVAC license 

REGISTRATION is provided by this Code, in which time the HVAC 
license REGISTRATION may be renewed without penalty. However, 
failure to renew A HVAC license REGISTRATION on or before January 
31, following the expiration date of the license REGISTRATION 
terminates the license REGISTRATION and such license 
REGISTRATION is forfeited for nonpayment of the renewal fee. 

  (3) No person whose HVAC license REGISTRATION has not been renewed 
under provisions of this Code shall perform any work governed by this 
Code until such time as a renewal license REGISTRATION RENEWAL 
is issued. 

  (4) Any such license REGISTRATION forfeited for nonpayment of the 
renewal fee may be reinstated upon payment of a thirty-five dollar 
($35.00) renewal fee for each year the license REGISTRATION has not 
been renewed, plus a thirty-five dollar ($35.00) penalty. 

  (5) In the event a period longer than three years has expired from the date of 
the expiration of such license REGISTRATION prior to an application 
by the holder thereof for renewal, no license REGISTRATION shall be 
issued without re-examination of the applicant and the payment of 
examination  RENEWAL fees as set forth in subsection (c) hereof. 

 
 (g) Owner-Occupant Exemption. The owner-occupant of a single family dwelling 
may, with the assistance of any member of his family or household personally perform in such 
house any work governed by this Code without a license REGISTRATION provided that such 
owner shall obtain a permit for any such work and shall call for inspection as hereinafter 
provided. 



 

 

1337.07                                           BUILDING CODE                                              76 
 
 
 (h) Unlawful to Loan License REGISTRATION. No master REGISTERED 
HVAC licensee CONTRACTOR shall loan his license REGISTRATION or obtain a permit 
for work by others in his name for the use of any other person. 
 
 (i) Reciprocity. The Building Superintendent may grant licenses under this section 
without examination pursuant to reciprocity agreements with other jurisdictions in which the 
applicant is licensed. Reciprocity agreements must be approved by the City Manager. In addition 
to reciprocity agreements with other jurisdictions, applicants possessing current HVAC 
contractor's license from the State of Ohio, issued under Ohio R.C. Chapter 4740, will also be 
given reciprocity. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.07  PERMITS. 
 (a) Permit to Do Work Required. No person, firm or corporation shall construct or 
install any HVAC equipment or appurtenances, such as are subject to the provisions of this 
Code, in and for any building or alter or repair any such existing HVAC equipment or 
appurtenances as are subject to the provisions of this Code, without the holder of a master 
HVAC license A HVAC REGISTRATION first making written application and securing a 
permit therefor setting forth the nature of the work to be performed. 
 
 (b) Emergency Work. In cases of emergency, the holder of a master license 
REGISTRATION may proceed with the work and file the application for a permit within 
twenty-four hours, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted. 
 
 (c) Plans Required. The application for a permit shall be accompanied by all 
necessary plans, in triplicate DUPLICATE, for the proposed construction, installation or 
alteration and with all proper and sufficient information relating thereto if required by the 
Building Superintendent. 
 
 (d) Minor Work Requires No Permit. No permit shall be required for minor repairs  
or servicing; however, all alterations, additions and work which exceeds two hundred dollars 
($200.00) in value shall require a permit. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.08   HVAC PERMIT AND INSPECTION FEES. 
 (a) Fees.   Before any permit is granted for the installation, alteration or repair of 
HVAC equipment, the person, firm or corporation making application for such permit shall pay 
the City a fee predicated upon the following schedule for the inspections to be made.AS 
DEFINED IN SECTION 1311.03 SCHEDULE OF FEES. 
 
 (b)                                        Fee Schedule “A” 

250,000 BTUs or Less 
 

 Each unit less than 250,000 BTUH heating; or less than 5 tons, 60,000 
BTUH cooling; use the chart below: 

  (1) Heating only     $40.00 each unit 
  (2) Cooling only       40.00 each unit 
  (3) Heating and cooling combined    60.00 each unit 
  (4) Miscellaneous heating equipment, 
   e.g., space heaters, infrared heaters, 
   unit heaters, refrigeration equipment, 
   etc.        40.00 each unit 



 

 

77                                   Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning                        1337.08 
 
 
  (5) Steam or hot water boilers     40.00 each unit 
  (6) Multi-family       45.00 each unit 
  (7) Supply air and return air outlets      2.00 each 
 
   All reinspections      25.00 each 
 
                                                               Fee Schedule “B” 

250,000 BTUs or More 
 

 Each unit more than 250,000 BTUH heating; or more than 5 tons, 60,000 
BTUH cooling, and air ducts, exhaust systems, etc., the fees will be based on 
estimated cost of work being performed as follows: 

 
  Estimated Cost    Fees 
  $10,000 or less    See Schedule “A” above 
 
  $10,001 - $50,000    $70.00 plus $3.00 per $1,000 

valuation or part thereof, over 
$10,000 plus item (7), Schedule “A”. 

 
  $50,001 - $100,000    $220.00 plus $2.00 per $1,000 

valuation or part thereof, over 
$50,000 plus item (7), 
Schedule “A”.  

 
  Over $100,000   $420.00 plus $1.00 per $1,000 valuation or 

part thereof, over $100,000 plus item 
(7), Schedule “A”. 

 
  Reinspections:    For each reinspection made necessary 

because of incomplete work, wrong 
address or faulty construction, the 
owner or agent shall pay a fee of 
$25.00. 

 
 (c) Beginning Work Without Permit. Beginning Work Without Permit. The fee for 
any work started prior to obtaining a permit shall be the greater of double the permit fee or 
$100.00 for the first offense. The greater of double the permit fee or $200.00 for the second and 
additional offense(s).  However the payment of such doubled fee shall not relieve any person 
from fully complying with all the requirements of this Code nor exempt them from any other 
penalty herein prescribed.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

1337.09                                           BUILDING CODE                                              78 
 
 
 1337.09  PERMITS FOR INSTALLATION. 
 (a) Before the installation of any HVAC  system is begun a permit for installation 
shall be issued by the Building Superintendent.  Such permit shall then be placed in the 
permanent records of the Division. 
 
 (b) An application for such permit shall be made by the individual authorized in 
Sections 1337.06 and 1337.07. 
 
 (c) Such application shall show the name of the owner of the building in which the 
system is to be installed, the location of the building, the estimated heat losses of the space to be 
heated, and the capacity of the equipment to be installed. 
 
 (d) A permit for installation of heating or cooling equipment shall be issued only if 
the heat or cooling loss or gain, properly calculated, does not exceed the actual capacity of the 
equipment proposed.  A set of calculations, based on all the pertinent factors concerning the 
location in question, which show the proposed equipment is equal to or exceeds the calculated 
load demand, shall constitute prima facie evidence that the performance of the proposed system 
will meet all requirements of this Code.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.10  HEAT LOSS. 
 (a) Heat loss and gain measurements of the space to be heated or air conditioned shall 
be based on the design temperature for this area: heat 50  Fahrenheit to 750  Fahrenheit (dry bulb); 
cooling 920 Fahrenheit to 750  Fahrenheit (dry bulb). 
 
 (b) Special purpose spaces may require different design temperatures than those 
specified in subsection (a) hereof. 
 
 (c) The measurement of such losses and gains in accordance with the methods 
established in the manual of the National Warm Air Heating and Air Conditioning Association, 
the American Society of Heating and Ventilating Engineers or by any other recognized method, 
shall constitute prima facie evidence that such measurements have been computed properly. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.11  CAPACITY AND SIZES OF EQUIPMENT. 
 (a) The heat generating and/or cooling capacity of equipment shall be equal to or 
greater than the properly calculated load which is to be imposed upon it. 
 
 (b) Determination of the capacity required of equipment and the sizes of the supply 
and return systems shall be in accordance with the methods established in the codes and manuals 
of the National Warm Air Heating and Air Conditioning Association, the American Society of 
Heating and Ventilating Engineers, or other recognized methods. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

79                                   Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning                        1337.19 
 
 
 1337.12  SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. 
 (a) HVAC systems shall be so installed as to be reasonably fire safe and free from 
health and physical hazards under conditions of normal use. All heat generating equipment and 
heating appliances of every type shall be installed according to the installation instruction 
supplied by the manufacturer of such equipment or appliance. In no installation shall 
combustible material be less than eighteen inches from equipment or surfaces which may exceed 
250 degrees Fahrenheit. 
 
 (b) Installation of used equipment is prohibited except equipment which is safe and 
suitable to perform the function for which it was designed, and also for the use intended, may be 
installed after the HVAC license holder REGISTERED HVAC CONTRACTOR submits a 
written statement to the Building Superintendent certifying that such used equipment is safe and 
functional for the use intended. The Building Superintendent may require additional 
documentation of tests performed on the equipment, or other evidence which he may deem 
necessary to support the statement submitted. In no case shall used equipment be installed prior 
to approval by the Building Superintendent. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.13  CODES. 
 (a) All one, two, and three family residential installations shall meet the requirements 
of the OBOA Residential Code RESIDENTIAL CODE OF OHIO, CURRENT EDITION, 
adopted by Section 1301.03(a) of the Building Code. 
 
 (b) All residential installations for more than three family units, commercial, 
industrial, institutional, etc., shall meet the requirements of the Ohio Mechanical Code, or  most 
recent edition, adopted by Section 1301.03(b) of the Building Code. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.14  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation. 
 
 1337.15  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.16  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.17  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.18  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.19  ELECTRIC WIRING. 
 (a) Electric wiring of 24 volts or less may be installed by a master heating 
licenseholder. REGISTERED HVAC CONTRACTOR. 
 
 (b) Electric wiring of greater than 24 volts shall be installed by an electrician duly 
licensed under the provisions of this Code. Exception: See Chapter 1335 for provisions of 
HVAC Electrician license. A REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN.  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

1337.20                                           BUILDING CODE                                              80 
 
 
 1337.20  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.21  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.22  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.23  INSPECTIONS. 
 (a) Notification; Time; Number of Inspections. Immediately upon completion of 
those portions of the installation which are thereafter to be concealed or covered, the heating 
contractor shall notify the Inspector of HVAC giving the location of the work, that such portions 
of the installation are ready for inspection; no person, firm or corporation shall lath over, plaster, 
or cover up any heating work before such work has been inspected and approved. The Inspector 
of HVAC shall have the right and authority to order the removal of all such lath, plaster, or other 
covering which may have been placed over such work before same has been inspected. The 
Inspector of HVAC must provide such requested inspection within two working days after 
notice, excepting Saturdays, Sundays and holidays. Upon completion of new installations and 
when otherwise applicable, a final inspection and approval by the HVAC Inspector is required. It 
shall be the responsibility of the master HVAC licenseholder REGISTERED HVAC 
CONTRACTOR to notify the Inspector of HVAC when the installation is ready for final 
inspection. 
 
 (b) Stop Work Order.  Wherever any work or project governed by the provisions of 
this chapter and for which a permit has been issued, as provided herein, is being performed or 
carried on in violation of any of the provisions of this Code, it shall be the duty of the Inspector 
of HVAC to post a printed notice to "stop work" signed by the Building Superintendent on the 
premises where such work is in progress; and to notify the permit holder of such "stop work" 
order and the reason therefor. After posting of such notice, no person, firm or corporation shall 
do any further work on such project which would interfere with further inspections under this 
chapter, until such time as the defects or violations of this Code have been corrected to the 
approval of the Inspector of HVAC and the "stop work" sign has been removed by him. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.24  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.25  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.26  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 
 
 1337.27  RESERVED. 
 (EDITOR'S NOTE: This section is reserved for future legislation.) 



 

 

81                                   Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning                        1337.29 
 
 
 1337.28  WET HEAT AND PIPING CODE. 
 (a) General Provisions. Before a permit shall be issued for the installation of any 
steam or hot water boiler, or any device performing some specific service in connection with any 
hot or cold water heating or air conditioning system or plant, the capacity of which might affect, 
in whole or in part, the efficiency of the system or plant, the contractor installing such device, or 
the manufacturer of same, shall furnish the HVAC Inspector with such test data, measurements, 
ratings, capacities or other information as may be required for the purpose of determining ratings 
or capacities of such devices in accordance with the provisions of these regulations. 
 
 (b) Alterations, Additions and Repairs. Wherever the heating or air conditioning 
requirements, as determined by these provisions, of any existing building provided with a hot or 
cold water heating or air conditioning system or plant are hereafter increased or altered, either by 
the construction of an addition or additions to such building or by an increase in the portion of 
the building to be heated or conditioned or in any other manner, the capacity of the heating or air 
conditioning system or plant serving same shall be increased to that capacity which would be 
required by this Code for a new installation designed to meet equal heating or air conditioning 
requirements. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1337.29  AIR CONDITIONING. 
 (a) Scope. This section shall apply to the installation, alteration, repair and/or 
replacement of all air conditioning systems used or to be used in or about any building within the 
City. 
 
 (b) Standards. 
  (1) No discharge from a condensing unit of any air conditioning system or 

installation shall be connected into the sanitary sewer system of the City. 
Discharge from a condensing unit of any air conditioning system or 
installation in excess of 300 gallons per minute shall be approved by the 
City Engineer. 

  (2) Where underground water in excess of 300 gallons per minute is used in 
connection with any air conditioning system or installation in the City, it 
shall be returned to the ground through suitable return wells subject to the 
approval of the Public Utilities Director. 

  (3) Where a combination heating and cooling system is used, a heating permit 
must be issued. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 

 
 



 

 



 

 

83 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1339 
Safeguards During Construction and Demolition 

 
 
1339.01 Compliance required. 
1339.02 Allowable use of public 
property 
 during construction. 
1339.03 Where covered walkways are 
 required. 
1339.04 Construction of walkways, 
 fences and protective covering. 
1339.05 Walkways over excavated 
areas. 
1339.06 Storage of materials over 
 walkways. 
1339.07 Walkways to be kept in repair. 
1339.08 Cleaning of sidewalks and 
 streets. 

1339.09 Lights required. 
1339.10 Protection of roofs and 
skylights 
 of adjoining buildings. 
1339.11 Fire protection. 
1339.12 Temporary heating. 
1339.13 Watchman. 
1339.14 Storage of material on streets. 
1339.15 Basement drainage. 
1339.16 Disposal of waste. 
1339.17 Demolition. 
 

 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
   Excavation liability - see Ohio R.C. 723.49 
   Enforcement and penalty - see BLDG., Ch. 1305 
  
 
 
 
 
 1339.01  COMPLIANCE REQUIRED. 
 The temporary use of streets or public property for the storage or handling of materials or 
of equipment required for construction or demolition, and the protection provided to the public, 
shall be in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.02  ALLOWABLE USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY DURING 
CONSTRUCTION. 
 No public property may be used for construction or demolition purposes without the 
written permission of the Building Superintendent. The amount of space and conditions under 
which public property may be used for construction or demolition purposes shall be as set forth 
below. 



 

 

1339.03                                           BUILDING CODE                                              84 
 
 
 (a) For such purposes, not more than one-third of the width of the street that is 

adjacent to the curb in front of the building being erected, and for which a permit 
has been issued, shall be used. If the street in front of the property adjoining such 
building is to be used for similarly limited storage, a due waiver of claim against 
the City for damages on account of such use, issued by the owner of such 
property, shall be filed with the Building Superintendent before such use shall be 
allowed. 

 (b) Street or sidewalk space may be used under the following conditions: 
  (1) That a walkway be constructed in the outer portion of the permissible 

occupied street space, conforming to the requirements of Section 1339.03. 
  (2) That no building material, fence, shed or any obstruction of any kind shall 

be placed so as to obstruct free approach to any fire hydrant, lamp post, 
manhole, fire alarm box, or catch basin, or so as to interfere with the 
passage of water in the gutter. Protection against damage shall be provided 
to such utility fixtures during the progress of the work, but sight of them 
shall not be obstructed. 

  (3) That a ten foot clear roadway be maintained through any alley located 
along the building site. 

  (4) That proper precaution shall be made during construction to prevent 
concrete, mortar washings, or any other material from entering a sewer or 
catch basin. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 

 
 1339.03  WHERE COVERED WALKWAYS ARE REQUIRED. 
 During the erection or demolition of any building exceeding one story in height that is 
located at a distance less than ten feet or is located less than one-quarter of the height of the 
building from any street or alley property line, a roof covering for the entire length of the project 
shall be provided over the temporary or permanent sidewalk, from the time the construction or 
demolition extends above the second floor level until materials are no longer being used or 
handled on the floor above such walk. 
 Buildings having their exteriors altered or repaired in an extensive manner involving any 
hazard shall be provided with a covered walk as required for new structures during erection.  
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.04  CONSTRUCTION OF WALKWAYS, FENCES AND PROTECTIVE 
     COVERING. 
 Before any construction work is commenced, the owner or his agent shall construct a 
temporary walkway in conformity with this section. 
 (a) All fences, barriers or temporary structures of any kind located on public 

highways shall be so constructed as not to obstruct vision at the intersection of 
streets. 

 (b) Walkways shall be not less than four feet wide in the clear. Walks shall be built in 
a safe and substantial manner and be maintained in that condition at all times. A 
fence of solid, substantial construction not less than three feet high shall be 
provided on the traffic or street side of the walkway; each side of the walk shall 
be provided with smooth handrails. 

 (c) Where the distance from building to street or alley property line is less than half 
the height of the building, a fence of substantial solid construction at least eight 
feet high shall be provided on the building side of the walkway. 



 

 

85                                 Safeguards During Construction and Demolition               1339.09 
 
 
 (d) Roof coverings over walkways, as required by Section 1339.02 shall be 

constructed of not less than one layer of two-inch nominal dimension wood plank 
spanning not over three feet between supports, or equivalent, decking. The 
framework supporting the walkway covering shall be well braced and designed to 
support at least 150 pounds per square foot, but the top deck shall be designed to 
carry not less than 250 pounds per square foot. The roof covering shall be of 
width sufficient to cover the entire walkway or sidewalk, and shall be made 
watertight. Suitable provision shall be made for adequate lighting of the walk 
under the covering at all times. A minimum clearance of eight feet six inches shall 
be maintained above walkways. 

  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.05  WALKWAYS OVER EXCAVATED AREAS. 
 When the area occupied by the sidewalk or temporary walkway is to be excavated, such 
walk shall be made of boards not less than two inches nominal dimension designed to support a 
load of not less than 150 pounds per square foot, provided with suitable ramps at each end. Such 
walkways shall be provided with a solid fence not less than three feet high with smooth handrails 
on each side. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.06  STORAGE OF MATERIALS OVER WALKWAYS. 
 Whenever roofs or walkways are used for the storing of materials, it shall be designed for 
the load to which it is to be subjected and a railing and footboard shall be installed so as to 
prevent the materials from spilling into the street. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.07  WALKWAYS TO BE KEPT IN REPAIR. 
 Any barricade or fence and handrails and sidewalks shall be kept reasonably smooth and 
in good repair while in use. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.08  CLEANING OF SIDEWALKS AND STREETS. 
 The owner or his agent, upon the completion of the building, shall immediately remove 
all walkways, debris or any other obstruction and leave such public property in as good a 
condition as it was before such work was commenced. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.09  LIGHTS REQUIRED. 
 (a) Every walkway shall be kept well lighted continuously between sunset and 
sunrise and the outer edge of the occupied space of the street or sidewalk shall have placed upon 
or by them, illuminated lamps with red globes, flares or other approved lights in such manner 
that there shall be one light at each end, and at intermediate points as may be necessary to afford 
proper warning after darkness. 
 
 (b) All pits, excavations, fences, barriers, builder's equipment, building materials or 
rubbish in or upon a street, alley, sidewalk or any other public space shall have placed upon or by 
them, illuminated lamps with red globes, flares or other approved lights in such manner that 
there shall be one light at each end, and at intermediate points as may be necessary to afford 
proper warning after darkness. 



 

 

1339.10                                           BUILDING CODE                                              86 
 
 
 (c) All parts of buildings or structures under construction and all sheds, scaffolds and 
other equipment in connection therewith, where work is being performed or persons must 
necessarily pass, shall be adequately lighted to insure safety. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.10  PROTECTION OF ROOFS AND SKYLIGHTS OF ADJOINING 
     BUILDINGS. 
 When a building or structure is to be carried above the roof of an adjoining building, 
protection for the skylight and roof of such adjoining building shall be provided, at his own 
expense, by the person constructing or causing the construction of such building or structure; 
provided, that if the owner, lessee or tenant of the adjoining building should refuse permission to 
have the roofs and skylights protected, the responsibility and expense for the necessary 
protection shall devolve on the person refusing such permission. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.11  FIRE PROTECTION. 
 During building operations, free access from the street to fire hydrants, and to outside 
connections for standpipes, sprinklers or other fire extinguishing equipment, whether permanent 
or temporary, shall be provided and maintained at all times. No material or construction 
equipment shall be placed within ten feet of such hydrant or connection nor between it and the 
center line of the street. 
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.12  TEMPORARY HEATING. 
 (a) When salamanders or other temporary heating devices are used, if a temporary 
heating plant is impracticable and until a permanent heating plant is installed, they shall not be 
set on combustible flooring or platforms unless thoroughly insulated therefrom by a bed of slag 
or cold ashes not less than four inches thick, or by other efficient protection, extending at least 
two feet horizontally beyond such devices on all sides. The legs of such devices, which shall be 
at least twelve inches long, shall rest on the insulation, and shall not extend through it. 
 
 (b) Such devices shall be so located that there is a clearance of not less than six feet 
above nor less than two and one-half feet on all sides, between such device and unprotected 
woodwork or combustible material, equipment or construction. Nor shall such devices be placed 
within ten feet in any direction of tarpaulins or canvas covers, except as such tarpaulins or covers 
are flameproofed in an approved manner. 
 
 (c) Salamanders and similar heating devices shall be of a substantial type with 
protective screen covers, and shall be under constant supervision so long as they are in use.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.13  WATCHMAN. 
 When anything is being hoisted, loaded or unloaded over a sidewalk, or when any trucks 
cross over same, in a congested district or on an arterial highway, at least one watchman shall be 
stationed there to warn and protect all persons from injury or damage.  
(Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 



 

 

87                                 Safeguards During Construction and Demolition               1339.14 
 
 
 1339.14  STORAGE OF MATERIAL ON STREETS. 
 (a) No building materials or accessories shall be placed upon the streets, alleys or 
sidewalks except as provided in this chapter. Building materials required for immediate use or in 
connection with the construction or alteration of a building, or temporary fences, walks or 
covered walks may be placed upon the street or sidewalk in front of such building site; provided, 
however, that if in the opinion of the Building Superintendent the storage of such materials or the 
placing of fences and walks, etc., seriously interferes with traffic or endangers life or property, 
he may refuse to issue, revoke or refuse to renew permits and order all obstructions removed. 
 
 (b) The maximum width of such occupied space shall not exceed one-third of the 
width of the roadway. 
 
 (c) On sidewalks there shall be maintained at all times a minimum clear space four 
feet wide for the entire street frontage. 
 
 (d) No material shall be piled or stored on public highways or sidewalks to a height 
greater than six feet or within twenty-five feet of the curb line of an intersecting street or within 
ten feet of the curb line of an intersecting alley. 
 
 (e) The gutters shall at all times be kept clean and free from all obstructions to 
accommodate storm water flow without washing of material into gutter. 
 
 (f) Where building material is placed near a sewer inlet, a suitable stop shall be 
provided so as to prevent any of this material from entering the inlet. 
 
 (g) Hand mixing of concrete or mortar shall be done in a box, and when boxes, 
wheelbarrows, shovels, etc., are washed, they shall be washed in such a way as to prevent 
washings from entering the sewer. 
 
 (h) The person responsible for building materials in sewers shall be liable for the 
expense of removing same and the damage caused thereby. Such expense shall be charged to and 
collected from such person by the City. 
 
 (i) No building material or temporary structures of any kind shall be placed so as to 
obstruct the sight of, the free approach to and the use of any fire hydrant, sprinkler connection, 
fire alarm box, police call box, traffic signal box, street light manhole or catch basin, or to 
obstruct the sight of any traffic signal from any point where it is intended that it should be seen. 
 
 (j) The sidewalk space may be occupied for building construction purposes, when 
approved by the Building Superintendent, provided a temporary fence, walk or covered walk is 
constructed in accordance with the provisions of Sections 1339.03, 1339.04 and 1339.05, and 
such fence, walk or covered walk is properly maintained. 
 
 (k) No material shall be stored beyond the inner edge of such walk or covered walk 
or on the outside of a fence enclosure. No portion of any fence, walk or covered walk shall be 
used for advertising purposes, excepting those of the owners, tenants, architects, engineers, 
contractors or building and material concerns engaged in construction. (Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-
05.) 



 

 

1339.15                                           BUILDING CODE                                              88 
 
 
 1339.15  BASEMENT DRAINAGE. 
 Before the foundation walls of a building or structure are completed, adequate drainage 
facilities shall be provided to prevent water accumulating in the excavation or basement. This 
drainage shall not be connected to a sanitary sewer. 
(Ord.  7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.16  DISPOSAL OF WASTE. 
 Waste material and rubbish shall not be stored nor allowed to accumulate within the 
building or in the immediate vicinity, but shall be removed from the premises as rapidly as 
practicable. Combustible waste and rubbish shall be removed at least daily. No material shall be 
disposed of by burning on the premises or in the immediate vicinity. Dry material or rubbish 
shall be wetted down, if necessary, to prevent it being blown about. (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 
 1339.17  DEMOLITION. 
 (a) General. In the demolition of buildings, other than buildings of wood frame 
construction, one story at a time shall be completely removed. No wall, chimney or other 
construction shall be allowed to fall in mass on an upper story. Bulky material such as beams and 
columns, shall be lowered and not allowed to fall. 
 
 (b) Chutes. 
  (1) Chutes for the removal of materials and debris shall be provided in all 

such parts of demolition operations that are more than twenty feet above 
the point where material is being removed. 

  (2) Such chutes shall be completely enclosed. They shall not extend in an 
unbroken line for more than twenty-five feet, but shall be equipped at 
intervals of twenty-five feet or less with substantial stops to prevent 
descending material from attaining dangerous speeds. 

  (3) The bottom of each chute shall be equipped with a gate or stop, with 
suitable means for closing or regulating the flow of material. 

 
 (c) Sprinkling. Chutes, floors, stairways and other places affected shall be sprinkled 
sufficiently to keep down the dust. 
 
 (d) Utilities and Basement Drainage.   Sewers shall be plugged and capped, water 
service shall be shut off at the main, and gas lines shall be shut off at the main. The basement 
floor shall be broken to permit drainage. 
 
 (e) Grading of Lot. When a building has been demolished and no building operation 
has been projected or approved, the vacant lot shall be filled, graded and maintained in 
conformity to the established street grades at curb level, or natural grade. The lot shall be 
maintained free from the accumulation of rubbish and all other unsafe or hazardous conditions 
which endanger the life or health of the public; and provision shall be made to prevent the 
accumulation of water or damage to any foundations on the premises or the adjoining property. 
 
 (f) Note. All of the requirements hereinbefore stated in this section covering 
construction and remodeling shall also apply to demolition. 
 
 (g) Bond. Before a demolition permit is issued, a bond or certificate of insurance, 
approved by the Law Director as to form and as to amount by the Building Superintendent shall 
be filed with the Finance Director.  (Ord. 7-05.  Passed 1-24-05.) 
 



 

 

89 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1341 
Use of Public Property 

 
 
1341.01 General requirements. 
1341.02 Space under public property. 

1341.03 Moving of buildings or 
 structures. 
 

 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
  Power to regulate building numbering - see Ohio R.C. 715.26 
  Power to license house movers - see Ohio R.C. 715.27 
 
 
  
 
 1341.01  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS. 
 The use of public property or any portion thereof, shall be in accordance with the 
provisions of this chapter and Section 1339.02. 
 (a) Doors. Doors shall be so designed and hung as to not encroach, when opened, 

upon public property more than six inches and such doors shall not be held open 
in this encroaching position. Exit doors which are required to be open in the 
direction of exit travel, shall be set back from the property line by means of 
vestibules or similar enclosures to comply herewith. 

 (b) Ladders. Any person, firm or corporation which shall cause any ladder to be 
erected on public property for any purpose shall have one person constantly 
posted at the foot of such ladder as a safety precaution. 

  (Ord. 85-83. Passed 6-27-83.) 
 
 1341.02  SPACE UNDER PUBLIC PROPERTY. 
 (a) Space Under Sidewalk. The space under the sidewalk level may be used for 
purposes not inconsistent with any requirements of this Code or any other ordinances, but the 
permit to use this space may be revoked by the City at any time and the owner of the building 
occupying such space shall be required to pay all costs incidental to the surrender of his 
occupancy. The owner of the building shall carry public liability insurance in such amount as is 
determined by Council and a copy of the public liability insurance policy shall be filed with the 
Finance Director. 
 



 

 

1341.03                                           BUILDING CODE                                              90 
 
 
 (b) Encroachment Requirements. 
  (1) Areas projecting beyond the building line shall be covered over at the 

street level by an approved grating of metal or other noncombustible 
material. 

  (2) Vaults, entirely below the sidewalk level, but not beyond the curb line, 
shall be roofed over at the street level by approved masonry, reinforced 
concrete or steel beams with masonry arches. 

  (3) Openings in the roofs of vaults under street surfaces shall be provided with 
substantial covers of noncombustible materials, flush with the top surface 
and constructed to prevent persons from slipping thereon. Covers shall be 
maintained normally closed, and when open for use shall be fully guarded 
to prevent accidents. 

  (4) When glass is set in the sidewalk to provide light for spaces underneath, 
the glass shall be supported by metal or reinforced concrete frames and 
such glass shall be not less than one-half inch in thickness. When such 
glass is over twelve square inches in area, it shall have wire mesh 
imbedded in the glass. Glass used in vault lights shall not exceed sixteen 
square inches for one light and shall be flush mounted structural units 
designed specifically for this purpose. All portions of sidewalk lights shall 
be of not less strength than required for sidewalks. (Ord. 85-83. Passed 6-
27-83.) 

 
 1341.03  MOVING OF BUILDINGS OR STRUCTURES. 
 (a) License. No person, firm or corporation shall raise, shore, move or cause to be 
moved upon the streets, alleys or other public places within the City or from one lot or parcel of 
ground to another within such City, any building or structure other than a contractor's shed, not 
over ten feet in width and ten feet in height or an industrialized unit, unless such person, firm or 
corporation has satisfactorily demonstrated their ability to perform such operations to the 
Building Superintendent, and has obtained a permit to engage in such business as hereinafter 
provided. 
 
 (b) Bond.   Every person, firm or corporation shall annually before engaging in 
moving of buildings or structures, obtain a permit therefor and every such firm, person or 
corporation applying for a permit shall first file with the City Manager a surety bond in an 
amount to be determined by the Law Director with good and sufficient sureties to be approved 
by the Finance Director, and shall apply whether the property be either public or private, whether 
such damage or injury shall be inflicted by such party or his agents or employees; and 
conditioned that such party will save and indemnify and hold the City harmless against all 
liabilities, judgments, costs and expenses which may in any wise accrue against the City in 
consequence of the granting of such permit, and will in all things strictly comply with the 
conditions of his permit. 
 
 (c) Fees. Any person, firm or corporation engaged in the business of moving a 
structure or building in the City shall pay a permit fee of the following amount, to wit: BASED 
ON ESTIMATED COST FROM CHAPTER 1311. 
 
  For one day to one week  $50.00  
  For one month   $100.00  
  For one year    $300.00  
 and shall be entitled to a permit for the period for which such permit is paid; except that 
in the case of one story frame structures not exceeding twelve feet in extreme height when 
mounted, or thirteen feet in extreme width, or eighteen feet in extreme length, and which are 
mounted on trucks or wagons and hauled by direct traction without the use of capstans or other 
machinery involving the obstruction of the roadway or other than by the building itself, such fee 
shall be fifteen dollars ($15.00). 



 

 

91                                                Use of Public Property                                     1341.03 
 
 
 In addition to the foregoing amount paid by the person engaged in moving of buildings or 
structures, the sum of fifty dollars ($50.00) per day shall be paid for each day or fraction thereof 
such structure is upon the streets of the City, after the first day. 
 
 (d) Removal of Building or Structure. No building or structure shall be moved until 
same has been inspected by the Building Inspector and any building or structure that has 
depreciated fifty percent (50%) or more shall not be moved, but shall be torn down. 
 
 (e) Route Prescribed. The route which shall be prescribed by the City Manager shall 
in all cases be such as is least likely to interfere with traffic on the streets or cause accidents or 
injuries or to interfere with public or private convenience; and the route so prescribed shall not 
be deviated from. 
 
 (f) Notice to Others. A moving permit shall not be issued until the mover has 
certified to the Building Superintendent in writing that he has notified all persons, firemen or 
corporations owning or controlling any telegraph, telephone, cable T.V., electric light or power, 
fire, police alarm, or trees, cross-arms or other structures which may come in contact, or which 
may be affected by the moving of the building or structure, and has obtained their permission for 
the moving of the building or structure, and has deposited the necessary moneys with these 
persons, firms or corporations as required by them to protect their properties. 
 
 (g) Report to the City Engineer and Fire Department. Every person, firm or 
corporation receiving a permit from the Building Superintendent to move a building or structure 
shall, within one day after such building or structure reaches its destination, report that fact to the 
Building Superintendent, who shall report same to the City Engineer, who shall thereupon 
inspect all streets, alleys, avenues or public grounds over which the building or structure has 
been moved and ascertain the condition of same. If the moving of the building or structure has 
caused any damage to the streets, alleys or public grounds, the mover shall forthwith place the 
same in as good a condition as they were before the permit was granted. Upon the failure of the 
mover to do so, within ten days thereafter, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, the City shall 
repair the damage done and hold sureties of bond given by the mover responsible for the 
payment of the cost of repairs. 
  (1) Every mover shall report to the Fire Chief or his assistant each night the 

exact location where the building or structure is to stand on the streets for 
the night. Failure to report this shall be considered a misdemeanor and 
shall hold parties liable to fine. 

  (2) Movers shall proceed in a careful manner in the moving of a building or 
structure over the public streets, alleys and public grounds and shall not in 
any manner injure or destroy trees, grass plot, curbing or sidewalk, nor in 
any manner interfere with the property of individuals. The Building 
Superintendent shall have the power to revoke any permit whenever in his 
judgment any mover is proceeding in a reckless or careless manner in the 
moving of the building or structure. 

 



 

 

1341.03                                           BUILDING CODE                                              92 
 
 
 (h) Public Safety Requirements for Moving of Buildings and Structures. 
  (1) Lights required. Every building or structure which occupies any portion of 

public property after sundown, shall have sufficient lights continuously 
burning between sunset and sunrise for the protection of the public. 

  (2) Number and location. There shall be a minimum of five red lights placed 
on each street side of the building or structure; such red lights shall be 
attached to the building or structure in such a fashion as to indicate 
extreme width, height and size. 

  (3) Flares required. There shall be placed in addition to the red lights on the 
building or structure, flares at regular intervals for a distance of 200 feet 
up the street on each side of the building or structure. 

  (4) Flagmen required. When more than fifty percent (50%) of the street, 
measured between curbs, is occupied at night by the building or structure, 
or when, in the opinion of the Building Superintendent, flagmen are 
necessary to divert or caution traffic, the owner or person moving such 
building or structure shall employ at their expense, two flagmen, one at 
each street intersection beyond the building or structure; such flagmen 
shall remain at these intersections, diverting or cautioning traffic, from 
sunset to sunrise. Red lights shall be employed in flagging traffic at night. 

   (Ord. 85-83.  Passed 6-27-83.) 
 
 



 

 

93 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 1343 
Property Maintenance Code 

 
 
1343.01 Adoption of Property 
 Maintenance Code. 
1343.02 Conflict. 
1343.03 Additions, insertions and  
 changes. 

1343.04 Saving clause. 
1343.99 Penalty. 
 

 
 
 

CROSS REFERENCES 
  Adoption of technical codes by reference - see CHTR. §4.11 
  Noxious weeds and litter  - see GEN. OFF. Ch. 557 
  Board of Building Appeals - see BLDG. Ch. 1317 
 
 
 
 
 
 1343.01  ADOPTION OF PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE. 
 That certain document, copies of which are on file in the office of the Clerk of Council, 
being marked and designated as “the International Property Maintenance Code 2006 Edition”, as 
published by the International Code Council, Inc., is hereby adopted as the Property Maintenance 
Code of the City for the control of buildings and structures as herein provided; and each and all 
of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and terms of such International Code 
Council, Inc. International Property Maintenance Code are hereby referred to, adopted and made 
a part hereof, as if fully set out in this chapter, with the additions, insertions, deletions and 
changes, if any, prescribed in Section 1343.03.   
(Ord. 93-07.  Passed 7-9-07.) 
 
 1343.02  CONFLICT. 
 In the event any other ordinances or parts of ordinances are in conflict with this chapter, 
the additional or more stringent of the two requirements shall apply. 
(Ord. 93-07.  Passed 7-9-07.) 
 
 1343.03  ADDITIONS, INSERTIONS AND CHANGES. 
 The following additions, deletions and amendments to the International Code Council, 
Inc. International Property Maintenance Code are hereby adopted. 
 (a) Section PM 101.1 (page 1, second line).  Insert: City of Fairfield, Ohio. 
 (b) Sections 106.4 PENALTY AND 107.4 PENALTIES are deleted and replaced in 

Section 1343.99 of this chapter. 
 (c) Sections 111.1 through 111.8 are hereby deleted and the "Code Appeals Board" 

for purposes of this chapter shall be the Board of Building Appeals of the City of 
Fairfield, Ohio. 



 

 

1343.03                                          BUILDING CODE                                              94 
 
 
 (d) The Superintendent of Building Inspection and Zoning shall be the "Code 

Official" for purposes of this chapter. 
 (e) Section  302.4 WEEDS is deleted. 
 (f) Section 302.7 ACCESSORY STRUCTURES is amended to read as follows:  All 

accessory structures including but not limited to garages, sheds, decks, gazebos, 
carports, landscaping walls, play structures and fences shall be free from safety, 
health, and fire hazards and shall be maintained structurally sound and in good 
repair. 

 (g) Section 302.8 MOTOR VEHICLES is deleted. 
 (h) Section 302.10 EXTERIOR PROPERTY AREAS is amended to read as follows: 

No owner, tenant, occupant or operator of any premises shall maintain or permit 
to be maintained at or on the exterior property areas of such premises any 
condition which deteriorates or debases the appearance of the neighborhood, 
reduces property values in the neighborhood, adversely alters the appearance and 
general character of the neighborhood, creates a fire, safety or health hazard or 
which is a public nuisance.  Such conditions, include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

  (1) Broken or dilapidated fences, walls or other structures; 
  (2) Out-of-use or nonuseable appliances and motorized vehicle parts; 
  (3) Rugs, rags or other materials hung on lines, or in other places on the 

premises, which materials are not being used for general household or 
housekeeping purposes; 

  (4) Broken, dilapidated or unusable furniture and mattresses or other 
household furniture, intended for interior use, broken glass, plastic 
materials, paints, miscellaneous coverings and/or any other materials, 
including those described in this section, placed at or on the premises in 
such a manner as to be patently unsightly, grotesque or offensive to the 
senses; 

  (5) Yards and landscaping shall also be maintained so as not to constitute a 
blighting or deteriorating effect in the neighborhood, including the timely 
removal of leaves and rubbish from a yard area.  Leaves shall be removed 
from yards within three (3) months after they have dropped from the tree 
or plant. 

  (6) No accumulation of building materials or materials such as, earth, sand, 
mulch or dirt intended for use in landscaping or gardening shall be left 
standing open or covered upon any premises for a period of time 
exceeding six consecutive months; 

  (7) Brush, stump roots, obnoxious growths, filth, garbage, rubbish, trash, 
refuse, debris, dead and dying trees and limbs or other natural growth, 
loose and overhanging objects and ground surface hazards.  This section 
shall not include properly located compost facilities as defined in Section 
1133.01(20.2). 

 (i) Section 303  SWIMMING POOLS, STORABLE POOLS, SPAS AND HOT 
TUBS is amended to read as follows:  swimming pools shall be maintained in a 
clean and sanitary condition, and in good repair.  In good repair includes but is 
not limited to pool liner, associated deck, pump and piping and the following: 

  (1) The pool liner in an above-ground or in-ground pool shall be intact and in 
the proper position and installed per manufacturers recommendations. 

  (2) All associated decking shall be weather and slip resistant, structurally 
sound and in good repair, meeting all local and state building codes. 



 

 

95                                              Property Maintenance Code                               1343.03 
 
 
  (3) All associated pumps and piping shall be maintained clean and sanitary 

and free from leaks. 
  (4) Water clarity shall be maintained so that when standing at the pool's edge 

at the deep end, the deepest portion of the pool floor and/or the main drain 
shall be visible and sharply defined.  The pool water shall be chemically 
treated and the filtration system in proper operational condition to 
maintain clear and sanitary water according to the pool manufacturers 
suggested operational parameters. 

  (5) Pool covers shall be properly labeled, installed, used and maintained in 
accordance with the manufacturer's published instructions; free from tears 
and breaks and secured around the perimeter of the pool to create a barrier 
to debris and inhibit access to the contained body of water. 

  (6) Pool covers shall not be allowed to collect surface water more than 4 
inches (102mm) in depth.  

  (7) Storable pools are those that are constructed on or above the ground and 
are capable of holding water to a maximum depth of 42 inches (1.0m), or a 
pool with nonmetallic, molded polymeric walls or inflatable fabric wall 
regardless of dimensions.  All storable pools are required to be removed 
from service and stored away between the period of November 1st and 
April 1st. 

  (8) All swimming pools shall be winterized according to the pool 
manufacturer's recommendations which includes chemical treatment of the 
standing water, plus physical and chemical protection of the pool and its 
equipment from freezing. 

 (j) Section 304.3 PREMISES IDENTIFICATION is amended to read as follows:  
Buildings shall have approved address numbers placed in a position to be plainly 
legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property.  These numbers 
shall contrast with their background.  Address numbers shall be Arabic numerals 
or alphabet letters.  Numbers and letters shall be a minimum of 4 inches (102mm) 
high with a minimum stroke width of 0.75 inches (20mm). 

 (k) Section 304.6 EXTERIOR WALLS is amended to read as follows:  All exterior 
walls, including wood, vinyl and aluminum siding shall be free of holes, breaks, 
loose or rotting materials; and maintained weather proof and properly surface- 
coated.  All exposed exterior wood wall surfaces shall be painted, sealed or 
stained, so that each wooden exterior wall surface is uniform in appearance and 
all surface coating materials must be consistently applied so as to avoid 
mismatched shades and discoloration of the wood surface.  Exterior wooden wall 
surfaces includes but is not limited to soffit and fascia boards and other exterior 
trim. 

 (l) Section 304.7 ROOFS AND DRAINAGE is amended to read as follows: The roof 
and flashing shall be sound, tight and not have defects which might admit rain.  
Roof drainage shall be adequate to prevent dampness or deterioration in the walls 
or interior portion of the building.  Roof drains, gutters, downspouts or other 
approved drainage systems shall be installed and shall be maintained in good 
repair and free from obstructions.  Roof water shall not be discharged in a manner 
that creates a public nuisance.  All repairs made to roofs and flashing shall to the 
extent possible match existing materials and colors. 



 

 

1343.03                                          BUILDING CODE                                               96 
 
 
 (m) Section 304.8 DECORATIVE FEATURES is amended to read as follows:  All 

cornices, belt courses, corbels, terra cotta trim, wall facings and similar decorative 
features shall be maintained in good repair with proper anchorage and in a safe 
condition.  No decorative features may be partially removed which would put the 
facade out of symmetrical balance or remove the consistency of the decorative 
feature with a particular level of the facade, including but not limited to, removing 
one shutter from a window which has two shutters or one set of shutters from a 
front window where other front windows have shutters or one piece of trim from a 
designed trim pattern, for any period in excess of fourteen days.  Decorative 
features are to be replaced with like materials and colors consistent with the 
existing features. 

 (n) Section 304.14  INSECT SCREENS is amended to read as follows:  every door, 
window and other outside opening required for ventilation of habitable rooms, 
food preparation areas, food service areas or any areas where products to be 
included or utilized in food or human consumption are processed, manufactured, 
packaged or stored shall be supplied with approved tightly fitting screens of not 
less than 16 mesh per inch (16 mesh per 25 mm), and every screen door used for 
insect control shall have a self-closing device in good working condition. 

 (o) Section 305.7 - UNIT IDENTIFICATION: All buildings containing multiple units 
whose primary entrances are served by a common hallway (i.e. apartments, 
condominiums, suites) shall have approved unit ID numbers placed in a position 
to be plainly legible and visible from the common hallway.  These numbers shall 
contrast with their background.  Unit ID numbers shall be arabic numerals or 
alphabet letters.  Numbers and letters shall be a minimum of 3 inches high with a 
minimum stroke width of 3/8 inches. 

 (p) Section 306  HANDRAILS AND GUARDRAILS is amended to read as follows:  
Every exterior and interior flight of stairs having more than four risers shall have 
a handrail on one side of the stair and every open portion of a stair, landing, 
balcony, porch, deck, ramp or other walking surface which is more than 30 inches 
(762mm) above the floor or grade below shall have guards.  Handrails shall not be 
less than 34 inches (864mm) or more than 38 inches (965mm) measured vertically 
above the nosing of the tread or above the finished floor of the landing or walking 
surfaces.  Guards shall not be less than 36 inches (914mm) above the floor of the 
landing, balcony, porch, deck or ramp or other walking surface. 

  EXCEPTION:  Guards shall not be required where 
exempted by the adopted Building Code. 

 (q) Section 307 RUBBISH AND GARBAGE is deleted in its entirety. 
 (r) Section 404.4.1 ROOM AREA is amended to read as follows:  Every room 

occupied for sleeping purposes by one occupant shall contain at least 70 square 
feet (6.5m2) of floor area, and every room occupied for sleeping purposes by 
more than one person shall contain at least 50 square feet (4.6m2) of floor area for 
each occupant thereof. 

 (s) Section 404.5 OVERCROWDING is amended to read as follows:  Dwelling units 
shall not be occupied by more occupants than permitted by the minimum area 
requirements of Table 404.5. 



 

 

97                                            Property Maintenance Code                                1343.03 
 
 

TABLE 404.5 
MINIMUM AREA REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
 
 
SPACE 

MINIMUM AREA IN SQUARE FEET 

1-2 
OCCUPANTS 

3-5 
OCCUPANTS 

6 OR MORE 
OCCUPANTS 

LIVING ROOM NO  
REQUIREMENTS 

120 150 

DINING ROOM NO  
REQUIREMENTS 

80 100 

BEDROOMS SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 4.04.4.1 
 
 (t) Section 602.3  HEAT SUPPLY (Page 17, line 5) insert: October 1 to May 1. 
 (u) Section 604.1 FACILITIES REQUIRED is amended to read as follows in its 

entirety: Every building or part thereof used for human occupancy shall be 
adequately and safely provided with an electrical system in compliance with the 
requirements of the National Electrical Code. 

 (v) Sections 604.2 and 604.3 under ELECTRICAL FACILITIES, are deleted in their 
entirety. 

 (w) Vacant buildings shall be kept weather tight and secure from trespassers, safe for 
entry by police officers and firefighters in times of emergency, and, together with 
its premises, free from nuisance and in good order, as follows: 

  (1) Building openings:  Doors, windows, areaways and other openings shall 
be weather tight and secured against entry by birds, vermin and 
trespassers.  Missing or broken doors, windows and opening coverings 
shall be covered with one half inch CDX plywood, weather protected, 
tightly fitted to the opening and secured by screws or bolts.  If ordered by 
the code official, material used to secure the premises shall be of similar 
architectural treatment, material or color to the structure and of such a 
nature that  to the extent practicable the property does not appear to be 
vacant. 

  (2) Premises:  The premises on which a structure is located shall be clean, safe 
and sanitary and shall not pose a threat to the public health or safety.  The 
code official may order that the vehicular ingress/egress of the premises be 
barricaded to prevent vehicular traffic on the premises by anyone other 
than the owner and others expressly and individually authorized by the 
owner. 

  (3) All other requirements of this Property Maintenance Code shall apply to 
vacant structures and property except that the Code Official may waive 
any requirement that is unnecessary for the protection of the public health 
or safety because the structure is unoccupied and secured against 
unauthorized entry.   

   (Ord. 98-10.  Passed 11-8-10.) 



 

 

1343.04                                          BUILDING CODE                                                98 
 
 
 (x) Whether or not criminal prosecution under this Property Maintenance Code 

occurs, if the owner, tenant, occupant or operator of any premises fails to correct 
any violation of this Property Maintenance Code within the time prescribed in the 
written notice, the Superintendent of Building Inspection and Zoning or designee 
may cause the violation to be corrected or abated and the cost thereof as described 
in Section 557.05, including administrative and supervisory costs, shall be 
certified to the Butler County Auditor, shall be entered upon the tax duplicate and 
be a lien upon the premises and be collected as other taxes and returned to the 
Municipal General Fund.  The costs of emergency repairs under subsection 109.5 
of this Property Maintenance Code may also be assessed under this subsection in 
addition to or in place of civil legal action.  (Ord. 119-11.  Passed 11-28-11.) 

 
 1343.04  SAVING CLAUSE. 
 Nothing in this chapter or in the Property Maintenance Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired or 
liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or 
ordinance modified as stated in Section 1343.02 of this chapter; nor shall any just or legal right 
or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affect by this chapter. 
(Ord.  93-07.  Passed 7-9-07.) 
 
 1343.99  PENALTY. 
 Any person, firm or corporation who violates any provisions of this chapter is guilty of a 
misdemeanor of the third degree and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not more than five 
hundred dollars ($500.00) or imprisoned not more than sixty days, or both.  Each day that a 
violation continues shall constitute a separate offense. 
(Ord. 93-07.  Passed 7-9-07.) 
 



 

 

 



CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING COMMUNICATION 

ITEM NO. /A.&)(I )i 

ITEM: DATE: 4/22/13 

Appropriation of $60,000 from the Water Surplus Fund for professional engineering services related to design 
of the Pleasant Avenue Water Main Project. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Project was included in the 2013-2017 Capital Improvement Program under Project No. WAT-13-001. 
Engineering services for design of the water line are scheduled for 2013 . 

SYNOPSIS: 

The water line on a section of Pleasant Avenue has experienced a significant number of main breaks in recent 
years and needs to be replaced. 

BACKGROUND: 

The design work would be completed in 2013 after which, the project will be advertised for formal competitive 
bids for construction. The project involves approximately 2,500 linear feet of main and appurtenances along 
Resor Road to Evalie, and Evalie Drive to Crestwood Lane. The Public Utilities Department· requested an 
engineering proposal for the work associated with replacement of the water line from GRW Engineers, Inc. of 

, \Lexington Kentucky. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that City Council appropriate funding in the amount of $60,000 from the Water Surplus 
Fund for engineering services related to the Pleasant A venue Water Main Replacement. 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION: Suspension ofRules & Adoption Requested? 0 
yes no 

0 [&] 
yes no 



..... 
c 

CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING COMMUNICATION 

ITEM NO. //(£) (i~) A 

ITEM: DATE: 4/22/13 

Appropriation of $60,000 from the Water Surplus Fund for professional engineering services related to design 
of the Pleasant Avenue Water Main Project. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Project was included in the 2013-2017 Capital Improvement Program under Project No. WAT-13-001. 
Engineering services for design of the water line are scheduled for 2013. 

SYNOPSIS: 

The water line on a section of Pleasant A venue has experienced a significant number of main breaks in recent 
years and needs to be replaced. 

BACKGROUND: 

The design work would be completed in 2013 after which, the project will be advertised for formal competitive 
bids for construction. The project involves approximately 2,500 linear feet of main and appurtenances along 
Resor Road to Evalie, and Evalie Drive to Crestwood Lane. The Public Utilities Department requested an 
engineering proposal for the work associated with replacement of the water line from GR W Engineers, Inc. of 
Lexington Kentucky. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that City Council appropriate funding in the amount of $60,000 from the Water Surplus 
Fund for engineering services related to the Pleasant Avenue Water Main Replacement. 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION: Suspension of Rules & Adoption Requested? 0 
yes no 

liD 
no 



'· . 

Mr. Dave Crouch 
Public Utilities Director 
City of Fairfield, Ohio 
5021 Groh Lane 
Fairfield, OH 45014 

Dear Mr. Crouch: 

BOl C.lq•orat.- l)tiw 
Ll!l!:iugtuu. K \ ·105m: 
Tel 359 / 22il-:3999 
l'a:s tl59 I 223-f~91 -;-

Ent-if~>!f:tin~ 
\ r..:hitcr tur~ 

Plaunilil!: 
CIS 
,\Yiation Cnn;:n!:anti': 

Adin0tou, TX 
(.;im·imll:!li. OU 
tolnmhu;;, OH 
lndtaJlllfJIIlts., iN 
KM~vilh•, TN 
l.uui;;,·ille. K \ 
Naslt · ille, Tl\ 

April4, 2013 

Re: Engineering Services Proposal 
Related to Pleasant Avenue 
Water Maio Replacement/improvements 
GRW Project No. 4093-04 

We are pleased to furnish this engineering services proposal for design phase services related to the above 
referenced project 

As we have discussed previously, this project would involve the replacement of approximately 5,000 J.f. 
of water main and appurtenances in the following areas along and acUacent to Pleasant Avenue: Reesor 
Road to Evalie Drive, Hunter Road to Happy Valley Drive, Evalie Drive to Crestwood Lane and 
Vonderhaar Court. We understand thllt this design work would be accomplished in 2013 and would be 
divided into as many as four (4) separate bid packages. 

Our proposed engineering services associated with the design phase of the project would be as follows: 

Design Services $60,000 

From our most recent conversation, we understand that the proposed improvements will be constructed in 
multiple phases beginning in 2015. Based on this schedule, we would propose that future engineering 
services associated with bidding phase and construction phase services be added to this agreement by 
future amendment when a schedule for the proposed future construction is determined. 

Please call me if you have any questions concerning this matter. If this proposal is acceptable to the City 
of Fairfield, please execute and return one ( 1) copy. 

Respectfully yours, 

~~~ ~-tLVTl/1/1; 
Bob C. Smallwood, P.E. 
Vice President 

ACCEPTED BY: 

City of Fairlield 







a 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ _ 

ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER 
INTO A CONTRACT WITH GRW ENGINEERS, INC. FOR 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES RELATED TO THE 
DESIGN OF THE PLEASANT AVENUE WATER MAIN PROJECT. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Passed 

Posted 

First Reading 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with GRW 
Engineers, Inc. for professional engineering services related to the design of 
the Pleasant Avenue Water Main project in accordance with the proposal 
on file in the office of the City Manager. 

This Ordinance shall take effect at the earliest period allowed by law. 

Mayor's Approval 

Rules Suspended 

Second Reading 

Third Reading 

ATIEST: 

Clerk of Council 

This is to certify that this Ordinance has been duly published by posting and 
summary publication as provided by Charter. 

Clerk of Council 

Active Clients\City of Fairfield\Ordinances\2013\GRW Engineers, Inc.- Ord 



) 

ITEM NO. 11 (~~1\ 
... «c. 

CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING COMMUNICATION 

ITEM: DATE: May 13. 201 3 

O.D.O.T. Resolution to Purchase 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None 

SYNOPSIS: 

The Ohio Department of Transportation requires a resolution be passed by the local Legislative Authority prior to use of 
one of their competitive bid contracts. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Director of Transportation may permit any political subdivision to participate in contacts into which the Director has 
entered for the purchase of machinery, materials, supplies, or other articles. Any Political Subdivision desiring to 
participate in such purchase contracts will file with the Co-op Purchasing Coordinator a certified copy of the ordinance or 
resolution of the Legislative Authority, Board of Trustees or Governing Board of the Political Subdivision requesting 
authority to participate in such contracts and agreeing that it will be bound by such terms and conditions as the Director 
prescribes. Purchases made by Political Subdivisions under this division are exempt from any competitive bidding required 
by law for the purchase of machinery, materials, supplies or other articles 

A similar resolution was passed by council in 2011. The Ohio Department of Transportation requires that a resolution be 
filed with their office every two years. This legislation fulfills that requirement. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing participation in the ODOT Cooperative 
Purchasing Program. 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION: Suspension of Rules and Adoption Requested? 0 If yes, explain above. 
yes no 

0 If yes, explain above. 
yes no 

Approved for Content by: -~~~~~~~:::_......!_~~~~!:::::~==--....l------------

FiMnc~~~~~~re~~~~: -~~~~~-~~~~k~--------------------
Legal Review (where applicable)~~ ~ 
Accepted for Council AgendL~~,!Oo:::=:.::!!!::..~ .... ~:.::::::~~-----------------------



- .. 
... 

0 

0 

I\ " I I, ... 

C~~~ t)F ~-1 ~l'r-02-cF e~sow ·-,,uo-..J 

RESOLUTION NO. jp_ - ( l 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN OHIO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (ODOT) 
COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY. 

·wHEREAS, Section5513.0l(B) of the Ohio Revised Code provides the opportunity for 
Counties, Townships, Municipal Corporations, Conservancy Districts, Township Park Districts 
created under Chapter 1545 of the Revised Code, Port Authorities, Regional Transit Authorities, 
Regional Ahport Authorities, Regional Water and Sewer Districts, County Transit Boards, State 
Universities or Colleges to patticipate in contracts of the Ohio Department ofTranspol"tation for 
the purchase ofmachine1y, material, supplies Ol' othet' articles. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City ofFaufield, Obio, 
that: 

Section 1. 

SectiQn2. 

Section3. 

Section4. 

Section 5. 

The City Manager or designee hereby requests authority ill the natne of the City of 
Fairfield) Ohio to participate in the Ohio Department of Transportation COI\tracts 
for the purchase of machineLy, materials, supplies or other articles which the 
Department has entered into pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 5513.01 (B). 

The City Manager or designee is hereby authorized to agree in the name of the City 
of Fairfield, Ohio to be bound by all tenus and conditions as the Director of 
Transportation prescribes. 

The City Manager Ol' designee is hereby authorized to agree in the name of the City 
of Fairfield, Ohio to directly pay vendot·s, under each such contract of the Ohio 
Department ofTransportation in which the City ofFaidield, Ohio. participates for 
items it receives pursuant to the contract. 

The City of Fairfield, Ohio agrees to be respousible for resolving aU claims oi· 
disputes arising out of its participation in the coopet-ative purchasing program under 
Section 5513.01 (B) of the Ohio Revised Code. The CityofFairfield, Ohio agrees 
to waive any claims, actions, expenses, or other damages arising out of its 
participation in the cooperative purchasing program which the City of Fai.dieldJ 
Ohio may have or claim to have against ODOT or its employees. \Utless such 
liability is· the result of negligence 011 the part of ODOT or its employees. 

Tllis Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measme necessaty fot· the 
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and welfare aud for the 
urgent benefit and protection of the City and its inhabitants for the reason that the 
current contract for the proposed purchase of a dump truck expires July 31, 2011; 
wherefore, this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 



0 Passed 

Posted 

First Reading Rules Suspended 

Second Readi11g Emergency 

Third Reading 

ATTEST: L 
C!erk~\o.~ 

Tlus is to certify that this Resolution has been duly published by posting and su1nmary 
publication as provided by Chal'ter. 

Active Clients\CITY ()fFalrneld\Otdlllanco.s\2011\0DOT ·Res 

0 

0 



, 

0 

0 

0 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ _ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN OHIO DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION (ODOT) COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 
PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, Section 5513.01(B) of the Ohio Revised Code provides the opportunity for 
Counties, Townships, Municipal Corporations, Conservancy Districts, Township Park Districts 
created under Chapter 1545 of the Revised Code, Port Authorities, Regional Transit Authorities, 
Regional Airport Authorities, Regional Water and Sewer Districts, County Transit Boards, State 
Universities or Colleges to participate in contracts of the Ohio Department of Transportation for 
the purchase of machinery, material, supplies or other articles. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Section 3. 

Section 4. 

Section 5. 

The City Manager or designee hereby requests authority in the name of the City of 
Fairfield, Ohio to participate in the Ohio Department of Transportation contracts 
for the purchase of machinery, materials, supplies or other articles which the 
Department has entered into pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 5513.01 (B). 

The City Manager or designee is hereby authorized to agree in the name of the 
City of Fairfield, Ohio to be bound by all terms and conditions as the Director of 
Transportation prescribes. 

The City Manager or designee is hereby authorized to agree in the name of the 
City of Fairfield, Ohio to directly pay vendors, under each such contract of the 
Ohio Department of Transportation in which the City of Fairfield, Ohio, 
participates for items it receives pursuant to the contract. 

The City of Fairfield, Ohio agrees to be responsible for resolving all claims or 
disputes arising out of its participation in the cooperative purchasing program 
under Section 5513.01 (B) of the Ohio Revised Code. The City of Fairfield, Ohio 
agrees to waive any claims, actions, expenses, or other damages arising out of its 
participation in the cooperative purchasing program which the City of Fairfield, 
Ohio may have or claim to have against ODOT or its employees, unless such 
liability is the result of negligence on the part of ODOT or its employees. 

This Resolution shall take effect at the earliest period allowed by law. 

1 



0 

0 

0 

Passed 
Mayor's Approval 

Posted 

First Reading Rules Suspended 

Second Reading 

Third Reading 

ATTEST: 

Clerk of Council 

This is to certify that this Resolution has been duly published by posting and summary 

publication as provided by Charter. 

Clerk of Council 

Active Clients\City of Fairfield\Ordinances\2013\0DOT - Res 

2 



) 

ITEM NO. II l.?} @) 

CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING COMMUNICATION 

DATE: 05/13/2013 

Street Resufacing contract for the 2013 Asphalt Paving and Resurfacing Project 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The financial impact of the project is the requested funding of $450,000.00 ($420,982.50 and a contingency of 
$29,017.50) from the Street Improvement Fund. 

SYNOPSIS: 

The majority of the expense in the asphalt resurfacing work on various streets including Thunderbird, Security, 
Vonderharr, Mississippi from Groh to Suwannee, Lake Michigan, Sunflower, Primrose Lane, Primrose Court, 
Lake Tahoe, Morning Glory and Rita Mae from the west terminus to Muskopf. 

This project is programmed in the 2013-2017 C.I.P. under PWA-13-006 

BACKGROUND: 

City Council has historically approved funding for an annual street paving program for work done in 
conjunction with the Concrete Curb Replacement Program. The Street Department has developed a program 
for budgeting and scheduling needed overlays of streets in relation to several factors including deterioration, 
age, ride-ability, etc. 

Public Works advertised this project and bids were opened on April29 , 2013 for the 2013 Asphalt Paving and 
Resurfacing Project. Three (3) bids were received . The complete bid results are attached. 

The lowest and best bidder is Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The staff recommends that City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Barrett Paving 
Materials, Inc. for the 2013 Asphalt Paving and Resurfacing Project at the unit prices indicated. 

It is further recommended that City Council authorize and direct the preparation of legislation for the 
appropriation of funding in the amount of $450,000.00 from the Street Improvement Fund for this project. 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION: Suspension of Rules and Adoption Requested? 
If yes, explain above. 

0 
yes 

Emergency Provision Needed? 0 
If yes, explain above. yes 

Preparedby: ~~ -

Approved for Content by: 

00 
no 

00 
no 

Financial Review (where applicable): _'J~U........,~~__,_~~IpC-Eio"------------------
legaiReview(whereappllcable): ~~. (~~-<:L 
Aooe~edfurCoonclAgen~~~~~~~~~~~-----------------



~ 
~ 

<"I ·--
~ 

-../ 

City of Fairfield 
Bid Tabulation for "2013 Asphalt Pavin& and Resurfacing Project" 
Bid Opening: April29, 2013 

John R. Jurgensen 
11641 Mosteller Rd. 

Cincinuli, OH 45241 
513-771-0820 

lODOTl 
Item# 

Description J Est. I 
On tv. 

Unit Unit Price 1 Total Price 

Full W1dth Street Planing &/or Wedge 
254 Cut Work: Ranging from 1-1/2" to 2- 45,000 Sq Yds. 

112 • depth of cut s 1.72 s 77,400.00 
Total Amount Street Planing/Wedge Cut Work 
Specification #I 

$ 77,400.00 

SPEC I Fiber Reinforced Bituminous Membrane I 12,000 Sq. Yds 
$ 4.35 $ 52 200.00 

Total Fiber Reinforced Bituminous Membrane 
Specification #2 

$ 52,200.00 

448 
Asphalt Surface Course, 

3, 120 Tons 
Type I, PG 64-22 $ 71.00 s 221 520.00 

448 
•Asphalt Intermediate Course 

500 Tons 
Type I PG 64-22 s 70.00 s 35 000.00 

301 
• Asphalt Concrete Base 

500 Tons 
PG64-22 s 65 00 $ 32 500 00 

611 
Adjustment of Manholes to grade, as per 

13 Each 
[plan s 400.00 s 5,200.00 

611 
Remove existing sanitary MH casting & 

13 Each 
I id, & raise to grade, as per plan 

$ 400.00 s 5,200.00 

638 Adjustment of Valve Boxes to grade 5 Each s 300.00 s I 500.00 
•contingency item- to be used as directed "Y_the Engineer 

Total Amount Asphalt Paving/Resurfacing Work 
Specifiution #3 $ 300J20.00 - - ---- --

442 !Asphalt Surface Course, 12.5 mm, Type I 
A{448) 

1,035 Tons 
$ 87.00 $ 90,045.00 

Total Amount 442, Asphalt Surface Course, 12.5 mm, 
Type A (448) 
Sped fica lion #4 $ 96,1)45.00 

· - --·· --·· 

Pa~ 1 or2 

... \..._,/ 0 

BIDDER (Name/Addrcss/PIIone) 

Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. Mt. Pleasant Blacktopping 

3751 Commerce Drive 3199 Production Drive 

Middletown, OH 45005 Fairfield, OH 45014 

513-422-4662 513-374-3777 

Unit Price J_ Total Price Unit Price I Total Price 

s 1.73 s 77 850.00 s 1.45 s 65,250.00 

$ 77,850.00 s 65,250.00 
--' 

$ 3 83 s 45 960.00 $ 4.50 $ 54,000.00 

..!..- --- 45,960.00 s 54,000.00 

s 64 75 $ 202,020.00 s 69.00 s 215 280.00 

s 55.00 s 27 500.00 s 63.00 s 31 500.00 

s 48.00 s 24,000.00 s 58.50 $ 29,250.00 

s 400.00 s 5,200.00 s 350.00 $ 4 550.00 

$ 400.00 $ 5 200.00 s 350.00 s 4 550.00 

s 250.00 s I 250.00 s 150.00 s 750.00 

s 265,170.00 s 285,880.00 

s 80.00 s 82,800.00 $ 81.00 s 83,835.00 

$ 82,800.00 $ 83,835.00 

0 



City of Fairfield 
Bid Tabulation for "2013 Asphalt Paving and Resurfacing Projed" 
Bid Opening: April 29, 2013 

Jobn R. Jurgensen 
11641 Mosteller Rd. 

Cincinnati, OH 45241 
513-771-0820 

ODOT Description 
Est. 

Unit Unit Price Total Price 
Item# Qnly. 

1 M1les Ed~e Lmes (yellow) - Unit s 3 480.00 s -
2 Miles Lane Lines (yellow) - Unit s 1,748.00 s -
3 Miles Lane Lines (white) - Unit $ I 748.00 s -
4 Feet Center Lines 125.00 Unit s 1.15 s 143.75 
5 Each Arrows 2 Unit s 113.00 s 226.00 
6 Each Combo Arrow - Unit s 154.00 s -
7 Each ONLY's - Unit s 137.50 $ -
8 Each SCHOOL's - Unit s 550.00 s -
9 Ln. Ft. STOP Bars (24") 20.00 Unit s 5.70 s 114.00 
10 Ln . Ft. Channel Lines (8") 185.0 Unit s 1.70 $ 314.50 
II Ln. Ft. Crosswalks (8") - Unit $ 2.60 $ -
12 Each Center Line Halfmoon - Unit s 220.00 $ -
13 Ln. Ft. Dotted Lines (4" while) - Unit s 1.50 s -

Total Amount Thermop!Astit Roadway Pavement 
Markings 
Specification 115 s 798.25 

SPEC 1• Asphalt Reiuvenatin~ A~ent I 100001 SQ. Yds s 1.!0 $ 11 ,000.00 
*Contingency item -to be used as directed by the Engineer 
Total Amount Aspbalt Rejuvent11ing Agent J Specifica lion #6 s 11,000.00 
--· ---

253 !•Full Depth Asphalt Repairs I 500 I Sa. Yds $ 54.00 $ 27 000.00 
*Contingency item - to be used as directed by the Engineer 
Total Amount Full Deptb Aspbalt Repairs 1 Specification 117 s 27,000.00 

~~-- - --· -· 

Totals 
Consideration for Material $ 419,522.00 
Cousideraliou for Labor s 139 841.25 
Totnl Labor & Material 

~ 

s 559,363.25 

BIDDER (Namt/Address/P~one) 
Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. 

3751 Commerce Drive 
Middletown, OH 45005 

513-422-4662 

Unit Price Total Pnce 

s 3,164 00 s - s 
s I 589.00 s - s 
$ 1,589.00 s - s 
$ 1.00 s 125.00 s 
$ 100.00 s 200.00 $ 
$ 140.00 s - s 
$ 125.00 $ - s 
$ 500.00 s - s 
s 5.00 $ 100.00 s 
s 1.50 $ 277.50 $ 
s 2.35 $ - $ 
s 200.00 s - s 
s 1.35 s - s 

s 702.50 

$ 0.94 $ 9,400.00 $ 

s 9,400.00 

$ 35.00 $ 17 500.00 s 

s 17,500.00 

s 200000.00 
s 299,382.50 
s 499,382.50 

13 ,. s~ B 1 \S 'f5~t &11~. v.; 
These bids will be reviewed by the Public Works Department and a recommendation will be made to Council. 

Cf-z.o. ~ Y>'Z.So 

There is no guarantee that the contract will be awarded to the lowest bidder. Contracts are awarded to the 
bidder deemed to be the best and the lowest. 

Page 2 of2 

.. "--.) 0 

MI. Pleasant Blacktopping 
3199 Production Drive 
Fairfield, OH 45014 

513-874-3777 

Unit Price Total Price 

3 500.00 s -
1,800.00 $ -
I 800.00 s -

1.10 $ 137.50 
115.00 s 230.00 
175.00 $ -
150.00 $ -
650.00 s -

5.50 $ 110.00 
1.75 s 323.75 
2.75 s -

250.00 s -
1.65 s -

s 801.25 

1.00 s 10000.00 

s 10,000.00 

3800 s 19000.00 

$ 19,000.00 

-

$ 311 250.00 
s 207 516.25 
s 518,766.25 

-q1.1 ,o-a(D.t.~ 

0 



() 2013 Asphalt & Resurfacing Program 

0 

0 / r ll 0 



0 

0 

I 

0 



0 

0 

0 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ _ 

ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER 
INTO A CONTRACT WITH BARRETT PAVING MATERIALS, INC. 
FOR THE 2013 ASPHALT PAVING AND RESURFACING 
PROJECT. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Passed 

Posted 

First Reading 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Barrett 
Paving Materials, Inc. for the 2013 Asphalt Paving and Resurfacing Project in 
accordance with the bid on file in the office of the City Manager. 

This Ordinance shall take effect at the earliest period allowed by law. 

Mayor's Approval 

Rules Suspended 

Second Reading 

Third Reading 

ATTEST: 

Clerk of Council 

This is to certify that this Ordinance has been duly published by posting and 
summary publication as provided by Charter. 

Clerk of Counci l 

Active Cllents\City of Fairfie ld\Ordinances\ 2013\Barrett Paving Materials, Inc- Ord 
























































































































































































































	Regular Agenda for May 28, 2013
	Regular Meeting Minutes May 13, 2013
	Old Business
	Development Services Committee - Building Code changes
	Public Utilities Committee - GRW Engineers, Inc. contract
	Public Works Committee - ODOT Resolution to Purchase
	Public Works Committee - Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. contract

	New Business
	Public Safety Committee - Transfer of vehicle to BCS
	Public Works Committee - Declaration of vehicles as surplus
	Public Works Committee - Outfitting of 2 Tandem Axle Dump Trucks
	Finance & Budget Committee - Resolutions amending pick-up plan for Police and Fire Departments
	Finance & Budget Committee - Ordinance to reconcile accounts
	Finance & Budget Committee - Contractual Appropriations
	Finance & Budget Committee - Non-contractual Appropriations
	Finance & Budget Committee - Duke Energy Non-contractual Appropriation


